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Revenue (RMB million)

Adjusted gross profit margin (Note)

Consolidated net (loss)/profit
(RMB million)

(Loss)/profit attributable to equity
shareholders of the Company
(RMB million)

Net cash generated from operating activities
(RMB million)

Basic and diluted (loss)/earnings per share
(RMB cents)

Proposed final dividend
per share (HKD cents)

WANAEEEET)
BRBEMNZ (M)
attE(ER) /FE
(AEKEET)
ARRBRREE(BR),/E7
ANEEBET)

REEPEL RS
ANEEBET)
SREXREE(ER)/ BN
(AEER)
EESRARERE
CEfl)

Note: Adjusted gross profit margin represents gross profit after
impairment losses for trade receivables and contract assets.

Financial Highlights
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Corporate Culture & Mission

ECREwN

OPERATION PHILOSOPHY
Technology leads markets
Services create value

ENTERPRISE MOTTO

To do things honestly

To treat people sincerely

To understand causes and results
To unify theory and practice

CORPORATE MISSION
For the country

For the customers

For the employees

For the shareholders

MANAGEMENT CONCEPTS
Sustainable Development
Circular Improvement

Statistics Analysis

Continuous Improvement

PRODUCT CONCEPTS
Service

Quality

Cost

WEALTH CONCEPTS
Wealth means responsibility

TALENT CONCEPTS
Judging people on his performance
Talent comes first

MARKETING CONCEPTS

Identify the needs of the customers
Create value for the customers
Provide best services to the customers

CULTURE CONCEPTS
Respect

Communicate
Understand

Integrate

Pursue

DEVELOPMENT STRATEGIES
Independent Brand

Independent Intellectual Property
Independent Marketing Network
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Dear shareholders,

On behalf of the board (the “Board”) of directors (the
“Directors”) of Yuanda China Holdings Limited (the
“Company”), together with its subsidiaries (the “Group” or
“Yuanda China”), | hereby present to you the Group’s annual
report for the year ended 31 December 2020 (the “Reporting
Period”).

Looking back at 2020, the COVID-19 epidemic caused
significant effects to the world. Across our country and around
the world, we have seen heart-warming stories of people
coming together to help others, be it through delivering food
parcels and medicines, checking on neighbours, or converting
businesses to help the relief effort. The company would like
to give its thanks to all of the staff and management who
selflessly carried out essential roles and duties in support of
the Company at the beginning of the outbreak of COVID-19.

Many countries continued to struggle against the COVID-19
and maintaining economic activities and the volatility of the
COVID-19 caused difficulties in economic recovery. Under the
strong leadership of the Chinese government, China was the
first to contain the virus, to pursue international cooperation
against COVID, to reopen the economy safely and to restore
economic growth. With the domestic COVID-19 epidemic
under effective control, China’s economy showed the trend of
recovery and the gross domestic product expanded by 2.3%
year on year, making it the only major economy with positive
economic growth in the world. The Company has been
actively promoting the resumption of work and production and
accelerated the construction progress, the scale of domestic
operating income recovered to about 70% of the same period
last year. In terms of oversea market, as the COVID-19
continues and the anti-epidemic policies for public health are
still in place. The revenue from overseas market is impacted
by the delays in construction period.

Nevertheless, the Company has effectively coped with
the impact of the COVID-19, reduced variable costs and
integrated fixed assets. Meanwhile the company adhered to
technological innovation and obtained 26 patents in 2020
which empower high-quality development for the future.
Moreover, the management implemented adjustment in their
remuneration believing that together with the Company they
can get through the difficulties.
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Chairman’s Statement
FEHRSE

BUSINESS REVIEW

For the year ended 31 December 2020,the loss attributable to
equity shareholders of the Company of the Group decreased
by about RMB780.4 million as compared with last year to
about RMB690.6 million (2019: a profit of about RMB89.8
million). The main reason was that the adverse effect on
the global economy brought by the prolonged outbreak of
COVID-19 during the year 2020 resulted in a postponement of
construction projects and the expected credit loss allowances
recognised for financial and contract assets.

BUSINESS PROSPECTS

At the historic crossroad of the “Two Centenary Goals,” the
new journey of comprehensively building a modern socialist
country is about to start. The road ahead is long; striving
is the only way forward. Looking forward to 2021, with the
popularization of vaccines, the global prevention and control of
the COVID-19 epidemic will gradually improve and the world
economy will recover. However, there are still uncertainties in
the development of the epidemic and the process of economic
recovery. The Company still has to pay attention to the non-
synchronized economic recovery owing to the inconsistent
progress of COVID-19 vaccination in each country. The Group
will continue to closely monitor and promptly respond to any
kinds of derivative risks (trade protectionism, geo-political
tensions, etc) under the impact of the epidemic.

Kang Baohua
Chairman

31 March 2021
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Management Discussion and Analysis

BUSINESS REVIEW

Overall performance

Looking back at 2020, the COVID-19 pandemic caused
significant effects to the world economy and major economies
experienced recession to different extent. Many countries
continued to struggle against the COVID-19 and maintaining
economic activities and the volatility of the COVID-19 caused
difficulties in economic recovery. However, with the domestic
COVID-19 pandemic under effective control, China’s economy
showed the trend of recovery and the gross domestic product
expanded by 2.3% year on year, making it the only major
economy with positive economic growth in the world. The
Company has been actively promoting the resumption of work
and production and accelerated the construction progress, the
overall scale of domestic operating income recovered to about
70% of the same period last year. In terms of oversea market,
as the COVID-19 continues and the anti-epidemic policies
for public health are still in place, the revenue from overseas
market is impacted by the delays in construction period.
Nevertheless, the Group has effectively coped with the impact
of the COVID-19, reduced variable costs and integrated
fixed assets. Meanwhile the Group adhered to technological
innovation and obtained 26 patents in 2020 which empower
high-quality development for the future. Moreover, the
management implemented adjustment in their remuneration
believing that together with the Group they can get through
the difficulties.

For the year ended 31 December 2020, the loss attributable
to equity shareholders of the Company of the Group was
about RMB690.6 million (2019: a profit of about RMB89.8
million). The main reason was that the adverse effect on
the global economy brought by the prolonged outbreak of
COVID-19 during the year 2020 resulted in a postponement of
construction projects and the expected credit loss allowances
recognised for financial and contract assets.
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Management Discussion and Analysis

BEEENWE DN

BUSINESS REVIEW (continued)
Newly-awarded projects (including VAT)

During the year 2020, the aggregate amount of newly-awarded
projects of the Group decreased by about RMB2,171.7 million
or 46.9% as compared with last year to about RMB2,455.1
million (2019: about RMB4,626.8 million). The main reason
for the decrease was that the Group took a more prudent
and cautious operating strategy to avoid the credit risks from
customers whose cash flow may be affected by COVID-19.

EMEOIRE(E)

EE TR(SBEMR)

2020 - AEEWHAEZETIREABHA
E#¥2,4551 B8 L(2019F : AR
¥ 4,626.8B8TT) r WEFREBIL
AR®E2ATI.7TE &L 346.9% © B
FTEREAAEBRMNERENLER
B BeRenAITEREYENE
FPREASNERARRE -

2020 2019

2020 F 20194
Number of RMB Number of RMB
projects million projects million
HEHgE ARY¥®EE HE#= AREBE
Domestic Al 24 997.9 33 1,213.5
Overseas N 18 1,457.2 27 3,413.3
Total a5 42 2,455.1 60 4,626.8
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Management Discussion and Analysis

BUSINESS REVIEW (continued)

Backlog

As at 31 December 2020, the remaining contract value of
backlog of the Group decreased by about RMB938.1 million
or 7.3% as compared with last year to about RMB11,989.5
million (31 December 2019: about RMB12,927.6 million),
which could support a sustainable development of the Group
for the next 2-3 years.

EEENWE DN

REOEE(E)
ATEIER

MR2020F12A31H - &N £ B & X
TIARSBEHARKEI1,085H
B TL(2019F12A31H: 9 A B &
12,9276 B8 T) WEFRHR DL
AR 9381 BELHT7.3% * BUABK
EBEARR2-3IFHHERIRBE NLE -

2020 2019
2020 F 20194
Remaining value of Remaining value of
contracts contracts
SRS TEE SRS TERE
Number of RMB Number of RMB
projects million projects million
HAYE ARY®EE HE#E ARERE
Domestic A 208 4,493.9 218 4,682.0
Overseas BTN 93 7,495.6 85 8,245.6
Total =5 301 11,989.5 303 12,927.6
Major technology achievements and awards T ERTA R MBI 8818

In 2020, the Group obtained 26 patents for utility model.

BUSINESS PROSPECTS

Looking forward to 2021, with the popularization of vaccines,
it is expected that the global prevention and control of the
COVID-19 pandemic will gradually improve and the world
economy will recover. However, there are still uncertainties in
the development of the epidemic and the process of economic
recovery. The Group will continue to pay close attention to the
non-synchronized economic recovery owing to the inconsistent
progress of COVID-19 vaccination in each country. The Group
will also continue to closely monitor and promptly respond to
any kinds of derivative risks (trade protectionism, geo-political
tensions, etc) under the impact of the pandemic.
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Management Discussion and Analysis

BEEENWE DN

FINANCIAL REVIEW
Revenue

For the year ended 31 December 2020, the revenue of the
Group decreased by about RMB1,305.7 million or 32.3%
as compared with last year to about RMB2,735.6 million
(2019: about RMB4,041.3 million). The decline is due to
the adverse effect on the global economy brought by the
prolonged outbreak of COVID-19 resulted in a postponement
of construction projects. Among which:

1.  the revenue from domestic market of the Group
decreased by about RMB466.8 million or 27.4%
as compared with last year to about RMB1,236.8
million (2019: about RMB1,703.6 million), contributing
approximately 45.2% of the total revenue of the Group;
and

2. the revenue from overseas market of the Group
decreased by about RMB838.8 million or 35.9%
as compared with last year to about RMB1,498.8
million (2019: about RMB2,337.6 million), contributing
approximately 54.8% of the total revenue of the Group.

Cost of sales

In 2020, the cost of sales of the Group decreased by about
RMB766.1 million or 25.1% as compared with last year to
about RMB2,283.8 million (2019: about RMB3,049.9 million).
With the decrease in revenue during 2020, the related costs
of sales decreased correspondingly.
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Management Discussion and Analysis

FINANCIAL REVIEW (continued)

Adjusted gross profit margin

In 2020, the adjusted gross profit margin of the Group
decreased by about 14.9% to 5.8% (2019: about 20.7%).
The decrease was mainly attributable to the adverse effect
on the global economy brought by the prolonged outbreak of
COVID-19 during the year 2020 resulted in a postponement of
construction projects and the expected credit loss allowances
recognised for financial and contract assets. Among which:

1. the domestic adjusted gross profit margin of the Group
decreased by about 13.0% as compared with last year
to about 9.4% (2019: about 22.4%); and

2. the overseas adjusted gross profit margin of the Group
decreased by about 16.6% as compared with last year
to about 2.8% (2019: about 19.4%).

Other income

Other income of the Group primarily comprised of government
grants, rental revenue from operating leases, net income from
provision of repairs and maintenance services.

In 2020, the other income of the Group decreased by about
RMB81.5 million or 67.1% as compared with last year to
about RMB39.9 million (2019: about RMB121.4 million). The
decrease in the Group’s other income was mainly due to the
decline in net gain on disposal of property and land use rights
classified as held for sale during the Reporting Period.
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Management Discussion and Analysis

BEEENWE DN

FINANCIAL REVIEW (continued)
Selling expenses

In 2020, the selling expenses of the Group decreased by
about RMB9.3 million or 10.8% as compared with last year
to about RMB77.2 million (2019: about RMB86.5 million),
accounted for approximately 2.8% of the operating revenue of
the Group (2019: 2.1%).

Administrative expenses

In 2020, the administrative expenses of the Group decreased
by about RMB76.8 million or 14.4% as compared with last
year to about RMB454.9 million (2019: about RMB531.7
million), accounted for approximately 16.6% of the operating
revenue of the Group (2019: 13.2%). This was mainly due
to the certain exemption on the contribution to defined
contribution retirement plans by local government authority
as a result of the COVID-19 pandemic and the decrease of
unnecessary commuting and transport activities.

Finance costs

In 2020, the finance costs of the Group increased by about
RMB85.1 million or 59.7% as compared with last year to
about RMB227.6 million (2019: about RMB142.5 million),
accounted for 8.3% of the operating revenue of the Group
(2019: 3.5%). This was mainly due to foreign exchange
recognised as a net loss during the Reporting Period rather
than a net profit in last year.

Income tax
In 2020, the income tax expense of the Group decreased by

about RMB6.3 million or 5.9% as compared with last year to
about RMB99.9 million (2019: about RMB106.2 million).
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Management Discussion and Analysis

FINANCIAL REVIEW (continued)

Consolidated net (loss)/profit

As a result of the foregoing, in 2020, the consolidated net loss
of the Group was about RMB690.6 million (2019: a net profit
of about RMB89.8 million).

(Loss)/profit attributable to equity shareholders of the
Company

In 2020, the loss attributable to equity shareholders of
the Company was about RMB690.6 million (2019: a profit
attributable to equity shareholders of the Company of about
RMB89.8 million).

Net current assets and financial resources

As at 31 December 2020, the net current assets of the Group
decreased by about RMB84.2 million or 4.7% as compared
with last year to about RMB1,690.0 million (31 December
2019: about RMB1,774.2 million).

As at 31 December 2020, the cash on hand and in bank of
the Group increased by about RMB134.5 million or 7.2%
as compared with last year to about RMB2,012.6 million
(31 December 2019: about RMB1,878.1 million), mainly
denominated in RMB, Australian dollar (“AUD”), USD, British
Pound Sterling (“GBP”), Qutar Riyat (“QAR”).

Bank loans and gearing ratio

As at 31 December 2020, the total bank loan of the Group
decreased by about RMB545.8 million or 33.2% as compared
with last year to about RMB1,099.2 million (31 December
2019: about RMB1,645.0 million). The bank loan as at
31 December 2020 were denominated in RMB of which
approximately RMB699.2 million were repayable within one
year.

The Group’s gearing ratio (calculated by total liabilities divided
by total assets) was 75.0% (31 December 2019: 71.3%).
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Management Discussion and Analysis
BEENWR DM

FINANCIAL REVIEW (continued) B RS G (4E)
Turnover days ISEEFN

2020 2019
Turnover days (day) FEXE(X) 2020 20194
Receivables (note 1) FRURBR R (M2t 1) 565 427
Trade and bills payables (note 2) B RN RRERNEE (A T2) 580 485
Inventory (note 3) FE(fat3) 99 74
Notes: WE -
1. The calculation of the receivables turnover days is based on 1. FEWBERFAE A EEEEEER

the average amount of trade and bills receivables and net
contract assets (contract assets less contract liabilities) as at
the beginning and ending of the relevant period divided by total
revenue of the relevant period and multiplied by 365 days.

2. The calculation of turnover days of trade and bills payables is 2.
based on the average amount of trade and bills payables as at
the beginning and ending of the relevant period divided by cost
of raw materials and installation cost of the relevant period and
multiplied by 365 days.

3. The calculation of inventory turnover days is based on the 3.
average amount of inventory as at the beginning and ending
of the relevant period (net of provision) divided by cost of raw
materials of the relevant period and multiplied by 365 days.

I R IR E MR BB E 5 Rk
AEREEREREREFAEREE(A
RI&ERA R AE) N TS R IAE
& BRFE B A P33 PA 365 RETH »

EORNREENERAEXHER
RN ARENZEOBEY KR
EHRTFHBRERURMEER R
ERBEIN3BSRTE -

FERERE N EFENRY AR
T R (PO ) Br LA R MR
BABREASB5RHE o

During the Reporting Period, the turnover days of receivables MEHRN - EWEEREEXHL 565K
increased by about 138 days or 32.3% as compared with last (20194 : 49427 K) » L4 R HRHE N
year to about 565 days (2019: about 427 days). #1138 K3k 32.3% ©

During the Reporting Period, the turnover days of trade MEBRN - BEEMNILRENZEFE
and bill payables increased by about 95 days or 19.6% as K580 K (20194 : 49485K) » &
compared with last year to about 580 days (2019: about 485 EF R HBENA 95 K5 19.6% °

days).
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Management Discussion and Analysis

FINANCIAL REVIEW (continued)

Inventories and contract costs

The Group’s inventories primarily consist of materials used
in fabrication of curtain wall products, including extrusions
aluminum, glass, steel and sealant. Contract costs are either
the incremental costs of obtaining a contract with a customer
or the costs to fulfill a contract with a customer which are not
capitalised as inventory.

As at 31 December 2020, the inventory and contract costs
of the Group increased by about RMB44.4 million or 13.8%
as compared with last year to about RMB366.4 million (31
December 2019: about RMB322.0 million).

Capital expenditure

In 2020, the payment for capital expenditure of the Group
decreased by about RMB4.1 million or 31.8% as compared
with last year to about RMB8.8 million (2019: about RMB12.9
million), which was mainly related to the construction of plant
and purchase of equipment.

Foreign exchange risk

The overseas projects of the Group were mainly dominated
in USD, GBP and AUD. To hedge any foreign exchange
risks, the Group has entered into forward foreign exchange
contracts which hedge the forecast transactions and monetary
assets denominated in foreign currencies of the Group. The
Group ensures that net exposure to currency risk arising from
assets and liabilities maintained at an acceptable level.

Contingent liabilities

Details of the Group’s contingent liabilities as at 31 December
2020 are set out in Note 31.
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Management Discussion and Analysis

BEEENWE DN

FINANCIAL REVIEW (continued)
Charge on assets

As at 31 December 2020, the aggregate carrying value of the
property, plant and equipment, land use rights pledged for the
Group’s bank loans is RMB413.2 million.

As at 31 December 2020, the carrying value of the time
deposits pledged for the Group’s short-term bank loans is
RMB30.0 million.

As at 31 December 2020, the carrying value of the deposits
pledged for the bank loans and bank bills and letter of credit
issued by the Group is RMB780.8 million, the carrying value of
the time deposits pledged for the bank bills and letter of credit
issued by the Group is RMB419.3 million.

Save as disclosed above, the Group had no other charge on
its assets as at 31 December 2020.

Material acquisitions and disposals

During the Reporting Period, the Group did not have any
material acquisitions and disposals of its subsidiaries and
associated companies.

Automatic production and intelligent storage facilities
agreement and technical service agreement

On 30 September 2020, the Group entered into two
agreements (i.e. the Automatic Production And Intelligent
Storage Facilities Agreement and the Technical Service
Agreement) with Shenyang Yuanda Intellectual Robot Co., Ltd.
(“Yuanda Robot”) pursuant to which Yuanda Robot agreed to
sell automatic production and intelligent storage facilities and
to supply software development and design services as well
as to provide automation upgrade and lean production service
for the Group at a consideration of RMB35 million and RMB5
million, respectively. For future details, please refer to the
announcement of the Company dated 30 September 2020.
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Management Discussion and Analysis

FINANCIAL REVIEW (continued)

Automatic production and intelligent storage facilities
agreement and technical service agreement (continued)

For the year ended 31 December 2020, the automation
upgrade and lean production service provided by Yuanda
Robot to the Group amounted to RMB5.0 million under the
Technical Service Agreement.

As at 31 December 2020, the Automatic Production And
Intelligent Storage Facilities Agreement is still in progress.

Significant investment

The Group did not make any significant investments during
the Reporting Period.

Future plans for significant investments or capital assets

The Group does not have any future plans for significant
investments or capital assets as at the date of this report.

Global offering and use of proceeds

In May 2011, the Company conducted a global offering
(the “Global Offering”) through which 1,708,734,000 new
ordinary shares were offered at a price of HK$1.50 per share.
Net proceeds raised were approximately HK$2,402,947,000.
The ordinary shares of the Company were listed on the Main
Board of the Stock Exchange on 17 May 2011.

As stated in the Company’s prospectus dated 20 April 2011
and the supplementary prospectus dated 5 May 2011 (the
“Prospectus”), the Group intended to use the proceeds from
the Global Offering for expansion of its production capacity,
repayment of its existing debts, investment in research and
development, expansion of its sales and marketing network.
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Management Discussion and Analysis

BEEENWE DN

FINANCIAL REVIEW (continued)
Global offering and use of proceeds (continued)

As at 31 December 2020, an accumulated amount of
approximately HK$2,051 million of proceeds from the Global
Offering (of which expansion of production capacity: HK$608
million; repayment of bank loans (mainly comprised the bridge
loan of Standard Chartered Bank): HK$962 million; expenses
in research and development: HK$261 million; and expansion
of its sales and marketing network: HK$220 million) was
utilized in accordance with the intended use as stated in the
Prospectus. It is intended that the remaining proceeds of
approximately HK$352 million will be used in accordance to
the proposed allocation as stated in the Prospectus in 1 to 5
years.

Employees and remuneration policies

As at 31 December 2020 , the Group had 3,107 full-time
employees in total (31 December 2019: 4,016). The decrease
in number of full-time employees was a result of the Group’s
headcount optimization. The Group has sound policies of
management incentives and competitive remuneration, which
align with the interests of management, employees and
shareholders’ alike. The Group sets its remuneration policy
with reference to the prevailing market conditions and the
performance of the individuals concerned, subject to review
from time to time. The components of the remuneration
package consist of basic salary, allowances, fringe benefits
including medical insurance and contributions to pension
funds, as well as incentives like discretionary bonus and share
options.
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Directors and Senior Management

DIRECTORS
Executive Directors

Mr. Kang Baohua (& # ), aged 67 is the founder and
chairman of the Group, and was appointed as an Executive
Director on February 26, 2010. Mr. Kang is the vice president of
the Liaoning Chamber of Commerce (BEZE4 < ). Graduated
from Liaoning University (32 K2 ) with a diploma in politics
in 1984, Mr. Kang has over 27 years of experience in the
curtain wall industry and has been responsible for the overall
management and strategic development of the Group since
1992. Prior to founding the Group, Mr. Kang was an executive
director of Shenyang Strong Wind Group Company (k558
EEE A R]). Since the establishment of the Company, Mr.
Kang has been involved in the management of the Company,
including business development, finance and corporate
strategy formulation. Mr. Kang is also a director of various
other subsidiaries of the Group.

Mr. Liu Futao (Z/387&), aged 56, the chief executive officer
of the Group and an Executive Director of the Company,
obtained his bachelor’s degree in Engineering from Shenyang
Correspondence University G&[5 EEE R AE)in 1987 with
a major in machinery manufacturing. Mr. Liu joined the Group
in 1997 and has more than 23 years in manufacturing and
project management. Since 2008, Mr. Liu has been a manager
of various Mideast subsidiaries of the Group. In 2012, Mr. Liu
was promoted to the regional manager of the northeast China
of the Group.

Mr. Ma Minghui ((588#&), aged 40, an Executive Director of
the Company, obtained his bachelor’'s degree in Management
from Shenyang Institute of Aeronautical Engineering (&[5
e TEEF )in 2003 with a major in public administration.
Mr. Ma joined the Group in 2007 and has accumulated more
than 13 years of experience in human resources management
and budget management. Since 2011, Mr. Ma has been the
secretary to the president of the Group. In 2015, Mr. Ma was
promoted to the director of human resources of the Group.

Mr. Wang Hao (E£&), aged 40, an Executive Director of the
Company, obtained his bachelor’s degree in Management from
Jilin University (FF# A2 )in 2002 with a major in accounting.
Mr. Wang Hao joined the Group in 2007 and has accumulated
more than 13 years of experience in financial management.
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Directors and Senior Management
EEREREEAE

DIRECTORS (continued)
Executive Directors (continued)

Mr. Zhao Zhongqiu (#£FX), aged 56, obtained his bachelor’s
degree in Engineering from Hunan University (Gt m X 2 )
in 1987 with a major in internal combustion engineering.
Mr. Zhao joined the Group in 1996 and has more than 25
years in manufacturing and project management. From 1996
to 1998, Mr. Zhao managed production and technology
works in Shenyang subsidiary of the Group. From 1999 to
2004, Mr. Zhao served as the deputy general manager and
general manager, responsible for the production and project
management work in China. In 2005, Mr. Zhao was assigned
new duty to conduct the projects operations in America and
Africa as a general manager. In 2017, Mr. Zhao was promoted
to the president of global operations of the Group, responsible
for onshore and offshore businesses. Since 2006 Mr. Zhao
has managed more than 100 overseas landmark projects.

Mr. Zhang Lei (3R &), aged 48, since February 2013, he
acted as vice President of Shenyang Yuanda Aluminium
Industry Engineering Co., LtdEE KB X TR BER A
7@ )(“Shenyang Yuanda”), one of the subsidiaries of the
Company. Mr. Zhang joined the Group in July 2002 and had
over 18 years of experience in curtain wall industry. Before
joining the Group, from 1994 to 2000, Mr. Zhang held various
managerial positions in Northeast Refractory Plant, including
vice director in charge of production and equipment and
director of equipment department in No.4 branch of Northeast
Refractory Plant. From 2001 to 2002, Mr. Zhang acted as a
management intern in Japanese YKK company. From 2002
to 2005, Mr. Zhang held various key positions including
quality control and technology minister in Northeast Branch
of Shenyang Yuanda. He acted as a designer in Zhongdong
Branch of Shenyang Yuanda from 2005 to 2006. From
2006 to 2008, he acted as chief designer in Dubai Branch
of Shenyang Yuanda, responsible for the Group’s ACC44
residential buildings, imperial buildings and commercial bay
administration building and other projects. From 2008 to
2012, Mr. Zhang held various positions in Shenyang Yuanda,
including assistant to chief engineer in International Operation
of Shenyang Yuanda, deputy director of International Curtain
Wall Manufacturer under Shenyang Yuangda, factory controller
and factory president of Shenyang Yuanda. Mr. Zhang
graduated from Shenyang Electrical Industrial School with a
diploma in electrical and mechanical engineering in 1994.
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Directors and Senior Management

DIRECTORS (continued)

Independent Non-executive Directors

Mr. Poon Chiu Kwok (;&REEI), aged 58, was appointed as
an independent non-executive Director on 12 April 2011. Mr.
Poon obtained a Master’s degree in international accounting,
a Bachelor’'s degree in laws and a Bachelor’'s degree in
business studies. He was awarded a postgraduate diploma
in laws by the University of London. He is a fellow member
of CPA Australia, the Hong Kong Securities and Investment
Institute (also an associate instructor), a fellow of The Hong
Kong Institute of Chartered Secretaries (“HKICS”) and The
Chartered Governance Institute (formally known as The
Institute of Chartered Secretaries and Administrators). He is
also a member of the Technical Consultation Panel, Mainland
China Focus Group and Audit Committee of HKICS.

Mr. Poon has years of experience in regulatory affairs,
investment banking and listed company management. He
now serves as an executive director and company secretary
of Huabao International Holdings Limited (Hong Kong stock
code: 336). Currently, he is also an independent non-executive
director of the following companies: Sunac China Holdings
Limited (Hong Kong stock code: 1918), Changan Minsheng
APLL Logistics Co., Ltd. (Hong Kong stock code: 1292),
AUX International Holdings Limited (Hong Kong stock code:
2080), Sany Heavy Equipment International Holdings Company
Limited (Hong Kong stock code: 631), Greentown Service
Group Co. Ltd. (Hong Kong stock code: 2869), Jinchuan
Group International Resources Co. Ltd. (Hong Kong stock
code: 2362), Honghua Group Limited (Hong Kong stock code:
196) and Yanzhou Coal Mining Company Limited (Hong Kong
stock code: 1171). Mr. Poon was a non-executive director of
Chong Kin Group Holdings Limited (Hong Kong stock code:
1609) from 5 January 2018 to 6 June 2018. Mr. Poon was
a non-executive director of TUS International Limited (Hong
Kong stock code: 872) from 1 September 2015 to17 July
2020. Mr. Poon is an independent non-executive director of
Tonly Electronics Holdings Limited (Hong Kong stock code:
1249, subsequently withdrawn listing with effect from 8 March
2021) from 12 July 2013.
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Directors and Senior Management
EEREREEAE

DIRECTORS (continued)
Independent Non-executive Directors (continued)

Mr. Woo Kar Tung, Raymond (#1ZX#8), aged 51 was appointed
as an independent non-executive Director on 12 April 2011.
Mr. Woo has over 27 years of experience in the accounting
and financial services industry. He began his career as a
certified accountant at Arthur Andersen & Co where he
qualified. Subsequently, he was employed in senior positions
as an investment banker at ING, CITIC Securities and Credit
Suisse. Mr. Woo holds a Bachelor of Commerce degree. He
is a member of the Australian Society of Certified Practising
Accountants and a fellow of the Hong Kong Institute of
Certified Public Accountants. Mr. Woo is an independent non-
executive director of IRC Limited (Hong Kong stock code:
1029), and an independent non-executive director of SMIT
Holdings Limited (Hong Kong stock code: 2239). Mr. Woo was
an executive director of TUS International Limited (Hong Kong
stock code: 872) from 1 September 2015 to 7 June 2018. Mr.
Woo was an independent non-executive director of Huaneng
Renewables Corporation Limited (Hong Kong stock code:
958) from 28 June 2019 to 24 February 2020. Mr. Woo Kar
Tung Raymond was an independent non-executive director of
Huaneng Renewables Corporation Limited (Hong Kong stock
code: 958, subsequently withdrawn listing voluntarily with
effect from 24 February 2020) from 28 June 2019 to 22 April
2020.
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Directors and Senior Management

DIRECTORS (continued)
Independent Non-executive Directors (continued)

Mr. Pang Chung Fai, Benny (Z# &), aged 48, was appointed
as an independent non-executive Director on 12 April 2011.
Mr. Pang is a member of each of the audit committee,
nomination committee and remuneration committee of the
Company. Mr. Pang is the managing partner of Benny
Pang & Co. who specializes in capital markets and general
corporate and commercial work. Between 1997 and 2009,
Mr. Pang practiced as a lawyer with several international
law firms in Hong Kong and Sydney. Mr. Pang received his
bachelor’'s degree in laws (honors) from Bond University,
Australia, in 1996. In 1997, Mr. Pang obtained his Graduate
Diploma in Legal Practice and master’s degree in laws from
The College of Law, Sydney and the University of New South
Wales, Australia, respectively. He has been admitted as a
legal practitioner of the Supreme Court of New South Wales,
Australia since 1997 and as a solicitor of the High Court of
Hong Kong since 2009. He is a member of both the Law
Society of New South Wales, Australia and the Law Society of
Hong Kong. Currently, Mr. Pang is also an independent non-
executive director of Sanbase Corporation Limited (Hong Kong
stock code: 8501) and Janco Holding Limited. (Hong Kong
stock code: 8035). Mr. Pang is a non-executive director of
Huabang Financial Holdings Limited (Hong Kong stock code:
3638).

Save as otherwise disclosed, there was no change to any
information required to be disclosed in relation to any Director
pursuant to Rule 13.51(2)(a) to (e) and (g) of the Rules
Governing the Listing of Securities on the Stock Exchange
of Hong Kong Limited (the “Listing Rules”) during the year
ended 31 December 2020. All Directors are not involved in
any matters concerning Rule 13.51(2)(h) to (v) of the Listing
Rules.
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Directors and Senior Management
EEREREEAE

COMPANY SECRETARY

Mr. Yu Leung Fai, Philip (;RZ /&), aged 44, was appointed
as the company secretary and authorized representative of the
Company in June 2012 and has over 20 years of experience in
corporate services field. He was an auditor of Deloitte Touche
Tohmatsu from 2000 to 2001. Since 2001, Mr. Yu joined
Fung, Yu & Co. CPA Limited and is currently the company’s
managing partner. Mr. Yu has also been the company
secretary of Beijing Media Corporation Ltd. (Hong Kong
stock code: 1000), and Sany Heavy Equipment International
Holdings Company Limited (Hong Kong stock code: 631) and
independent non-executive director of Realord Group Holdings
Limited (Hong Kong stock code: 1196) and Dowway Holding
Limited (Hong Kong stock code: 8403), all of which are listed
companies in Hong Kong, since 2010, 2017, 2014 and 2019,
respectively. Mr. Yu graduated from the University of Toronto
with a bachelor’s degree in commerce in 2000 and from the
University of London with a bachelor’s degree in law in 2005.
He is a member of the American Institute of Certified Public
Accountants, Certified Practicing Accountants of Australia and
the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants.

SENIOR MANAGEMENT

Mr. Liu Futao (2I383&), Chief Executive Officer of the Company
— see the paragraph under “Executive Directors” above.

Mr. Tian Wei (&), the chief financial officer of the Company,
aged 46, obtained his bachelor’'s degree from Shenyang
University (& F5 A 2 )in 1999 with a major in accounting.
Mr. Tian joined the Group in 2001 and has over 20 years
extensive experience in financial management and accounting
work. In 2005, Mr. Tian was promoted as the head of the
financial accounting department in Shanghai subsidiary of
the Group. In 2008, Mr. Tian was appointed as the financial
manager of international subsidiary of the Group. Since June
2020, Mr. Tian has worked for the financial department of the
Group as the general manager, responsible for planning and
management of financial accounting, taxation matters, costing
and corporate finance of the Group.
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Corporate Governance Report

The board of directors (the “Board”) of the Company is
pleased to present this Corporate Governance Report in the
Group’s Annual Report for the year ended 31 December 2020.

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE PRACTICES

The Group strives to maintain high standards of corporate
governance to enhance shareholder value and safeguard
shareholder interests. The Group’s corporate governance
principles emphasize the importance of a quality Board,
effective internal controls and accountability to shareholders of
the Company.

For the year ended 31 December 2020, the Company has
adopted and complied with the code provisions set out in the
Corporate Governance Code (the “CG Code”) contained in
Appendix 14 to the Listing Rules as its own code to govern its
corporate governance practices

The Company reviews its corporate governance practices
regularly to ensure compliance with the CG Code. For the
year ended 31 December 2020, the Company has complied
with all code provisions of the CG Code, except the following
deviation:

Code provision A.2.7

Code provision A.2.7 of the Corporate Governance Code
stipulated that the chairman should at least annually hold
meetings with the independent non-executive directors without
the presence of other directors.

During the year ended 31 December 2020, a formal meeting
could not be arranged between the Chairman of the Board and
the independent non-executive Directors without the presence
of other Directors due to the scheduling difficulties on account
of the COVID-19 pandemic situation in Hong Kong. However,
the independent non-executive Directors may communicate
and discuss with the Chairman of the Board directly at any
time to voice their opinions and share their views on the
Company’s affairs. The Company considers that there are
sufficient channels and communication for discussion of the
Company’s affairs between the Chairman and the independent
non-executive Directors in the absence of other Directors.

The Company reviews its corporate governance practices
regularly to ensure compliance with the CG Code.
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Corporate Governance Report
TEERRE

THE BOARD OF DIRECTORS
Responsibilities

The Board is responsible for leadership and control of the
Company and oversees the Group’s businesses, strategic
decisions and performance with the objective of enhancing
shareholders’ value including setting and approving the
Company’s strategic implementation, considering substantial
investments, reviewing the Group’s financial performance
and developing and reviewing the Group’s policies and
practices on corporate governance and overall performance
in environmental, social and governance (the “ESG”). The
Board has delegated to the chief executive officer, of whom
the directors also undertake, and through him, to the senior
management the authority and responsibility for the day-to-
day management and operation of the Group. In addition, the
Board has established Board committees and has delegated
to these Board committees various responsibilities as set out
in their respective terms of reference.

All directors shall ensure that they carry out duties in good
faith, in compliance with applicable laws and regulations, and
in the interests of the Company and its shareholders at all
times.

The Company has arranged for appropriate insurance cover
for directors’ and officers’ liabilities in respect of legal actions
against its directors and senior management arising out of
corporate activities.
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Corporate Governance Report

BOARD COMPOSITION

As at the date of this report, membership of the Board
is made up of nine members in total, with six executive
Directors and three independent non-executive Directors. The
composition of the Board is set out below:

Executive Directors

Mr. Kang Baohua Chairman

Mr. Liu Futao Chief executive officer

Mr. Ma Minghui

Mr. Wang Hao

Mr. Zhao Zhonggiu (appointed on 22 July 2020)
Mr. Zhang Lei

Independent Non-Executive Directors

Mr. Poon Chiu Kwok
Mr. Woo Kar Tung, Raymond
Mr. Pang Chung Fai, Benny
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Corporate Governance Report
TEERRE

BOARD COMPOSITION (continued) BESHAKE)
BYFHTES HITES
Independent Non-executive Executive Directors

Directors

3REMEES 6B EEARREE
3 Elected Directors 6 Directors Appointed From The Group

LN T 30-40 51-60 |

2HES 2BES ABES

2 Directors 2 Directors 4 Directors

12ES
1 Director

EEAEEEENES

with the Group VEEE 1ZES

o 4 Directors 1 Director
B ER A LR AR

WES(QARHE)/

AZES

4 Directors

Companies
6HES

Directorship(s)
6 Directors

ESOREEXER KA
Board Expertise and Skills
FAHEIE R AER A/Budget
management and leadership skills

RENHERHEREEER
o E i O B B S A B NEBERES
Experience in manufacturing and Sound judgement and

marketing of curtain wall products effective oversight of and

guidance to management
3t T 45 28 2 40158/ Mainland market

expertise

The list of Directors (by category) is also disclosed in all
corporate communications issued by the Company pursuant
to the Listing Rules from time to time. The independent non-
executive directors are expressly identified in all corporate
communications pursuant to the Listing Rules.

The biographical details of the members of the Board are
disclosed under the section headed “Directors and Senior
Management” in this report. None of the members of the
Board is related to one another.
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Corporate Governance Report

BOARD COMPOSITION (continued)

During the year ended 31 December 2020, the Board at all
times met the requirements of the Listing Rules relating to
the appointment of at least three independent non-executive
Directors with at least one independent non-executive Director
possessing appropriate professional qualifications or accounting
or related financial management expertise.

The Company has received written annual confirmation from
each independent non-executive Director of his independence
pursuant to the requirements of Rule 3.13 of the Listing Rules.
The Company considers all independent non-executive Directors
to be independent in accordance with the independence
guidelines as set out in the Listing Rules.

All Directors, including independent non-executive Directors,
have brought a wide spectrum of valuable business experience,
knowledge and professionalism to the Board for its efficient and
effective functioning. Independent non-executive Directors are
invited to serve on the audit committee (“Audit Committee”),
remuneration committee (the “Remuneration Committee”) and
nomination committee (the “Nomination Committee”) of the
Company.

Save as otherwise disclosed, there is no relationship (including
financial, business, family or other material relationship) between
members of the Board.

NOMINATION POLICY

The Company has adopted a nomination policy (the
“Nomination Policy”) which sets out the selection criteria and
procedures to nominate candidate as a Director. Pursuant to
the Nomination Policy, the Nomination Committee shall identify
suitable board candidates and make recommendation to the
Board on the selection of individuals nominated for directorships,
after assessing a number of factors of a candidate, including,
but not limited to, reputation for integrity, accomplishment and
experience, commitment in respect of available time and attention
on relevant matters, independence of proposed independent
non-executive Directors and diversity in all aspects. The Board
shall have the final decision in relation to the nomination of
any candidates to stand for election at general meetings of the
Company. The Nomination Committee will review the Nomination
Policy, as appropriate, and recommend revision to the Board for
consideration and approval.
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BOARD DIVERSITY POLICY

The Board has considered a board diversity policy setting out
the approach to achieve diversity on the Board. The Company
considered diversity of Board members can be achieved
through consideration of a number of aspects, including
but not limited to gender, age, cultural and educational
background, professional experience, skills and knowledge.
All Board appointments are based on meritocracy, and
candidates will be considered against objective criteria, having
due regard for the benefits of diversity on the Board.

Selection of candidates is based on a range of diversified
perspectives, including but not limited to gender, age, cultural
and educational background, professional experience, skills
and knowledge. The ultimate decision will be made upon the
merits of the selected candidates and their contribution to the
Board.

CHAIRMAN AND CHIEF EXECUTIVE OFFICER

The roles and duties of the chairman (the “Chairman”) and
the chief executive officer (the “Chief Executive Officer”) of
the Company are carried out by different individuals and have
been clearly defined in writing.

The chairman of the Board is Mr. Kang Baohua, and the chief
executive officer is Mr. Liu Futao. The positions of Chairman
and Chief Executive Officer are held by separate persons in
order to preserve independence and a balance of views and
judgments. With the support of the senior management, the
Chairman is responsible for ensuring that the Directors receive
adequate, complete and reliable information in a timely manner
and appropriate briefing on issues arising at Board meetings.
The chief executive officer focuses on implementing objectives,
policies and strategies approved and delegated by the Board.
The Chief Executive Officer is in charge of the Company’s
day-to-day management and operations. The Chief Executive
Officer is also responsible for developing strategic plans and
formulating the organizational structure, control systems and
internal procedures and processes for the Board’s approval.
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APPOINTMENT AND RE-ELECTION OF DIRECTORS

Each of the executive Directors is engaged on a service
contract for a term of three years, and the appointment may
be terminated by not less than one month’s written notice.
Each of the independent non-executive Directors has been
appointed for a term of one year and the appointment may be
terminated by not less than three months’ written notice.

In accordance with the Company’s Articles of Association, all
Directors are subject to retirement by rotation at least once
every three years and any new Director appointed by the
Board to fill a causal vacancy or as an addition to the Board
shall submit himself/herself for reelection by shareholders of
the Company at the first general meeting after appointment.

The procedures and process of appointment, re-election and
removal of directors are laid down in the Company’s Articles
of Association. The Nomination Committee established on
12 April 2011 is to be responsible for reviewing the Board
composition, making recommendations to the Board on
the appointment and succession planning of directors and
assessing the independence of independent non-executive
directors.

In accordance with articles 83 and 84 of the Company’s
Articles of Association, Mr. Zhao Zhongagiu, Mr. Kang Baohua,
Mr. Liu Futao and Mr. Ma Minghui shall retire by rotation
and being eligible, will offer themselves for reelection at the
forthcoming annual general meeting to be held on 2 June
2021 (the “2020 AGM").
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BOARD MEETINGS
Board practices and conduct of Board meetings

Annual meeting schedules and draft agenda of each meeting
are normally made available to the Directors in advance.

Notices of regular Board meetings are served to all directors
at least 14 days before the meeting. For other Board and
committee meetings, reasonable notice is generally given.

Board papers together with all appropriate, complete and
reliable information are sent to all Directors at least 3 days
before each Board meeting or committee meeting to keep
Directors apprised of the latest developments and financial
position of the Company and to enable them to make
informed decisions. The Board and each Director also have
separate and independent access to the senior management
where necessary.

The Company’s senior management, including the Chief
Executive Officer, chief financial officer and company
secretary, attend all regular Board meetings and where
necessary, other Board and committee meetings, to advise
on business developments, financial and accounting matters,
statutory and regulatory compliance, corporate governance
and other major aspects of the Company.

The company secretary of the Company is responsible
for taking and keeping minutes of all Board meetings and
committee meetings. Draft minutes are normally circulated
to the Directors for comment within a reasonable time after
each meeting and final versions are open for the Directors’
inspection.

The Company’s Articles of Association contain provisions
requiring Directors to abstain from voting and not to be
counted in the quorum at meetings for approving transactions
in which such Directors or any of their associates have a
material interest.
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BOARD MEETINGS (continued) EEggR (&)
Directors’ attendance records BEENESELE

The attendance records of each director at the Board HE2000F12A31HILEE - K=
meetings and committee meetings being held during the year HEEsees T8z ULEE
ended 31 December 2020 and the annual general meeting for R 2020F6 A 16 H A A 2019 F B B
the financial year of 2019 held on 16 June 2020 (the “2019 FERRFAFAE([2019FREBAFEK
AGM”) are set out below: e WS

Attendance/Number of Meetings

HERY, BB8E
Annual Extraordinary
Nomination Remuneration Audit General General
Name of Director Board Committee Committee Committee Meeting Meeting
EEps Exg REZEE FMEREE  ENZEE KRRBEFAE KIRRAS
Kang Baohua 8/8 2/2 - - 11 11
Li Hongren
(resigned on 22 July 2020) 5/8 - 2/2 - 11 -
FHA
(R2020%F7 A 22 ABHE)
Liu Futao 8/8 - - - 11 11
2iEE
Ma Minghui 8/8 - - - il 11
SHE
Wang Hao 8/8 - - - 11 11
=
Zhao Zhonggiu
(appointed on 22 July 2020) 3/8 - - - - 11
HBR
(R2020%7 F 22 HEZ(F)
Zhang Lei 8/8 - - - il 11
RE
Poon Chiu Kwok 8/8 2/2 - 2/2 11 11
R
Woo Kar Tung, Raymond 8/8 - 2/2 2/2 11 11
AR
Pang Chung Fai, Benny 8/8 2/2 2/2 2/2 11 11
ZHE
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DIRECTORS’ TRAINING

Directors must keep abreast of their collective responsibilities
and are encouraged to participate in continuous professional
development to develop and refresh their knowledge and
skills. The Company would provide to each newly appointed
Director or alternative Director an induction package covering
the summary of the responsibilities and liabilities of a director
of a Hong Kong listed company, the Group’s businesses
and the statutory regulatory obligations of a director of a
listed company as well as the Company’s constitutional
documents to ensure that he/she is sufficiently aware of his/
her responsibilities and obligations under the Listing Rules
and other regulatory requirements. The Group also provided
briefings and other training to develop and refresh the
Directors’ knowledge and skills from time to time. Further,
the Company continuously updates Directors on the latest
developments regarding the Listing Rules and other applicable
regulatory requirements, to ensure compliance and enhance
their awareness of good corporate governance practices.

Details regarding the trainings attended by the Directors
during the year ended 31 December 2020 are as follow:
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BEERHEE2020F 12 A31BIEFES
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Types of training

Directors = EIEE
Executive Directors BITES

Kang Baohua REE A, B, G D, E
Li Hongren (resigned on 22 July 2020) A (R2020 4 7 H 22 A EHT) A, B, E
Liu Futao 2eE A B, CDE
Ma Minghui SERE A B, D E
Wang Hao = A B, C, D, E
Zhao Zhonggjiu (appointed on 22 July 2020)  #8EF (72020 F 7 A 22 HEZ(T) B,C, D, EF
Zhang Lei RE A B, D E
Independent Non-Executive Directors BAFHITES

Poon Chiu Kwok EBE A, B, G D, E
Woo Kar Tung, Raymond EERE A B CDE
Pang Chung Fai, Benny ZHE A, B CDE
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DIRECTORS’ TRAINING (continued)

Note:
A. Attending seminar(s)/forum(s)

B. Reading materials relating to general business, real estate
development, directors’ duties and responsibilities and so on

C. Giving talks to external seminar(s)/forum(s)
D. Attending corporate event(s)/visit(s)
E. Directors E-Trainings in HKex

F. Induction Training

MODEL CODE FOR SECURITIES TRANSACTIONS

The Company has adopted the Model Code for Securities
Transactions by Directors of Listed Issuers (the “Model
Code”) as set out in Appendix 10 to the Listing Rules
(the “Appendix 10”) and devised its own code of conduct
regarding directors’ dealings in the Company’s securities (the
“Company Code”) on terms no less exacting than the Model
Code as set out in Appendix 10.

Specific enquiry has been made of all the Directors and the
Directors have confirmed that they have complied with the
Model Code and the Company Code throughout the year
ended 31 December 2020.

The Company has also established written guidelines on no
less exacting terms than the Model Code (the “Employees
Written Guidelines”) for securities transactions by employees
who are likely to be in possession of unpublished inside
information of the Company.

No incident of non-compliance of the Employees Written
Guidelines by the employees was noted by the Company for
the year ended 31 December 2020.
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DELEGATION BY THE BOARD

The Board undertakes responsibility for decision making in
major Company matters, including the approval and monitoring
of all policy matters, overall strategies and budgets, internal
control and risk management systems, material transactions (in
particular those that may involve conflict of interests), financial
information, appointment of directors and other significant
financial and operational matters.

All Directors have full and timely access to all relevant
information as well as the advice and services of the company
secretary, with a view to ensuring that Board procedures and
all applicable laws and regulations are followed. Each Director
is normally able to seek independent professional advice in
appropriate circumstances at the Company’s expense, upon
making request to the Board.

The day-to-day management, administration and operation
of the Company are delegated to the Chief Executive Officer
and the senior management. The delegated functions and
responsibilities are periodically reviewed. Approval has to be
obtained from the Board prior to any significant transactions
entered into by the aforesaid officers. The Board also has
the full support of the Chief Executive Officer and the senior
management for the discharge of its responsibilities.

REMUNERATION OF DIRECTORS AND SENIOR
MANAGEMENT

The Company has established a formal and transparent
procedure for formulating policies on remuneration of senior
management of the Group. Details of the remuneration of each
of the Directors for the year ended 31 December 2020 are set
out in Note 8 to the Financial Statements.

RETIREMENT BENEFIT SCHEMES

The Group participated in various retirement benefit schemes
in accordance with the relevant rules and regulations in the
PRC. Details of the Group’s retirement benefit schemes are
set out in note 6(b) to the consolidated financial statements.

According to the retirement benefit schemes of the Group,
there is no applicable circumstance of forfeited contributions.
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BOARD COMMITTEES

As an integral part of sound corporate governance practices,
the Board has established three committees, namely, the
Nomination Committee, Remuneration Committee and
Audit Committee, for overseeing particular aspects of the
Company’s affairs. All Board committees of the Company are
established with defined written terms of reference which are
available on the Company’s website. Each of the Nomination
Committee, Remuneration Committee and Audit Committee
are provided with sufficient resources to discharge their duties
and, upon reasonable request, are able to seek independent
professional advice in appropriate circumstances, at the
Company’s expenses.

Nomination Committee

The Nomination Committee comprises three members, namely
Mr. Kang Baohua (chairman), Mr. Poon Chiu Kwok and Mr.
Pang Chung Fai, Benny, the majority of which are independent
non-executive Directors.

The principal duties of the Nomination Committee include
reviewing the Board composition, making recommendations
to the Board on the appointment and succession planning of
directors, and assessing the independence of the independent
non-executive Directors.

During the year ended 31 December 2020, the Nomination
Committee:

° reviewed the structure, size and composition (including
the skills, knowledge and experience) of the Board
annually and made recommendations on any proposed
changes to the Board to implement the Company’s
corporate strategy;

° made recommendations to the Board to ensure that the
independent non-executive Directors comprise at least
one-third of the Board;

° assessed the independence of independent non-
executive Directors;
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BOARD COMMITTEES (continued)
Nomination Committee (continued)

° made recommendations to the Board on the re-
appointment of Directors; and

° made recommendations to achieve board diversity
through the consideration of a number of factors,
including but not limited to gender, age, ethnicity,
professional experience, knowledge and length of
service.

The Nomination Committee will meet at least once per
year according to its terms of reference. Two Nomination
Committee meetings were held during the year under review.

Remuneration Committee

The Remuneration Committee comprises three members,
namely Mr. Woo Kar Tung, Raymond (chairman), Mr. Liu Futao
and Mr. Pang Chung Fai, Benny, the majority of which are
independent non-executive directors.

The Remuneration Committee is responsible for making
recommendations to the directors’ remuneration and other
benefits. The remuneration of all Directors is subject to regular
monitoring by the Remuneration Committee to ensure that
level of their remuneration and compensation are reasonable.
Their written terms of reference are in compliance with the
provisions of the CG Code. Pursuant to code provision B.1.4
of the CG Code, the Remuneration Committee would make
available its terms of reference, explaining its role and the
authority delegated to it by the Board.

During the year ended 31 December 2020, the Remuneration
Committee:

° made recommendations to the Board on the Company’s
policy and structure for all Directors and senior
management remuneration and on the establishment
of a formal and transparent procedure for developing
remuneration policy;
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BOARD COMMITTEES (continued)

Remuneration Committee (continued)

° reviewed and approved the management’s remuneration
proposals with reference to the Board’s corporate goals
and objectives;

° conduct an annual review with reference to companies
with comparable business or scale and recommend
remuneration adjustments, if appropriate;

o reviewed and approved the disclosure details of any
remuneration payable to members of senior management
by band in the annual reports; and

° conducted regular evaluations of the Board on its
performance as it may consider appropriate.

Pursuant to code provision B.1.5 of the CG code, the
remuneration of the members of the senior management by
pband for the year ended 31 December 2020 is set out below:
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BOARD COMMITTEES (continued)
Audit Committee

The Audit Committee comprises three members, namely Mr.
Poon Chiu Kwok (chairman), Mr. Woo Kar Tung, Raymond
and Mr. Pang Chung Fai, Benny, all of which are independent
non-executive Directors.

The primary duties of the Audit Committee are to review and
supervise the financial reporting process and risk management
and internal control system and to provide advice and
comments to the Board.

During the year ended 31 December 2020, the Audit
Committee:

o made recommendations to the Board on the
appointment, re-appointment and removal of the external
auditor, and approved the remuneration and terms of
engagement of the external auditor;

° reviewed and monitored the external auditor’s
independence and objectivity and the effectiveness of the
audit process in accordance with applicable standards;

° reviewed the annual results in respect of the year ended
31 December 2019 and the interim results for the six
months ended 30 June 2020 as well as significant issues
on financial control, internal control and risk management
systems;

° reviewed and approved the internal audit work plan for
2020, and received periodic updates on the status of
internal audit activities;

o reviewed connected transactions entered into by the
Group or subsisting during the year;

° discussed the risk management and internal control
system with management to ensure that management
has performed its duty to have an effective internal
control system. This discussion included the adequacy
of resources, staff qualifications and experience, training
programmes and budget of the Company’s accounting
and financial reporting functions; and
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BOARD COMMITTEES (continued)

Audit Committee (continued)

° developed and reviewed the Company’s policies
and practices on corporate governance and made
recommendations to the Board.

The Audit Committee held two meetings during the year ended
31 December 2020.

The Audit Committee also met the external auditors of
the Company twice without the presence of the executive
directors.

MANAGEMENT OF INSIDE INFORMATION

The Group has also adopted an information disclosure policy
which has set out guidelines in respect of handling and
dissemination of inside information. The Board is entrusted
with the responsibility for monitoring and implementing the
procedural requirements in the information disclosure policy.
Release of inside information shall be approved by the Board.
Unless duly authorized, all staff members of the Company
shall not disseminate inside information relating to the Group
to any external parties and shall not respond to media report
or market speculation which may materially affect the trading
price or volume of the shares of the Company.

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE FUNCTIONS

During the period under review, the Board is responsible for
determining the policy for the corporate governance of the
Company performing the corporate governance duties as
below:

° to develop and review the Group’s policies and practices
on corporate governance and make recommendations;

° to review and monitor the training and continuous
professional development of the directors and senior
management;
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE FUNCTIONS (continued)

° to review and monitor the Group’s policies and practices
on compliance with all legal and regulatory requirements
(where applicable);

° to develop, review and monitor the code of conduct and
compliance manual (if any) applicable to employees and
directors of the Group; and

o to review the Group’s compliance with the CG Code and
disclosure requirements in the Corporate Governance
Report.

ACCOUNTABILITY AND AUDIT

DIRECTORS’ RESPONSIBILITIES FOR FINANCIAL
REPORTING IN RESPECT OF FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS

The Directors acknowledge their responsibility for preparing
the financial statements of the Company for the year ended
31 December 2020.

The Board is responsible for presenting a balanced, clear and
understandable assessment of annual and interim reports,
announcements of inside information and other disclosures
required under the Listing Rules and other statutory and
regulatory requirements.

The management of the Company has provided to the
Board such explanation and information as are necessary to
enable the Board to carry out an informed assessment of the
Company’s financial statements, which are put to the Board
for approval.
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RISK MANAGEMENT AND INTERNAL CONTROLS

During the year under review, the Board, through the Audit
Committee, conducted a review of the effectiveness of
the internal control system of the Company including the
adequacy of resources, qualifications and experience of staff
of the Company’s accounting and financial reporting function,
and their training programmes and budget. An internal audit
department has been established to perform regular financial
and operational reviews and conduct audit of the Company
and its subsidiaries. The work carried out by the internal audit
department ensures the internal controls are in place and
functioning properly as intended.

Risk management framework

The Board is responsible for maintaining an adequate risk
management and internal control system to safeguard
shareholder investments and Company assets and with
the support of the Audit Committee, and reviewing the
effectiveness of such system on an annual basis.

The internal control system of the Group is designed to
facilitate effective and efficient operations, to ensure reliability
of financial reporting and compliance with applicable laws
and regulations, to identify and manage potential risks and
to safeguard assets of the Group. The internal auditor and
senior management review and evaluate the control process,
monitors any risk factors on a regular basis, and reports to
the Audit Committee on any findings and measures to address
the variances and identified risks.

The risk management and internal control systems of the
Company are designed to manage rather than eliminate the
risk of failure to achieve business objectives, and can only
provide reasonable and not absolute assurance against
material misstatement or loss.
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RISK MANAGEMENT AND INTERNAL CONTROLS
(continued)

Significant risks and control measures
Business risk

As most of the Group’s customers are property developers
or main contractors of public infrastructure and commercial
buildings, the business and prospects of the Group heavily
depend on the performance of the construction and real
estate industries, which are cyclical and could be significantly
affected by fluctuations in economic conditions.

The time and costs involved in completing construction can
be adversely affected by many factors, including shortage of
materials, equipment and labour, adverse weather conditions,
natural disasters, labour disputes with contractors and
subcontractors, accidents, changes in government priorities,
and other unforeseen problems or circumstances. The
occurrence of any of these factors could give rise to delays in
the completion of a project, which may result in cost overruns
and potential disputes and claims from service recipients.
This may also result in the profit derived from the design,
procurement, production, sale and installation of curtain
wall system not being recognised in the year in which it was
originally anticipated to be recognised.

The industry in which the Group operates is closely related
to the macro-economy and people’s livelihood. Looking back
at 2020, the COVID-19 epidemic caused significant effects to
the world economy in 2020 and major economies experienced
recession to different extent. Many countries continued to
struggle to recover from, and to fight against, the COVID-19
and maintaining economic activities and the volatility of the
COVID-19 caused difficulties in economic recovery. However,
with the domestic COVID-19 epidemic under effective control,
China’s economy showed the trend of recovery and the gross
domestic product expanded by 2.3% year on year, making it
the only major economy with positive economic growth in the
world. In terms of oversea market, as the COVID-19 continues
and the anti-epidemic policies for public health are still in
place. The revenue from overseas market is impacted by the
delays in construction period.
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RISK MANAGEMENT AND INTERNAL CONTROLS
(continued)

Significant risks and control measures (continued)

Business risk (continued)

In order to better respond to the opportunities and challenges
from the changes in economy environment and policies, the
Company carries out in-depth study on the macro-economy
and policies all over the world to implement its strategies
to develop and strengthen penetration of different regional
markets thereby reducing its dependence on specific markets.
The Company has been actively promoting the resumption
of work and production and accelerated the construction
progress at home and abroad, the overall scale of operating
income recovered to about 67% of the same period last year.

Industrial risk

However, the industry will remain polarized and extremely
competitive; leading towards the Matthew Effect of “the strong
becomes stronger” as the sector centralises and segregates.
As the market becomes more concentrated, market share will
quickly gravitate towards leading companies.

The Company has effectively coped with the impact of the
industrial risk, reduced variable costs and integrated fixed
assets. Meanwhile, the Company adhered to technological
innovation and obtained 26 patents in 2020 which empowered
high-quality development of the Group in the future.

Operational risk

Operational risk is the risk of loss resulting from inadequate or
failed internal processes, people and systems or from external
events. Responsibility for managing operational risks basically
rests with every function at divisional and departmental
levels. Delay in supply of construction materials, unskilled
construction workers, safety accidents, natural disasters,
adverse weather and other factors may bring risks such as
construction progress, project cost, construction quality
and customers satisfaction, and thus affecting the results of
operation and reputation of the Company.
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RISK MANAGEMENT AND INTERNAL CONTROLS
(continued)

Significant risks and control measures (continued)
Operational risk (continued)

The Company has established various systems for
management of quality, progress, safety, material and cost of
project development to strengthen the overall management
of construction schedule, quality and safety, reduced
construction risks and emphasize safe development

Compliance risk

The Company’s operation is subject to a wide range of
policies and regulations, including the company ordinance of
the region where it locates, financial and taxation regulations
and regulations in relation to construction and listing rules of
Hong Kong and mainland China etc., and the requirements
and changes of laws, regulations and policies may also affect
the Company. Due to the complexity of the construction
projects, the capability for claiming indemnity may directly
affect the profitability of a project. If the project team’s
experience in claims and counter claims is inadequate to
meet the requirements of the undertaken project, especially
for the overseas projects, if the Company fails to properly
deal with claims and counter claims in some construction
projects where the conditions are complex and the demand is
high, especially for the overseas projects, these will cause a
negative impact on the effectiveness and profitability of such
projects.

The Company has designated special personnel to study new
regulations and policies and make relevant arrangements, and
reflected the requirements of relevant laws and regulations in
its business activities and operation management in a timely
manner. The Company also consults external experts for
handling compliance matters in order to comply with various
relevant regulations, policies and guidelines.

YUANDA CHINA HOLDINGS LIMITED Annual Report 2020

EREERAMEEE)

EXER KB (E)
LERMR(E)

ARBEITHBRAEBRETNEE
HEE LR ME KEAERSRER
MBI EE HE ZEWNEEHE
2R TERE  RHR2RE -

BRE R

RRBIMEBZ BN EZ AR LB RE
g HhBEME R A BRG] - B
BRRISER MEEERS - A RHPEX
ELREBNLEMRAUNE  HBRAE

HBRBMEELTE - ARANEE P&
BTRIAREMEMNE  REEENMEES
TEEERFEEANNE - A5BEIRA
B R REMN R REERIRT W E
RITABATNHRE » £l i TR
B 2REESWIRIER - LHES
SNEE - —BHREMRREEYTF
Al EHUIR B M an X 18 -

ARBIZRYLTEFABEERMBEN
BCETME  UHERAEREREER
EBARBIEZEER - RAEER
AR R - REEELETER
MEER ~ BER M35 -



Corporate Governance Report

RISK MANAGEMENT AND INTERNAL CONTROLS
(continued)

Significant risks and control measures (continued)

Credit risk

The Group is serving a large customer base with different
credit status, and its business development will inevitably be
affected by the varied credit profiles of these customers. Due
to the impact of the COVID-19 epidemic, certain customers
may suffer tight cashflow leading to delays in payment or the
increase of the expected credit loss allowances recognised
for financial and contract assets. The Group seeks to reduce
the aforesaid impact by identifying and managing credit risks
through internal credit management measures, such as credit
search, credit rating, credit limit management, overall credit
risk assessment and stringent credit control against customers
with faulty payment records, as well as by transferring credit
risks through the purchase of credit insurance.

Financial risk

The financial risk management of the Group are set out in
note 29 to the Consolidated Financial Statements.

The Audit Committee reviewed the findings of investigations
on material internal control and the management’s feedback
thereof.

Based on the assessments made by the management and
taking into account the audit works of the independent
auditor, the Board and the Audit Committee considered that
no significant areas of concern in respect of the Group’s risk
management and internal control systems were identified
during the year of 2020.

Based on the review of the effectiveness of the risk
management and internal control systems performed during
the year, the Board considers such systems effective and
adequate.
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COMPANY SECRETARY

Mr. Yu Leung Fai of Yu & Co. CPA Limited, the external
company secretary service provider of the Company, has
been engaged by the Company as its company secretary
since 30 June 2012. The primary corporate contact person
at the Company is Alice Li, the secretary of the Finance and
Securities Department of the Company.

The company secretary’s biography is set out in the section
headed “Directors and Senior Management” of this report.
During the year ended 31 December 2020, the company
secretary undertook over 15 hours of professional training to
update his skills and knowledge.

EXTERNAL AUDITORS AND AUDITORS’
REMUNERATION

The statement of the external auditors of the Company about
their reporting responsibilities for the financial statements
of the Company is set out in the “Independent Auditor’s
Report” on pages 118 to 126.

The remuneration paid to the external auditors of the Company
in respect of audit services for the year ended 31 December
2020 amounted to approximately RMB9.6 million. The external
auditors of the Company provided non-audit services with
contract-value of about RMBO0.9 million to the Company for
the year ended 31 December 2020.

YUANDA CHINA HOLDINGS LIMITED Annual Report 2020

RNAMWE

BN EARIE KX ST BT AR A A
(MARRREINIABIMERBE 2 A
AZR=ELEEEB2012F6 A30H
BIARREEAEARWE - QR
FERABBABRNRR S B KEFI

RAMERERERNARESEERER
EEAE] -8 8 £2020F 12 A 31
HIEFE @ RAWEER15/NEUEZ
HEE - IRARERERAR

SINEE A BB B2 1 B B 2

RN RIINEEAZ BUAD Bh B AR 2 B 9 B 7
BERNPRBENBAFHIINE118E
126 BER[ B R EEN RS | o

MEE2020F 12 A31 B IEFEREEZ
FRT IR M M4 R R INBAZEED S+ 2
HFMHABAREIBHE T ° H E 2020
F12A31BLEFE - AR AN ZE
MAAARIREEENAARK0IE
BITHIEEET AR -



Corporate Governance Report

SHAREHOLDERS’ RIGHTS

Procedures for shareholders of the Company to convene an
extraordinary general meeting (including making proposals/
moving a resolution at the extraordinary general meeting)

° Any one or more shareholders of the Company holding
at the date of deposit of the requisition not less than
one-tenth of the paid up capital of the Company carrying
the right of voting at general meetings of the Company
(the “Eligible Shareholder(s)”) shall at all times have
the right, by written requisition to the Board or the
company secretary of the Company (the “Company
Secretary”), to require an extraordinary general meeting
to be called by the Board for the transaction of any
business specified in such requisition, including making
proposals or moving a resolution at an extraordinary
general meeting.

° Eligible Shareholders who wish to convene an
extraordinary general meeting for the purpose of making
proposals or moving a resolution at an extraordinary
general meeting must deposit a written requisition (the
“Requisition”) signed by the Eligible Shareholder(s)
concerned to the principal place of business of the
Company in Hong Kong at Office 11, 9/F, Fortune
Commercial Building, 362 Sha Tsui Road, Tsuen Wan,
New Territories Hong Kong, for the attention of the
Company Secretary.

° The Requisition must state clearly the name of
the Eligible Shareholder(s) concerned, his/her/their
shareholding in the Company, the reason(s) to convene
an extraordinary general meeting, the agenda proposed
to be included the details of the business(es) proposed
to be transacted in the extraordinary general meeting,
signed by the Eligible Shareholder(s) concerned.

° If within 21 days of the deposit of the Requisition, the
Board has not advised the Eligible Shareholders of
any outcome to the contrary and fails to proceed to
convene an extraordinary general meeting, the Eligible
Shareholder(s) himself/herself/themselves may do so
in accordance with the memorandum and articles
of associations of the Company, and all reasonable
expenses incurred by the Eligible Shareholder(s)
concerned as a result of the failure of the Board shall be
reimbursed to the Eligible Shareholder(s) concerned by
the Company.
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SHAREHOLDERS’ RIGHTS (continued)
Disclaimer

The contents of this sub-section headed “Shareholders’
Rights” are for reference and disclosure compliance purposes
only. The information does not represent and should not
be regarded as legal or other professional advice from the
Company to the shareholders. Shareholders should seek their
own independent legal or other professional advice as to
their rights as shareholders of the Company. The Company
disclaims all liabilities for losses incurred by its shareholders
in reliance on any contents of this sub-section headed
“Shareholders’ Rights”.

Making enquires to the Board

Shareholders may send their enquiries and concerns to the
Board by addressing them to the principal place of business
of the Company in Hong Kong by post through the following
means:

Telephone number:  (86) 24 25273288

By post: 20, Street 13 Shenyang Economic
& Technological Development Area,
Shenyang, 110027, China

Attention: Investor Relations Department

By email: investors@yuandacn.com

INVESTOR RELATIONS

Amendments to the articles of association of the Company

During the year under review, the Company has not made any
changes to its articles of association. An up-to-date version of
the Company’s articles of association is also available on the
Company’s website and the Stock Exchange’s website.
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INVESTOR RELATIONS (continued)

Investors communication policy

The Company regards the communication with institutional
investors as important means to enhance the transparency
of the Company and collect views and feedbacks from
institutional investors. To promote effective communication,
the Company maintains a website at www.yuandacn.com,
where up-to-date information and updates on the Company’s
business operations and developments, financial information,
corporate governance practices and other information are
posted are available for public access. During the year under
review, the directors and senior management of the Company
participated in numerous road shows and investment
conferences. In addition, the Company also maintains regular
communication with the media through press conferences,
news releases to the media and on the Company’s website,
and answering enquiries from the media.

The general meetings of the Company provide a forum for
communication between the Board and the shareholders of
the Company with face-to-face dialogue with the shareholders.
The Chairman of the Board as well as chairmen of each of
the Nomination Committee, Remuneration Committee and
Audit Committee or, in their absence, other members of the
respective committees and, where applicable, the chairman
of the independent Board committee, are available to answer
questions at general meetings.

The annual general meeting regarding the financial results for
the year ended 31 December 2020 (“AGM”) will be held on 2
June 2021. The notice of AGM will be sent to shareholders of
the Company at least 21 clear business days before the AGM.

DIVIDEND POLICY

Any declaration of dividends will depend upon a number of
factors including earnings and financial conditions, operation
requirements, capital requirements and any other conditions
that any other Directors may deem or are relevant and will be
subject to the approval of our shareholders of the Company.
There can be no assurance that dividends of any amount will
be declared or distributed in any given year.
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Report of the Board of Directors
EEg®RE

The Directors of the Company are pleased to present their
report and the audited financial statements for the year ended
31 December 2020 of the Group.

BUSINESS REVIEW AND PERFORMANCE

A review of the business of the Group and a discussion and
analysis of the Group’s performance during the year under
review and a discussion on the Group’s future business
development and outlook of the Company’s business, possible
risks and uncertainties that the Group may be facing and
important events affecting the Company occurred during the
year ended 31 December 2020 are provided in the section
headed “Management Discussion and Analysis” on pages 9
to 20 of this annual report. An account of the Company’s
relationships with its key stakeholders is included in the
paragraph headed “Relationships with Employees, Suppliers
and Customers” of the Report of the Directors on page 58 of
this annual report.

An analysis of the Group’s performance during the year ended
31 December 2020 using financial performance indicators
is provided in the section headed “Management Discussion
and Analysis” on pages 9 to 20 of this annual report and the
Group’s “Five Year Financial Summary” on page 268 of this
annual report.

In addition, more details regarding the Group’s performance by
reference to environmental and social-related key performance
indicators and policies, as well as compliance with relevant
laws and regulations which have a significant impact on the
Company are provided in the report headed “Environmental,
Social and Governance” on pages 78 to 117 of this annual
report.
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Report of the Board of Directors

ENVIRONMENTAL PROTECTION

Environmental conservation remains a key focus for the
Group. The conscientious use of resources and adoption of
best practices across the Group’s businesses underlie its
commitment to safeguarding the environment. The Group
encourages environmental protection and complies with
environmental legislation and promotes awareness towards
environmental protection to the employees.

The PRC government has imposed strict requirements of the
laws of production safety and environmental protection for
enterprises. Since the PRC government is adopting laws on
strengthening environmental protection from time to time and
implementing stricter environmental protection standards, it
is expected that the Group will have to comply with more
regulations in the future. In addition, the Group predicts this
trend will continue and additional expenses may be incurred
for complying with new regulations, thus increasing the
Group’s operating costs.

To cope with the risk, not only are we certified with ISO
14001 Environmental Management System, but we have also
set up an Environmental Division to monitor and manage
the environmental performance of our plants and maintain
communication with the Ministry of Environmental Protection.
In addition, the Group has been optimising its management
system for safety and environmental protection, regularly
keeping abreast of the relevant laws and regulations of
environmental protection in order to ensure full compliance
with local laws of environmental protection. Further details are
set forth in the Environmental, Social and Governance Report
as set forth in this annual report

MAJOR BUSINESS

The Company is principally engaged in the provision of one-
stop integrated curtain wall solutions for its customers to meet
the technical specifications and performance requirements of
their projects. The analysis of the revenue of the Group for the
year is set out in Note 4 to the Financial Statements.
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Report of the Board of Directors
EEg®RE

FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The profit of the Group for the year ended 31 December 2020
and financial condition of the Company and the Group as at
that date are set out in the Financial Statements on pages
127 to 130.

SHARE CAPITAL

The changes in the share capital of Company during the
year ended 31 December 2020 are set out in Note 27 to the
Financial Statements.

FINAL DIVIDENDS

The Board has resolved not to declare any annual dividend for
the year ended 31 December 2020.

There is no arrangement that a shareholder of the Company
has waived or agreed to waive any dividend.

BOOK CLOSURE PERIOD AND RECORD DATE

For the purpose in determining who will be eligible to attend
and vote at the Annual General Meeting, the register of
members of the Company will be closed from Friday, 28 May
2021 to Wednesday, 2 June 2021 (both days inclusive), during
which time no transfer of shares will be registered. To ensure
that the shareholders of the Company are entitled to attend
and vote at the Annual General Meeting, the shareholders
must deliver their duly stamped instruments of transfer,
accompanied by the relevant share certificates, to the Group’s
share registrar in Hong Kong, Computershare Hong Kong
Investor Services Limited, at Room 1712-1716, 17th Floor,
Hopewell Centre, 183 Queen’s Road East, Wanchai, Hong
Kong by no later than 4:30 p.m. on Thursday, 27 May 2021
for registration of the relevant transfer.
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Report of the Board of Directors

RESERVE

Details of movements in reserve of the Group during the year
ended 31 December 2020 are set out in the Consolidated
Statement of Changes in Equity of the Financial Statements.
Details of movements in the reserves of the Company during
the year are set out in Note 27 to the Financial Statements.

DISTRIBUTABLE RESERVES

Under the Companies Law of the Cayman lIslands, the share
premium of the Company is available for distribution of
dividends to the shareholders subject to the provisions of the
Company’s Articles of Associations, and with the sanction of
an ordinary resolution, dividend may be declared and paid out
of share premium account or any other fund or account which
can be authorized for this propose. As at 31 December 2020,
the distributable reserves from share premium of the Company
were RMB574.0 million (31 December 2019: RMB574.0
million).

PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENTS

The changes in property, plant and equipments of the Group
during the year ended 31 December 2020 are set out in Note
11 to the Financial Statements.

MAJOR CUSTOMERS AND SUPPLIERS

During the year under review, the percentage of purchases
attributable the Group’s five largest suppliers in aggregate to
the Group’s total purchase and the percentage of turnover
attributable to the Group’s five largest customers in aggregate
to the Group’s total turnover are less than 30%, respectively.

Save as disclosed herein, so far as is known to the Directors,
none of the Directors or his/her close associates and none
of the shareholders possessing over 5% of the interest in the
share capital of the Company possessed any interest in the
abovementioned suppliers and customers.
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Report of the Board of Directors
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RELATIONSHIPS WITH EMPLOYEES, SUPPLIERS AND
CUSTOMERS

The Group understands that employees are valuable assets.
The Group provides competitive remuneration package to
attract and motivate the employees. The Group regularly
reviews the remuneration package of employees and makes
necessary adjustments to conform to the market standard.

The Group’s business is built on a customer-oriented culture.
The Group also understands that it is important to maintain
good relationship with its suppliers and customers to fulfil
its immediate and long-term goals. To maintain its market
competitiveness within the industry, the Group aims at
delivering constantly high standards and high quality products
to its customers. During the year under review, there was no
material and significant dispute between the Group and its
most suppliers and/or customers.

DIRECTORS

The Directors in office during the year and as of the date of
this report are as follows:

Executive Directors

Kang Baohua (Chairman)

Li Hongren (resigned on 22 July 2020)

Liu Futao (Chief Executive Officer)

Ma Minghu

Wang Hao

Zhao Zhongqiu (appointed on 22 July 2020)
Zhang Lei

Independent non-executive Directors

Poon Chiu Kwok
Woo Kar Tung, Raymond
Pang Chung Fai, Benny

Biographical details of the directors and senior management
are set forth in the section “Directors and Senior
Management” of this report.
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Report of the Board of Directors

SERVICE CONTRACTS OF DIRECTORS

Details of service contracts for our executive Directors and
non-executive Directors of the Company are set out under the
section headed “Appointment and Re-election of Directors”
of the Corporate Governance Report. There was no service
contract entered by the Company and any Directors to be re-
elected in the coming annual general meeting stipulating that
the Company may not terminate the appointment within one
year without compensation payment (other than the statutory
compensation).

DIRECTORS’ INTERESTS IN CONTRACTS

Other than those transactions disclosed in Note 28 to
the Financial Statements, there was no other transaction,
arrangement or contract of significance with any member of
the Group as the contracting party and in which the Directors
of the Company possessed direct or indirect material interests,
and which was still valid on the year end date or any time
during the year and related to the business of the Group.

CONTROLLING SHAREHOLDERS’ INTERESTS IN
CONTRACTS OF SIGNIFICANCE

There was no other contract of significance in relation to
the Group’s business to which the Company, any of its
subsidiaries or its holding company was a party and in which
a controlling shareholder had a material interest, whether
directly or indirectly, subsisted at the end of the year or at any
time during the year ended 31 December 2020.

EEEHRS

EERBEN

BERARRIEATESTRFNTESH
RBFENFAENEEEERETE
ERENERE ]| - ARAHE R
REERRAFAEGEENERII LA
RERAI R FRR TR ERECRE
BRERINBORIEEH

EERNEHANER

BRI IRARMI T 28 BRI Z F I - W
AEBKB AR BIINTMARRES
REPHEEEEIEERERERE - AR
F 45 B S (AT R R 47D 98 AR 28 R B R

SEXBEBENEBEARS  THR
BHY e

EBRBRRREASH ZERE

REE20205F 12 A31 HIEFEENEF
AEAEER - ARE - EAEAENE
NCIEE S YNGR T VALY 3
REEXIFEEREREEEAMHER
SEXBGHEBNERSL -

WA PRBRARAT | T R

=<




Report of the Board of Directors
EEg®RE

DIRECTORS’ INTERESTS IN COMPETITIVE BUSINESS

Our Chairman, Mr. Kang Baohua, owns and through Best
Outlook Limited (“Best Outlook”) and Neo Pioneer Limited
(“Neo Pioneer”) owns in aggregate approximately 56.73%
of the issued share capital in the Company as at the date
of this report of the Board. Mr. Kang Baohua, Best Outlook
and Neo Pioneer are the controlling shareholders of the
Company. Mr. Kang Baohua also owns 100% interest in
Yuanda Aluminium Industry Engineering (Singapore) Pte.
Ltd. (“Yuanda Singapore”) through Yuanda Group, which is
owned by Mr. Kang Baohua. Yuanda Singapore is primarily
engaged in curtain wall works and trading as well as
investment holding. Although the Company has established
a wholly owned subsidiary in Singapore to carry out curtain
wall contracting projects, the ability to contract for large-
scale public curtain wall projects in Singapore is dependent
on local contracting experience. Given the lack of direct local
contracting experience, the Group has been cooperating with
Yuanda Singapore on the contracting of large scale public
curtain wall projects in Singapore during the last five years
and will continue to supply curtain wall products to Yuanda
Singapore until the Company’s wholly owned subsidiary will
be able to undertake such projects in Singapore on its own.
Please see the section headed “Connected Transactions’
in the prospectus of the Company dated 20 April 2011
(the “Prospectus”) for details. For the aforesaid purpose,
Yuanda Singapore has been excluded from the deed of non-
competition (“Deed of Non-competition”) provided by the
controlling shareholders to the Company on 21 April 2011.

The Company has received an annual written confirmation
from each of the Company’s controlling shareholders in
respect of the compliance by them and their associates
with the Deed of Non-competition. Each of the controlling
shareholders of the Company have also confirmed that all of
them have abided by the Deed of Non-competition during the
year ended 31 December 2020.
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Report of the Board of Directors

DIRECTORS’ INTERESTS IN COMPETITIVE BUSINESS
(continued)

The independent non-executive Directors have reviewed the
Deed of Non-competition, the confirmation given by each
of the Company’s controlling shareholder and whether the
controlling shareholders have abided by the non-competition
undertaking under the Deed of Non-competition. The
independent non-executive Directors confirmed that they had
determined that the controlling shareholders have not been in
breach of the Deed of Non-competition during the year ended
31 December 2020.

Save as disclosed, no Directors nor their respective connected
persons possessed any interests in any business that
competed or might compete with the business that the Group
conducted.

PERMITTED INDEMNITY PROVISION

Each Director or other officer of the Company shall be entitled
to be indemnified and secured harmless out of the assets and
profits of the Company from and against all actions, costs,
charges, losses, damages and expenses which he or she may
incur or sustain in or about the execution of the duties of his
or her office or otherwise in relation thereto in accordance
with the Company’s articles of association.
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Report of the Board of Directors
EEg®RE

SHARE OPTION SCHEME

On 12 April 2011, the Company adopted a share option
scheme (“Share Option Scheme”) whereby the Board
of Directors can grant options for the subscription of the
Company’s shares to the employees, managerial staff and
senior employees of the Group and those other persons that
the Board of Directors considers that they will contribute
or have contributed to the Group (the “Participants”) as
described in the Share Option Scheme in order to serve as
compliment and to reciprocate their contribution to the Group.
The maximum number of shares that may be issued under
the Share Option Scheme was 600,000,000 shares which
is equivalent to 10% of the issued capital of the Company
after completion of the Global Offering (as defined in the
Prospectus). The number of shares that may be granted
pursuant to the terms of the Share Option Scheme shall not
exceed 10% of the issued shares of the Company immediately
after the completion of the Global Offering. Unless otherwise
approved by the shareholders of the Company in general
meeting, the number of shares that may be granted to the
Participants under the Share Option Scheme shall not exceed
1% within any 12-month period (other than those granted to
the substantial shareholders (as defined in the Listing Rules)),
or the total number of shares that may be granted under the
options to the independent non-executive Directors or any of
their respective connected persons shall not exceed 0.1% of
the shares in issue of the Company from time to time. There
is no minimum period that the options must be held before
they become exercisable, and the options granted shall be
exercised within the period decided by the Board of Directors,
and however no options shall be exercised 10 years after they
have been granted. The exercise price of the option shall be
the highest of:

(@) the closing price of the Shares on the daily quotation
sheet of the Stock Exchange on the date of grant;

(b) the average closing price of the Shares on the daily
quotation sheet of the Stock Exchange for the five
business days immediately preceding the date of grant;
and

(c) nominal value of the Share.
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Report of the Board of Directors

SHARE OPTION SCHEME (continued)

Each grantee shall pay a consideration of HK$1.00 at the time
the option is granted.

The Share Option Scheme shall take effect from the date it is
adopted and shall remain effective within a period of 10 years
from that date.

Since the Share Option Scheme was adopted, no options
have been granted.

SHARE AWARD SCHEME

A share award scheme (the “Share Award Scheme”) was
adopted on 10 April 2013 to recognize and motivate the
contributions made to the Group by its employees and to
give incentives in order to retain them for the continuous
operation and development of the Group. For the year ended
31 December 2020, no shares had been awarded under the
Share Award Scheme. Details of the rules of the Share Award
Scheme are set out in the announcement of the Company
dated 10 April 2013.

The Share Award Scheme shall be valid and effective for a
term of 10 years commencing on the date of adoption on 10
April 20183. Pursuant to the Share Award Scheme, the shares
will be acquired by the independent trustee at the cost of the
Company and be held in trust for the selected employees
until the end of each vesting period. The maximum number of
shares which may be granted to the selected employees under
the Share Award Scheme shall not exceed five percent (5%)
of the total issued share capital of the Company from time to
time. The maximum number of shares which may be awarded
to a selected employee under the Share Award Scheme shall
not exceed one percent (1%) of the total issued share capital
of the Company from time to time.

On 29 July 2020, the Group terminated the Share Award
Scheme. Details of termination of the Share Award Scheme
are set out in the announcement of the Company dated 29
July 2020.
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DEBENTURE

For the year ended 31 December 2020, the Company, its
holding company or its subsidiaries were not the contracting
parties of any arrangements from which the Directors could
make a profit by purchasing the shares or debentures of the
Company or any other companies.

EQUITY-LINKED AGREEMENTS

Save for the Share Option Scheme disclosed above, the
Company has not entered into any equity-linked agreements
during the year ended 31 December 2020.

INTEREST AND SHORT POSITIONS OF DIRECTORS
IN THE SHARES, UNDERLYING SHARES AND
DEBENTURES

As at 31 December 2020, the interest or short position of the
Directors or chief executives of the Company in the shares,
underlying shares and debentures of the Company or its
associated corporations (within the meaning of Part XV of
the Securities and Futons Ordinance (the “SFO”) which were
required, pursuant to section 352 of the SFO, to be entered in
the register referred to therein, or which would be required to
be notified to the Company and the Stock Exchange, pursuant
to Model Code, are as follows:
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INTEREST AND SHORT POSITIONS OF DIRECTORS
IN THE SHARES, UNDERLYING SHARES AND

DEBENTURES (continued)

(i)

Interest of the Company

Name of Director

EEpR

Kang Baohua

Li Hongren

(resigned on 22 July 2020)
FHA

(R20204 7 A 22 A )
Liu Futao
geE
Ma Minghui
A
Wang Hao
T2
Zhao Zhongqiu

(appointed on 22 July 2020)
A

(R2020%F7 522 HEZ(F)
Zhang Lei
K&

Nature of Interest

BEEE

Beneficial owner

EnBAA

Interest of controlled corporation

RELEN RS

Beneficial owner

EnEAA

Beneficial owner
EnEAA
Beneficial owner
EREAA
Beneficial owner
BEREAA

Beneficial owner

EnBAA

Beneficial owner

EoBAA

* Number of shares as at 22 July 2020

Notes: Bisr -
(1) The letter “L” denotes long position in such securities. (1)
2) Of the shares held by Mr. Kang Baohua, 2,582,971,923 2)
Shares were held by Best Outlook Limited and
937,924,771 Shares were held by Neo Pioneer Limited,
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Number of Shares
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EERKRND - HERORESFNER
Rxkm(#E)

Approximate
Percentage of
Shareholding

R4 EE REMLOEI
228,636,000 (L) 3.68%
3,520,896,694 (L) 56.71%
831,333 (L)* 0.01%
3,603,333 (L) 0.06%

0 0

150,000 (L) 0.01%

0 0

3,000,000 (L) 0.05%

* EIER 2020F 7 B 22 HEI R (D &L

both companies of which are wholly-owned by Mr. Kang

Baohua.
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INTEREST AND SHORT POSITIONS OF DIRECTORS
IN THE SHARES, UNDERLYING SHARES AND
DEBENTURES (continued)

(i)  Interest in associated corporations

Name of Associated

Name of Director Corporation
Y HEZE S8
Kang Baohua Best Outlook Limited
REE ERBERAA
Kang Baohua Neo Pioneer Limited
REE ¥EIBRRA

(1) The letter “L" denotes long position in such securities.

Save as disclosed above, as at 31 December 2020, none
of the Directors or chief executives of the Company had
any interests or short positions in the shares, underlying
shares and debentures of the Company or its associated
corporations which were required to be recorded in the
register kept by the Company pursuant to section 352 of
the SFO, or as otherwise notified to the Company and the
Stock Exchange pursuant to the Model Code.
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Report of the Board of Directors

SUBSTANTIAL SHAREHOLDERS’ INTERESTS AND
SHORT POSITIONS

As at the date 31 December 2020, the following persons
(other than the Directors and chief executives of the Company)
had an interest and/or short position in the shares or
underlying shares of the Company which were recorded in the
register required to be kept by the Company under section
336 of SFO:

Interest of the company

Name Capacity

=L &%

Best Outlook Limited"” Beneficial owner

EEARLA" Emfa A
Neo Pioneer Limited? Beneficial owner
HAERAT? BEnlEAA

Notes:

(1) Best Outlook Limited and Neo Pioneer Limited are companies
incorporated in the BVI and are wholly-owned by Mr. Kang
Baohua.

(2)  The letter “L” denotes long position in such securities.

Save as disclosed above, as at 31 December 2020, the
Directors are not aware of any persons, other than a Director
or chief executives of the Company, had any interests or
short positions in the shares and underlying shares of the
Company as recorded in the register required to be kept by
the Company pursuant to section 336 of the SFO.

SUBSIDIARIES

Details of the major subsidiaries of the Company as of 31
December 2020 are set out in Note 14 to the Financial
Statements.
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MANAGEMENT CONTRACTS

No contracts concerning the management and administration
of the whole or any substantial part of the business of the
Company were entered into or existed during the year under
review.

CONNECTED TRANSACTIONS

Connected transactions which are subject to the Reporting,
Announcement and Independent Shareholders’ Approval

On 30 September 2020, Shenyang Yuanda, a wholly-owned
subsidiary of the Company, entered into the Automatic
Production And Intelligent Storage Facilities Agreement with
Yuanda Robot, pursuant to which Yuanda Robot agreed to
sell automatic production and intelligent storage facilities
and to supply software development and design services to
Shenyang Yuanda at the consideration of RMB35 million. On
the same date, Shenyang Yuanda entered into the Technical
Service Agreement with Yuanda Robot, pursuant to which
Yuanda Robot agreed to provide Shenyang Yuanda with
automation upgrade and lean production service for the whole
production process at the consideration of RMB5 million

Yuanda Robot is a wholly-owned subsidiary of Shenyang
Yuanda Intellectual Industry Group Co., Ltd., a company
owned as to 37.96% by Shenyang Yuanda Aluminium Industry
Group Ltd, which is owned as to 99% by Mr. Kang Baohua,
executive Director and controlling shareholder of the company,
Accordingly, Yuanda Robot is a connected person of the
Company under chapter 14A of the Listing Rules.

Details of the above transactions are set out in the circular
of the Company dated 20 November 2020 and approved
at an extraordinary general meeting of the Company on 10
December 2020.

The Company has complied with the disclosure requirements
prescribed in Chapter 14A of the Listing Rules with respect to
the connected transactions entered into by the Group during
the year ended 31 December 2020.
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Report of the Board of Directors

CONFIRMATION OF INDEPENDENT STATUS

The Company received the letters of confirmation of
independence issued by all the independent non-executive
Directors in accordance with Rule 3.13 of the Listing Rules.

The Board has noted that as at 31 December 2020, Mr.
Poon Chiu Kwok held directorships in more than seven
Hong Kong listed companies (including the Company).
However, the Board is of the view that Mr. Poon would still
be able to devote sufficient time to the Board. Mr. Poon as
a FCPA (Aust.), Chartered Secretary, Executive Director of a
listed company and an experienced trainer to the securities
participants and listed company management keeping himself
abreast of the latest governance trends of the companies
listed in HK by attend seminar and self-studying of related
articles with over 80 hours in 2020 and has strong experience
in corporate governance and is familiar with management of
Hong Kong listed companies. During the year 2020, based
on the attendance record in the meetings of the Company,
Mr. Poon has participated in all Board meetings and has
good communication with the Board and other independent
non-executive Directors and performs his obligations and
responsibility gives impartial advice and suggestion as an
independent non-executive director.

The Board of Directors was satisfied with the independent
status of all the independent non-executive Directors.

USE OF PROCEEDS FROM INITIAL PUBLIC OFFERING

The details are disclosed in the paragraph “Global offering
and use of proceeds” under the section “Management
Discussion and Analysis”.
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KUWAIT AND QATAR OPERATIONS

The Group owns only 49% of the equity interests of its
operating companies, Yuanda Kuwait General Contracting
for Buildings Underes (“Yuanda Kuwait”) and Yuanda Qatar
Aluminium Industry Engineering Co., W.L.L. (“Yuanda Qatar”),
in Kuwait and Qatar respectively, as both Kuwait and Qatar
laws do not allow foreign companies to own a majority interest
in a local operating company. The Group had no operation
in Qatar prior to the establishment of Yuanda Qatar and prior
to the establishment of Yuanda Kuwait, the Group supplied
products to a local company for projects it undertook in
Kuwait.

Yuanda Kuwait

Under Kuwait law, the Group is not allowed to own a majority
interest in the local operating company. In order to enable it
to govern and control the financial and operation of Yuanda
Kuwait and capture its entire economic interest from its
operations, the Group entered into an agreement on 30 March
2009 (the “Kuwait Incorporation Agreement”) with Mr.
Mohamed Tareq Al Essa (the “Kuwait Local Partner”), an
independent third party, pursuant to which the Kuwait Local
Partner agreed to be the facilitator of the Group in relation to
the conduct of the Group’s business in Kuwait. Pursuant to
the Kuwait Incorporation Agreement, the Kuwait Local Partner
has declared that:

° all the capital and assets belong to Shenyang Yuanda;

° he has no share (and hence no voting rights) or the right
to get any share in Yuanda Kuwait or any entitlement to
the profit of Yuanda Kuwait;

° he is not involved in the day-to-day operation of
Yuanda Kuwait, save for assisting Yuanda Kuwait with
coordination with the local government authorities;

° all works in relation to tendering, execution of contracts
and collection of proceeds are carried out by Yuanda
Kuwait under the management of Shenyang Yuanda;
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KUWAIT AND QATAR OPERATIONS (continued)

Yuanda Kuwait (continued)

° he would not be held liable for any losses; and

° the above terms in the Kuwait Incorporation Agreement
is irrevocable for three years effective from the date of
signing and will be automatically renewed for a similar
period unless and until terminated by both parties with a
notice at least 90 days in advance.

Through the above arrangement, the Group is able to
control the operation of Yuanda Kuwait. As advised by the
legal advisors of the Company as to Kuwait law, the Kuwait
Incorporation Agreement is legal, valid and binding to its
parties and constitutes legally binding and enforceable
obligations against the Kuwait Local Partner under Kuwait
law and is in compliance with the laws and regulations of
Kuwait. Based on the above, and in accordance with relevant
accounting standards, the Group consolidated Yuanda Kuwait
into its consolidated financial statements as a wholly-owned
subsidiary.

As disclosed in the Prospectus and the annual report of the
Company in respect of the year ended 31 December 2011,
notwithstanding that the Company considers that it is able to
effectively operate and conduct the business of Yuanda Kuwait
under the present arrangement, the Company has undertaken
that in order to protect the interests of the Company, it will
introduce further measures, including using our best efforts
to amend the terms of the Kuwait Incorporation Agreement,
by entering into supplemental agreements that would include,
among others, revisions that the Kuwait Local Partner will not
transfer any of its shares in Yuanda Kuwait without the prior
written consent of the Company, it will vote for any resolutions
of Yuanda Kuwait in accordance with the instruction of the
Company, and if there shall be any change to the Kuwait
laws or regulations and/or policies such that a foreign entity
becomes legally entitled to hold a majority interest in Yuanda
Kuwait, it will promptly transfer its relevant interest in Yuanda
Kuwait to the extent permitted by the then applicable laws or
regulations to Shenyang Yuanda to enable the Company to
become the majority shareholder of Yuanda Kuwait.
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KUWAIT AND QATAR OPERATIONS (continued)
Yuanda Kuwait (continued)

If the above additional measures cannot be implemented, there
will not be any legal consequences assumed by the Company
arising solely as a result of the Company’s failure to enter into
the supplemental agreements to implement these additional
measures. However, in order to better protect the Company’s
interests, the Company will search for a replacement for its
existing local partner who is willing to enter into a cooperation
agreement with the Company that will contain the terms of the
abovementioned additional measures which are in compliance
with the requirements of the Stock Exchange.

As of the date of this annual report, the Company is
still in negotiation with the Kuwait Local Partner on the
implementation of the above additional measures and the
Company will disclose any measures implemented and/or
replacement of existing local partner in the Company’s future
annual reports.

Yuanda Qatar

Under Qatar law, the Group is not allowed to own a majority
interest in the local operating company. In order to enable the
Company to govern and control the financial and operation of
Yuanda Qatar and capture its entire economic interest from its
operations, the Company has entered into the memorandum
of association of Yuanda Qatar dated 20 January 2008 (the
“Qatar Articles”) with Mr. Ahmed Omar Bbhaa Ahmed
(the “Qatar Local Partner”), an independent third party,
and an agreement dated September 16, 2007 (the “Qatar
Incorporation Agreement”) entered into between Shenyang
Yuanda and Actrade for Trading & Contracting, a company of
which the Qatar Local Partner was the authorized signatory
with respect to the governing of the operation of Yuanda
Qatar.
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Report of the Board of Directors

KUWAIT AND QATAR OPERATIONS (continued)

Yuanda Qatar (continued)

Pursuant to the Qatar Articles and the Qatar Incorporation
Agreement, Yuanda Qatar was established and held as to
51% by the Qatar Local Partner and as to 49% by Shenyang
Yuanda. Pursuant to the Qatar Articles:

° representatives of Shenyang Yuanda are responsible
for managing the company during the entire term of its
existence;

° profits of the company will be distributed as to 95%
to Shenyang Yuanda and as to 5% to the Qatar Local
Partner;

The Qatar Articles were supplemented by the Qatar
Incorporation Agreement pursuant to which it was agreed that:

° the Qatar Local Partner will facilitate Shenyang Yuanda
to conduct business in Qatar;

o instead of receiving dividends from Yuanda Qatar, the
Qatar Local Partner will be paid an annual service fee
of US$40,000 plus a scalable commission calculated
based on 1% to 5% of the contract value of projects
that Yuanda Qatar won with the assistance of the Qatar
Local Partner;

° the dividends declared by Yuanda Qatar may be used to
offset and settle any service fees due or payable to the
Qatar Local Partner;

° save for assisting Yuanda Qatar with coordination with
the local government authorities, the Qatar Local Partner
is not involved in the day-to-day operations of Yuanda
Qatar;

° all works in relation to tendering, execution of contracts
and collection of proceeds are carried out by Yuanda
Qatar under the management of Shenyang Yuanda.
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Report of the Board of Directors
EEg®RE

KUWAIT AND QATAR OPERATIONS (continued)
Yuanda Qatar (continued)

As advised by the legal advisors of the Company as to Qatar
law, subject to the Qatar Articles, the Qatar Incorporation
Agreement is legal, valid, binding and enforceable under
Qatar law, and as the Qatar Incorporation Agreement and
the Qatar Articles are related to the same subject matter,
the Qatar Incorporation Agreement is considered to be
an explanatory to the Qatar Articles under Qatar law. The
Company’s legal advisors as to Qatar law has further
advised that the Qatar Articles is a validly binding and legally
enforceable document and constitutes legal, valid, binding
and enforceable obligations of the parties thereto with respect
to the governance of the affairs of Yuanda Qatar and is in
compliance with the relevant laws and regulations of Qatar
and the Qatar Incorporation Agreement is enforceable against
the Qatar Local Partner.

The Company entered into this arrangement in Qatar in order
to enable it to control and operate Yuanda Qatar and capture
the economic interest from its operations, and these are
supported by the following terms in the Qatar Articles and the
Qatar Incorporation Agreement:

° the representatives from Shenyang Yuanda are entitled
to similar responsibilities and authorities in Yuanda Qatar
as board members in other subsidiaries of Shenyang
Yuanda;

° the representatives from Shenyang Yuanda are
responsible for managing Yuanda Qatar during the entire
term of its existence and they may not be removed
without the approval from Shenyang Yuanda;

o resolutions of the shareholders of Yuanda Qatar will only
be valid by approval from a majority of the shareholders
holding 75% of the shares in Yuanda Qatar;
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Report of the Board of Directors

KUWAIT AND QATAR OPERATIONS (continued)

Yuanda Qatar (continued)

o Yuanda Qatar is managed exclusively by Shenyang
Yuanda and its representatives for the period of its
existence. Shenyang Yuanda and its representatives
shall have full and absolute authority and exclusive right
to manage and operate the business of Yuanda Qatar.
Such powers are irrevocable and the Qatar Local Partner
may not intervene in managing the company or bind or
commit Yuanda Qatar in any way whatsoever except
with prior written consent from Shenyang Yuanda;

° Pursuant to the Qatar Articles, the profits of Yuanda
Qatar will be distributed as to 95% to Shenyang
Yuanda and as to 5% the Qatar Local Partner, while the
dividends declared by Shenyang Yuanda may be used to
offset and settle any service fees due or payable under
the management of Shenyang Yuanda under the Qatar
Incorporation Agreement.

Based on the above, and in accordance with relevant
accounting standards, the Group consolidated Yuanda Qatar
into its consolidated financial statement as a wholly owned
subsidiary of the Group.

As disclosed in the Prospectus and subsequent annual reports
of the Company, notwithstanding that the Company considers
that it is able to effectively operate and conduct the business
of Yuanda Qatar under the present arrangement, the Company
has undertaken that in order to protect the interests of the
Company, it will introduce further measures, including using
its best efforts to amend the terms of the Qatar Incorporation
Agreement, by entering into supplemental agreements that
would include, among others, provisions that the Qatar Local
Partner will not transfer any of its shares in Yuanda Qatar
without the Company’s prior written consent, it will vote
for any resolutions of Yuanda Qatar in accordance with our
instruction, and if there shall be any change to the Qatar
laws or regulations and/or policies such that a foreign entity
becomes legally entitled to hold a majority interest in Yuanda
Qatar, it will promptly transfer its relevant interest in Yuanda
Qatar to the extent permitted by the then applicable laws or
regulations to Shenyang Yuanda to enable the Company to
become the majority shareholder in Yuanda Qatar.
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Report of the Board of Directors
EEg®RE

KUWAIT AND QATAR OPERATIONS (continued)
Yuanda Qatar (continued)

If the above additional measures cannot be implemented,
there will not be any legal consequences to the Company
arising solely as a result of our failure to enter into the
supplemental agreements to implement these additional
measures. However, in order to better protect the Company’s
interests, the Company will search for a replacement for its
existing local partner who is willing to enter into a cooperation
agreement with the Company that will contain the terms of the
abovementioned additional measures which are in compliance
with the requirements of the Stock Exchange.

As of the date of this annual report, the Company is still
negotiation with the Qatar Local Partner on the implementation
of the above additional measures and the Company will
disclose any measures implemented and/or replacement of its
existing local partner in its future annual reports.

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE

Principal corporate governance practices adopted by the
Company are set out in the Corporate Governance Report in
this report.

PURCHASE, SALE OR REDEMPTION OF LISTED
SECURITIES OF THE GROUP

Save as disclosed in Note 24 to the Consolidated Financial
Statement, neither the Company nor any of its subsidiaries
had purchased, sold or redeemed any of the listed securities
of the Company

DISCLOSURE UNDER RULE 13.20 OF THE LISTING
RULES

The Directors are not aware of any circumstances resulting in
the responsibility of disclosure under Rule 13.20 of the Listing
Rules regarding the provision of advances by the Company to
an entity.
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Report of the Board of Directors

FIVE YEAR FINANCIAL SUMMARY

The summary of the results, assets and liabilities of the Group
in the past five years is set out on page 268 of this report.

PRE-EMPTIVE RIGHTS

There is no provision regarding pre-emptive rights in the
Articles of Association of the Company or the ordinance
of Cayman Islands, stipulating that any new shares shall
be offered according to the respective shareholding of the
existing shareholders of the Company when new shares are
issued by the Company.

TAX RELIEF

The Directors are not aware of any tax relief to which
shareholders the Company are entitled by reason of their
holdings of the Company’s securities.

SUFFICIENT PUBLIC FLOAT

Based on the information that is publicly available to the
Group and within the knowledge of the Directors as at the
date of this report, the Group maintained adequate public float
throughout the year ended 31 December 2020.

AUDITOR
The Company appointed KPMG as the Auditor of the
Company for the year ended 31 December 2020. The

Company will submit a resolution in the coming annual general
meeting to re-appoint KPMG as the Auditor of the Company.

By order of the Board

Kang Baohua
Chairman

31 March 2021
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Environmental, Social and Governance

R 4 ERERERS

INTRODUCTION

This is the ESG report of Yuanda China Holdings Limited (the
“Company” and together with its subsidiaries, the “Group”)
for the year ended 31 December 2020. The principal activities
of the Group are the design, procurement, production, sale
and installation of curtain wall systems.

The Company believes that this ESG Report enables the
Company to communicate the Group’s sustainability related
matters in a transparent and accountable manner, which
is key to gaining the trust of its stakeholders. The Group
is committed to making continuous contribution to the
sustainable development in China and overseas, and fulfilling
corporate social responsibilities at various operational levels.
This ESG Report provides an overview of the Group’s
performance related to sustainable development in the areas
of the environment, community, employment and labor
practices and operation convention for the year ended 31
December 2020, with a coverage of the Company’s PRC
office and its operation sites.

Reporting standard and scope

This ESG Report has been prepared with reference to the ESG
Reporting Guide as set forth under Appendix 27 of the Listing
Rules. A detailed ESG content index has been included at
the back of this report to aid the reader and facilitate greater
transparency. This is the Company’s annual ESG Report, it
describes the initiatives of the Group and its progress with
regard to ESG issues for the period from 1 January 2020 to
31 December 2020.

This ESG report covers the Group’s overall performance in
four production bases located in Shenyang, Chengdu, Foshan
and Shanghai in Mainland China from 1 January 2020 to 31
December 2020, unless otherwise stated.

The Company has complied with the “comply or explain”
provisions set out in the ESG Reporting Guide for the year
ended 31 December 2020.
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Environmental, Social and Governance

Role of Board Meeting

The Board of the Group is the highest governance body for
the ESG work which is responsible for the ESG matters and
is responsible for ensuring the effectiveness of the established
ESG risk management system and an internal control system,
as well as assessing and approving the annual ESG report.

In accordance with the requirements of the Group,
all departments and subsidiaries are responsible for
communicating with their relevant stakeholders and identifying
stakeholders’ concerns on sustainability initiatives of R&F.
Besides, relevant departments are responsible for collecting
ESG information and data, adhering to the plan of the Group.
The Company regularly compiles the ESG data of the entire
Group, in order to review and supervise related performance.

Operating in compliance with the laws

The Group has ensured and will continue to ensure basically
compliance with relevant laws and regulations that have
significant impact on its operations, including but not limited
to laws and regulations in relation to product safety and
liabilities, customer rights protection and employment and
occupational safety. The management will monitor the impact
for any changes in the relevant laws and regulations from time
to time and seek external advice if considered necessary.

Materiality identification and communication with stakeholders

The Group’s operations involve a wide range of environmental
and social issues. The Company refers to the ESG Reporting
Guide from the Stock Exchange to identify the Group’s
material topics through the process of identification,
prioritisation, validation and review.
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Environmental, Social and Governance

R 4 ERERERS

Based on the guideline mentioned above, peer analysis and
media coverage, the Company has identified 18 potential
material topics, covering corporate governance, environment,
employment and labor, community and operation practice.
The Company then invited various stakeholders to assess the
importance of potential topics.

Stakeholders are groups which directly related to the Group’s
ESG and play an important role in the Group’s decision-
making process. The Group has always been committed to
various communication and dialogue with all stakeholders via
different communication channels for different stakeholders,
so as to understand their needs, collect their opinions, share
and discuss various issues closely related to the development
of the Group, and to actively respond to the opinions and
appeals of the stakeholders in the course of the operation,
and achieve the Group’s overall and sustainable development.

The Group communicates with its stakeholders to understand
their concerns, and regularly reviews the effectiveness of
the relevant actions and improves communication channels
to gain a broader and more intensive understanding of its
stakeholder’s opinions. The following table set out the issues
that different stakeholder categories are particularly concerned
about and the materiality analysis:
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Table 1

Environmental,

Topics that stakeholders are primarily concerned about

Stakeholder
Categories

Employees

Shargholders/
Investors

Government
authorities

Subcontractors

Proprietors

Suppliers

Communities

Topics that stakeholders are  Communication or

primarily concerned about

o Compliant operation 0

o Quality guarantee o

o Remuneration and benefits o

o Health and safety

o Care career development o
of employees g

o Compliant operation 0
o Quality assurance of on-
going profitable projects

o Compliant operation 0

o Promote local employment ¢
and economic and social  ®
development

o Fulfill social responsibiity e

o Compliant operation 0
o The environmental impact of
construction work

o Quality guarantee U

o Protection of commercial
information .

o Provide satisfied .
services

o Industry participation .

o Requirements of suppliers ®
on environmental and .
social influence

o Supply chain management

o Keep good cooperative
relations

o Charity .
o Promote local employment ¢
and economic and social

development

response methods

Trainings on regulations

Solicit rational suggestions
Survey on the development of
employees and their satisfaction
Workers’ congress

Day-to-day work communication

Shareholder general meeting

Obtain permits for projects
Communicate through meetings
Formulate specifications and
exchange of ideas

Special topic meeting (report) and
information reporting

Business communication with
counterpart departments

Daily communication throughout
the process, including changes of
design and construction

Communication of sales and
inspection

Documents and mails
Customer assessment and
management

Daily transactions

Qualification review
Communication throughout the
tendering and bidding process

Charity activities
Activities to promote community’s
development

Social and Governance
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Environmental, Social and Governance
RE HERERRE

Table 2 ®I%2
Identification of topics -t 9
Category No.  Topics L] Gy =2E
Corporate governance 1 Compliant operation NalRE 1 AES

2 Risk management 2 ERER

3 Prohibit bribery and corruption 3 BIrEEERLEY

4 Stakeholder communication 4 FERERER
Environment 5 Establishment of environmental management systems BIE 5 BUREEEEZ

6 Energy-saving and emission reduction 6 S

7 Resource recycling 7 BRERTA

8 Green concept 8 RRER
Employment and labour 9 Remuneration and welfare system EREET 9 SHEBHNEZ

10 Occupational safety 10 BERe

11 Training and career development 1 BIEEEER

12 Caring about employees 1  EBIBE
Community 13 Public welfare and charity it 13 DREE

14 Volunteer activities of employees 14 EBIZEEEH
Operation practice 15 Product responsibility and project quality assurance TREY 15 EREARIREERSE

16 Supply chain management 16 HERESER

17 Requirements of suppliers on environmental and social 17 BHEENERR neyE

impact Ei
18 Intellectual rights protection 18 MEERRE
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Environmental, Social and Governance
RE HERERRE

A. ENVIRONMENTAL A.

The Group proactively responses to the national
environmental protection policies with an objective
(i) to reduce the adverse effect that the operational
production may bring to the environment; and (ii) to
ensure the harmonious development of the Group and
environmental sustainability. The Group strives to reduce
energy and other energy consumption, reduce waste
emissions, to fully utilise recyclable resources, increase
area of greening and introduce the concept of green
environmental protection in the Group’s products.

A.1  Energy preservation and emission reduction

The Group always concerns itself with
environmental protection and works on energy
saving and emission reduction.

For the year ended 31 December 2020, the Group
has strengthened energy saving, emission reduction
and waste reduction in various aspects of its
production process as follows:

Production Related policy and Management
process method
Product Design o The Company has instilled the

concept of green-building into the
products and gained the certification
of green building materials and
products.

Choice of Supplier o Suppliers are asked to provide
environmental assessment reports
or guarantee of environmental
protection to help suppliers to
enhance energy conservation and
emissions reduction in production.

o Purchasing materials according
to order demand, the Company
preferentially chooses the nearby
suppliers to reduce the energy
consumption of delivery.
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Environmental, Social and Governance
RE HEBERERRE

A. ENVIRONMENTAL (continued) A, RIR(E)
A.1  Energy preservation and emission reduction (continued) Al ENRERER AR A (&)
Production Related policy and Management HBEHER
process method EERE  EESE
Production Dust Control: For dust generated EERRR o RERY:REHE

during our sealant processing, the
Company uses filters to control and
recover dust. For dust generated
during our spraying process, the
Company have adopted both filter
method and cyclone method to
control and recover dust.

Noise Control: The Company
adopted various measures to
control the noise generated from
our production process, including
implementation of shock absorption,
appropriate design of factory layout,
and cultivation of plants at our
production facilities.

Waste Water Control: Waste
water generated from our spraying
process is gathered and reused in
our spraying process in a closed
loop after flotation, flocculation,
sedimentation and other procedures.
The Company also generate waste
water during material pre-treatment
in our production. Such waste
water is discharged into municipal
sewage processing plant after
flocculation, sedimentation, sand
filtration, carbon filtration and other
procedures.
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Environmental, Social and Governance
RE HERERRE

A. ENVIRONMENTAL (continued) A.

A.1  Energy preservation and emission reduction (continued)

Production Related policy and Management
process method

o Air Emission Control: The air must
be purified before emission and
shall meet the relevant requirements
stipulated by the laws. Air emissions
generated during the production
process of the Group include
nitrogen oxide, particulates, sulphur
dioxide and organic waste gas
(benzene and xylene).

Policies * The company will conduct a
comprehensive energy audit to
analyse the energy management
and to give suggestions for
improvements when necessary.

o The Group is effectively operating the
Environmental Management System
ISO14001: 2015.

o The Group implemented “Safe,
saving energy and reducing
consumption” management in all
the operation sites to regulate the
behaviour of employees and lower
energy consumption. Production
planning department reasonably
arrange the production shift to
avoid electric usage rush hour. All
the office room equipped with the
curtain wall to ensure efficient usage
of sunlight and save energy.

o The Group has a comprehensive
non-hazardous treatment and re-
utilisation system to recycle and re-
use the waste
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Environmental, Social and Governance

A. ENVIRONMENTAL (continued)

A

Energy preservation and emission reduction (continued)

In 2020, the Company has not been challenged
or questioned by any competent government
authorities of relevant bodies in relation to issue on
environmental pollution caused by emission.

Plan for the year 2021

° To ensure no major environmental
emergencies.

° To achieve 100% compliance rate of waste
disposal.
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Environmental, Social and Governance

R 4 ERERERS

A. ENVIRONMENTAL (continued)

A.1  Energy preservation and emission reduction (continued)
Energy and resource Consumption and Pollutant
Emissions of the Group
The main greenhouse gas emissions of the Group
are carbon dioxide, nitrogen oxides, sulfur dioxide
and particulate matter which are monitored to
ensure compliance with standards before being
discharged. The Company was removed from
the closely-monitoring list for organic waste gas
by environmental government authorities for
optimization of production process.

Table 3
Resources consumption of the Group
Power
consumption
(KWH)
HEE
(FRE)
Annual Consumption of 2020 9,789,424
2020 F 2 FHHEE
Consumption Intensity/Thousand yuan 3.58
revenue during 2020
HERE/GTT2020 FHE R
Annual Consumption of 2019 11,490,376
2019F 2 FHRE
Consumption Intensity/Thousand yuan 2.84

revenue during 2019

HRTE/ BT T2019FAER
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Water
Diesel Gasoline consumption
(L) (L) (m’)
3 b FkE
(#) (#) (ZFK)
147,279 49,562 79,674
0.05 0.02 0.03
203,446 73,999 71,227
0.05 0.02 0.02



Environmental, Social and Governance
RE HEBERERRE

A. ENVIRONMENTAL (continued) A. RBIBE(#Z)
A.1 Energy preservation and emission reduction (continued) A1 EieE REERREYR A (4Z)
Table 4 =4
Indirect emissions of the Group EEEEHE Y
Co, No, So, Particulate
emissions emissions emissions matter
(kg) (kg) (kg) (kg)
k474 aAg1 <4773
HHE MHRE HHE BNy
(F=) (F=) (F=) (F=)
Annual emissions of 2020 10,262,011* 322,333 293,683 2,662,723
2020 F 2 FHHE
Emissions Intensity/Thousand yuan 3.75 0.12 0.11 0.97

revenue during 2020
HHREE/§T 2020 FRE K

Annual emissions of 2019 12,162,349* 434,334 344,711 3,125,382
20195 2FHME

Emissions Intensity/Thousand yuan
revenue during 2019 3.01 0.1 0.09 0.77
HHEE/ §TT2019FRER

* Scope 1 - Co, from the combustion of petroleum, * Hob&sgE—5=REK
diesel, kerosene and LPG is about 501,956 kg; B AW Sl Eoh A
Scope 2 - Co, from the use of purchased electricity R AL A R RO KR e
and thermal power is about 9,760,055 kg. Net #9501,956F 72 : &b IS
emission of Co, is about 9,915,953 kg. “EEREXRENESE

T NEBROHMER -

9,760,055“%% o :ﬁmﬁ
FHEE 4 59,915,953
Fre e

WA PRBRARAT | T R
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Environmental, Social and Governance
RE HERERRE

A. ENVIRONMENTAL (continued) A.
A.2 Green concept
In order to be more effective in utilisation of
resources and achieve waste reduction and
environmental protection, all the operation
sites of the Group began to implement ‘Green’
office, ‘Green’ material and ‘Green’ filing
management. Employees are also encouraged to
save documents, files and product information
electronically and go paperless, thus resolving the
difficulty in file searching and management and
realising resources sharing. In term of production
technology, selects and uses lighter and more
environmental-friendly materials to ease the burden
to the environment.
The Group focuses on the greening of production
bases. In 2020, total carbon dioxide annually
absorbed by green plants is about 346,058 kg
(2019: about 595,378 kg) which was due to the
resumption of land in Foshan.
Table 5
Green planting area
2020
2020
Green area
of the base
BE#Z{L
E& (m?)*
Production base in Shenyang 40,800
BEEEEN
Production base in Chengdu 8,167
PR A B
Production base in Foshan 480
eIl AEEEN
Production base in Shanghai 25,783
EtEEN

*

Including rented area.
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2019
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of the base
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A.

Environmental, Social and Governance

ENVIRONMENTAL (continued)

A.3 Waste management

Due to the industry attributes, main wastes of
the Group are non-hazardous wastes other than
hazardous wastes. The non-hazardous wastes are
mainly the waste steel, waste paint, waste water,
exhaust gas even the waste packing materials
which the Group has a comprehensive non-
hazardous treatment and re-utilisation system to
recycle and re-use.

The company have strictly complied with the
Environmental Protection Law, Cleaner Production
Promotion Law, Water Pollution Prevention and
Control Law, Integrated Wastewater Discharge
Standard, etc. A designated department was set
up to monitor the wastewater discharge in daily
production, to ensure clean production.

The amount of industrial and domestic wastewater
discharged and concentration of pollutants are
greatly reduced after onsite treatment, recycling
and reuse. The company have established a
sewage treatment plant in the factory for treating
chemicals to meet the environmental standard
before discharging to municipal sewage pipe
network according to regulations.
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Environmental, Social and Governance

R 4 ERERERS

A. ENVIRONMENTAL (continued)

A.83 Waste management (continued)

Table 6

Waste recycling management

Recycling weight (kg) - production
base in Shenyang
EREEEN-EHEE k)
Recycling weight (kg) —production
base in Foshan
P - BRES (ko)
Recycling weight (kg) —production
base in Chengdu
WAEEE - BRES (k)
Recycling weight (kg) —production
base in Shanghai

FEEERS - BREE (Kg)

Metal
£l |

2,280,789

36,330

359,815

410,897

A.4 Impact of climate change

The Company put strong emphasis on the impacts
that climate change may have on daily operations
identifying risks related to climate changes and

Wood
Kt

722,520

9,240

9,595

2020
2020

Plastic

2H

11,374

2,030

4,916

conducting preliminary scenario analysis.
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A, BRIR(E)

A3 FEMEIR(E)

RIK6

JEF EIHEFE

2019

2019%

Other

Paper  waste Metal Wood  Plastic Paper
i At 1 At 2 i
78500 378,200 4,078,548 1,112,455 497,286 127,500
8,740 - 186,700 28,797 7430 6,260
1,963 - 13879 - - 150
3,650 - 054287 24149 12615 13200
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A. ENVIRONMENTAL (continued)

A4

Environmental, Social and Governance
RE HEBERERRE

Impact of climate change (continued)

No.
BBES

Risk Type
EER

Frequent extreme
weather

BmRRIAE

Frequent extreme
weather

R ARAH

Technology
transformation

g

Technology
transformation

g

Impact aspects
YEEm

Business
operation

HE
S
)
e

Supply chain

e

Business operation

«

E3E

B

Supply chain

e

Risk description
g

A4 RIRE(CTZE(E)

Extreme weather damages ¢
projects under construction or
completed projects .

BRRRBEEERACEM
L

Affects the speed of project e
construction by sub-
contractors

Affects the normal supply of
materials with soaring price of
construction material
TEIRDAHETERE o
FRE
TEMNERMRE &
{EREEA

Peers increase investment e
in green buildings, existing
inventories face the risk of e
being replaced
REMAGZERENRA - o
BEREEGHERER .

The supply chain is unable e
to support future construction
requirements that need to

deal with more severe

weather conditions
HEREEXEARTRY o
FRARABRMEEE L

FE O o B e A R 24 )

Impact analysis
SEIN

Decrease in revenue: affects
some business operations
Increase in expenditure:
repairs to damaged
construction
WARD : BpERLER
2/ 45

B

SRR ERRERE

Increase in operation cost:
delays in completion of
projects, construction cost
increases

SRR - TRATHA
Tk - TRER  BEAK
!

Depreciation of existing
inventroies

Increase in operation cost:
application of BIM technology
rERBERLE
BB : BIM BT MER

Increase in operating
expenses: increase
procurement costs for new
suppliers

BEBREM - MAMHH
AR ERRER AR
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Environmental, Social and Governance
RE HERERRE

B. EMPLOYMENT AND LABOUR STANDARDS B.

The Group’s sustainability and development cannot be
separated from the value of its employees. The Group
strives to continuously establish and improve its staff
management system, including the recruitment of quality
employees, establish and improve the welfare system
to provide employees with a safe working environment,
improve the professional development of employees with
an objective that employees can grow together with the
Company.

Provide a good working Clear job description, appointment criteria
environment to attract and performance appraisal standards
outstanding employees

Cultivate staff development Regular business training and education

Well-being of employees  Conduct regular physical examination,
games, convenient staff commuting, sudden
disaster weather timely evacuation and
proper disease prevention measures

Importance of work safety Regular equipment maintenance, safety
training, dangerous operating practices

Promote a fair and honest  Anti-corruption, anti-discrimination

corporate culture awareness of publicity, reporting as well as
internal audit and other measures
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Environmental, Social and Governance

EMPLOYMENT AND LABOUR STANDARDS
(continued)

B.1

Working Environment

To enable the growth and development of the
Group’s employees, the Group strives to build a
collaborative and harmonious working environment.
The Company rewards its employees with
competitive remuneration packages and fringe
benefits which commensurate with their experience
and job task. Staff members are also informed of
requirements on expected professional conduct.
The Company adheres to the “fairness, equality,
diversity” principle for its staff management and
does not tolerate discrimination or harassment in
any form, and allow its staff members to realise
their full potential at work.

The Company adopted a transparent system for
assessing staff performance. At the end of each
year, the Company will appraise the performance of
all employees, and together with the results of the
assessment results and employees’ personal desire
to adjust their job nature and pay arrangement as
appropriate.

In terms of talent recruitment, the Group attracts
the best talents through various channels such
as social recruitment, internal recommendation
and campus recruitment, and strengthen the
talent deployment between different regions. All
employment with the Group is voluntary. The
Group complies with national and local laws and
all employees are voluntary and do not employ any
child labor. The Group is dedicated to ensuring
that operations remain free from child labor, and is
developing systems and procedures to handle the
management of such incidents. Should a child be
discovered working on our premises, he or she will
immediately be transported back to their hometown
or place of origin.
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Environmental, Social and Governance
RE HERERRE

B. EMPLOYMENT AND LABOUR STANDARDS
(continued)

B. ERREIREE)

B.2 Cultivate Staff Development B2 IEEEIHE

The Company encourages its staff to undertake
training and further studies to enhance their job-
related skills and knowledge. This training shall
contribute to a more productive and effective
workforce that is able to address the challenges
that the Company may face as a company. In 2020,
the Company further improved the Company’s
training management system. The Company uses
internal and external training resources to actively
organize 4-level education and trainings covering
“‘company level”, “headquarter level”, “subsidiary
level” and “department level”.

Changes in social and business environments may
require updated skill sets to deal with new market
opportunities. The Group has devoted plenty
resources in offering staff training and development
programmes. The Company encourages continuous
learning via training and further studies to enhance
our staff’s job-related skills and knowledge. It does
not only increase staff satisfaction and reduce staff
turnover but also enhances ability for staff to adapt
to change.

The Company also has a strong desire to develop
its own pool of talents in view of the unigueness
and diversity of its business. The Company provides
graduates with the opportunity to make their
way up in their career as qualified professionals.
Other training, such as seminars, workshops and
technical visits are aligned to the specific needs of
individuals, covering professional development as
well as management and technical skills.

For the year ended 31 December 2020, total
trainings organized by the Group were more
than 2,000 person time. The Company also
built E-platform for sharing training materials for
employees to study anytime and anywhere.
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Environmental, Social and Governance

B. EMPLOYMENT AND LABOUR STANDARDS
(continued)

B.2

B.3

Cultivate Staff Development (continued)

Employees Type of trainings

Management level Managerial and compliance

Design department Software operation

Workshop and Safety operation, safety installation

construction site training and raw material production

Sales department Business etiquette and language

Well-being of Employees

A healthy work-life balance is encouraged among
the Group’s staff members. During non-epidemic
period the Company have organised a wide array
of staff activities including badminton contest, ping
pong contest and Yuanda Marathon, amongst
others, to cater to the diverse interests of its
employees.

The company provided proper disease prevention
equipment to all staff, established and distributed
code of work to ensure all staff are clear about the
items that need attention during the pandemic.

As the fast pace and pressure of life, the Group
and the specialized medical institutions reached
a long-term cooperation agreement, pursuant to
which staff can enjoy a medical check-up and
examination on an annual basis.
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Environmental, Social and Governance
RE HERERRE

B. EMPLOYMENT AND LABOUR STANDARDS
(continued)

B. ERREIR#E (&)

B.4 Occupational Safety B.4 Bx%z

The health and safety of the Group’s employees
are of utmost concern. The Group has
adopted the Management System GB/T45001-
20200HSAS45001: 2018 as a standard to guide
our approach in mitigating occupational health and
safety hazards.

Different safety-related initiatives and measures
have been rolled out in the Group’s operations.
Risk assessments are also conducted to identify
risks in special working environments, while detailed
safety instructions have been formulated and
communicated to workers as part of their safety
training sessions. Safety officers are appointed to
coordinate and communicate safety-related matters
to workers on site.

Safety instructions In order to clarify the operational steps
and risk points of each process, the
Group has prepared a number of safety
instructions.

Training In order to ensure the safety of employees
in practice, the Group conducts training
on theory and field safety on a regular
basis to promote safety awareness.

Inspection Perform regular maintenance and
inspection on the production sits with
higher tendency of safety issues.

Certification The Group has passed the GB/T45001-
20200HSAS45001: 2018 safety
management certification, during the
process of which, a comprehensive review
of the Group’s safety risks had been
conducted and thorough rectification.

Accountability Strengthen the Group’s safety
management by way of annual assessment
of the responsible person responsible
the safety issue of each workshop and
production site.
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Environmental,

EMPLOYMENT AND LABOUR STANDARDS
(continued)

B.4

B.5

Occupational Safety (continued)
The Group also seeks to influence its
subcontractors and collaborate with them to
heighten their understanding of safety concerns at
the workplace.

During the year ended 31 December 2020, there
was no confirmed material non-compliance incident
or grievance in relation to human rights and labour
practices. Reported headcount due to work related
injuries amounted to 19.

Fair and honest corporate culture

The Group adheres to high standards of business
ethics and integrity, all staff members are required
to abide by the requirements of professional
conduct specified in the employee’s handbook.
Strict rules have also been laid out on accepting
gifts from business partners during festive seasons.

In order to promote a corporate culture with high
integrity standard, the Company not only regularly
conducts lectures on anti-corruption, it also
encourages all employees to participate in anti-
corruption activities. Complementing this effort
is the implementation of an anti-fraud policy as
well as a whistle-blowing policy, which provides a
reporting channel for employees and stakeholders
such as customers, suppliers, amongst others to
report any misconduct or malpractice. During the
reporting year, there had been no confirmed case
of corruption.

Social and Governance
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Environmental, Social and Governance
RE HERERRE

B. EMPLOYMENT AND LABOUR STANDARDS B. EREREIR&EGE)

(continued)

B.6 Compliance
During the year ended 31 December 2020,
the Group had no material incidences of non-
compliance with relevant laws and regulations
regarding employment and labour practices.

Plan for 2021

° To offer the opportunity to employees for
furthering their skills.

° To increase employees’ knowledge on health

protection and introduce health and hygiene
knowledge.
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Environmental, Social and Governance
RE HEBERERRE

B. EMPLOYMENT AND LABOUR STANDARDS B. EREREIREE)
(continued)
B.6 Compliance (continued) B.6 &M (#E)
As at 31 December 2020, the Group had a total of #H 2020612 H31H » &
3,107 employees. The formation of our staff was as SEHXEREE ABER 3,107
follows: A EEEEERERMT :
Table 7 RIRT
Employees of the Group EEB TSR
2020 2019
2020 F 20194
Number of Number of
employees employees
BT A BT A
Total 3,107 4,016
mE
Gender Male 2,623 3,426
bcq il S
Female 484 590
Zi
Age Under the age of 30 130 283
REWR B0 T
Between the age of 30
and 50 2,439 3,192
30-50 5%
Above the age of 50 538 541
50 BRIA |
Region Northeast of China 2,592 3,013
&b [ B R AL =
Other regions 515 1,003
H [z
Job category Senior management 128 170
B AR BIRE
Ordinary employee 2,979 3,846
EmET
The turnover rate of the company is 22.6%. RATAERKEE22.6% o

B RBIARAT | % R
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Environmental, Social and Governance
RE HERERRE

OPERATION PRACTICES

Since establishment, the Group has been committed to
building and improving the supply chain of products. On
the basis of traditional curtain wall products, the Group
adopts relatively complex designs, uses new materials or
advanced technology to develop a variety of products,
which has proven to be able to provide different
functions, such as environmental protection, energy
saving and intelligent control. A comprehensive product
supply has laid a solid foundation for the Group’s
development in the China and overseas markets. In
order to ensure products are of high quality, the Group
screens its suppliers strictly in terms of quality provided,
and pay close attention to maintain a good relations
of cooperation with customers to ensure efficient and
smooth operation of the Group.

C.1 Product responsibility
The Group performs a number of product

performance tests before, during and after
installation to ensure a high level of safety as

follows:

Before Safety test for The test will usually be conducted during

installation  curtain wall the embedment and after the embedment
connectivity of the curtain wall parts. The Group will

firstly apply for testing, and then conduct

sample testing on site as approved by the
site supervisor. Testing will be conducted

by a professional testing company, which
will issue a test report to guide us on the

rectification step thereafter, if any.

Re-testing of This is a quality test of curtain wall

materials components. The site supervisor wil
select the material samples from the
site. Thereafter, samples will be sent to
the laboratory for chemical and physical
testing, with conclusions being delivered
by the laboratory with reference to the
national and industry-related standards.

YUANDA CHINA HOLDINGS LIMITED Annual Report 2020

miBEE

BEISZAR - RRAR—ERNER
LrEZERHTE - EERBRER
BER - AAREAEZEMD
RET MR SR - RS
BEM  KEHARIDE MR
R~ EPRE NS AR - 2 HME M
HESARREE TEEMER
MR BEAMEINTIZERTOAR
RREEMNSME - ARBES
EREENHER  WEIEREHRE
BRFEET RIFNEIERER - RE
SEEZ SRR

C1 EmEMF

AAFRERBERREN -
TRERTEE  HEES
EELEENR  UERE
AEREH -

REA  BEERE ARHNHIZERR
MR2HE  OREHRERE
fHEfT - ADRIER
R ARET
HHEERSEES
HER BB B
AREXBALTE
1 BRARAEHT
AFES BIAD
ARKERBASE -

HHoER ERRENANEE

I B AEEER
S THEN R
K RREAERE
iRt
e - ERE
NEEARRITRA
BRE - ShkiE

A
i ©



Environmental, Social and Governance
HERERHRE

C. OPERATION PRACTICES (continued) C. mBEE(#E)
C.1 Product responsibility (continued) Cl1 ERmaEdsE)
Material This is a safety and performance test to RSk REZMMERAR
compatibility determine if the sealant and curtain wall RAMH J Y ihaags) i
testing components have any bonding problems S REMHARANA
or harmful chemical effects. Samples of REREN 2

R - ARAAREE
HBLERRHER
PR FELE
BEETHE 1R

curtain wall components will be provided

to the relevant sealant manufacturers who
will conduct the tests and provide written
reports to the Group.

RATREERRE «
Curtain wall This test is used to ensure that the N A
: ) e e el BElte EERABNERE
erformance erformance of the curtain wall in use, . .
- permee fEY  BEERBOLE
testing with four basis tests to be conducted,

ARBEREE - K
Zl - fEk - TE
o AR ELEEAY
may also include insulation, sound sl o BT

o RARE B
BRRA B2 A
BALBIH - i3
RHEAXRIER

including wind pressure, water-tightness, air
tightness, in-plane deformation. Inspections

insulation, seismic and optical performance
as part of the test, as appropriate.
Performance testing is conducted by
national laboratory with reference to the
relevant project curtain wall performance

B EREABEA NS
ana perrormance Inaicators. %%&ﬂ ‘_&Lﬁ% Eﬁk

11
During Conformance The purpose of the test is to ensure that RER  HEERGE RYBNERTRS

installation  testing of lightning  people and property in the building will not

Al NRMANBERS
REBXFEMTE
- BTSN
SIERET

protection grid be damaged by lightning. Detection will be
carried out in each lightning protection grid.

Strength testing  The structural adhesive is used to connect

LRBN  GRERRNERRR

o; r?trulctural tTthT c‘urtaihn ;NIaH pan?\ zntd ztzl)\un;inium.ft wEEs  RRREH B2k
adhesives is is what is required to be done after
applying the stru:tura\ adhesive and Aﬂﬁifﬂ%ﬁg ‘
applying the sealant to the curtain wall HA%H%EA e
HEANEEETM
component. M‘J .

AR A RAE | AR 103



Environmental, Social and Governance
RE HERERRE

C. OPERATION PRACTICES (continued)

C.1

Product responsibility (continued)

After On-site water This is a field test of whether the curtain

installation  spray test wall has water leakage, i.e., a five-minute

water spray test for each cross-connector.

Incase of  Tobe handled as  We attach enormous significance

complaint(s) soon as possible  to customer satisfaction and regard
customers’ feedback as the motivation
for advancement and innovation. Any
complaint to our operation sites will be

recorded and dealt with immediately.

While constructing high-quality projects, the
Company attaches great importance to customer
needs and feedback, puts priorities on customers,
and continuously meets customer needs, and
improves customer satisfaction, so that customers
and the Company can establish a sustainable win-
win and mutual benefit. relationship. The Company
establishes and improves an institutionalized,
standardized and normalized customer relationship
management mechanism, and strengthens
management in areas such as customer
information, customer communication and customer
needs.

In response to project complaints, the Company
continues to strengthen compliance supervision to
timely control the problems in project management.
The Company guides, supervises, and coordinates
with relevant departments to formulate response
measures to ensure that the concerns of all parties
are properly responded. During the Reporting
Period, the Group had neither experienced any
product recall due to health issue, nor received
any material complaint regarding any leakage of
customer privacy.
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Environmental, Social and Governance

C. OPERATION PRACTICES (continued)

C.2 Supply chain management

The Group relies on an extensive network of
suppliers and subcontractors to ensure the quality
and consistency of its services. The proactive
management of the Group’s supply chain helps
the Group mitigate and manage related risks that
may affect its operations. The Group continuously
engages with its subcontractors and raise their
awareness on occupational health and safety
issues. The Group also assesses its suppliers
and subcontractors by reviewing their services,
product quality, safety, financial performance
on an annual basis. Substandard suppliers and
subcontractors will be suspended or even removed
from our approved vendor list. To ensure consistent
implementation of sustainable development across
the Company’s supply chain, in selecting suppliers,
the Company also takes into consideration their
historical performance in the social responsibility
aspect, as well as their environment management
system and safety management system.

C.

RiR - 4 ERERERE

mIEE(E)

C.2 HpEgEeErR

AEBKBEREZHOHER
Mo BEMEK  WREB S
EmNEEMREHE - &
SEURNHEERENIHAE
I8 R DA E B #R R A2 51 AT A
FEXGEENHBORA
B RETEMED BEE
TEAENES MM BER
FEr2EBENRH A5 H
EAHERND ERHEB
REMMANRYE EmE
E 22 BFNUBE
e TABMKERND B
B EEEEREADAEH
R HEEEE LR - S
BRAFSEERNEIER
RARFEEGERE QD
AEEBHERRTEEE
HpAdaRTHesEErm
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Environmental,
R -HERERRS

C. OPERATION PRACTICES (continued)

C.2 Supply chain management (continued)

The Company has established a very perfect
supplier evaluation system, evaluation factors
include not only the strength and credibility of the
supplier, the quality control system, technology,
production capacity, supply ability, management
and product price, also consider whether the
factors such as environmental protection, harmless
to the human body. According to the evaluation
results, compiled annually qualified supplier list, and
qualified suppliers can be divided into A, B, C three
categories, the Company usually only buys from
this year’s list of qualified suppliers in the purchase
of raw materials, including class A is preferred,
class C as A last resort. In order to reduce carbon
emissions in the process of transportation and
save the transportation cost at the same time, the
Company gives priority to local quality qualified
suppliers.

Preliminary review of documents and discussion on
bidding proposals will be conducted. When the final
decision is made after deliberation, the Group will
enter into a purchase agreement with the selected
supplier.

Necessary due diligence is also performed where
required, with site visits and verification of products
or services arranged to ensure that suppliers
conform to the Group’s high standards.
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Environmental, Social and Governance

C. OPERATION PRACTICES (continued)

c.2

C.3

Supply chain management (continued)

Table 8
Qualified suppliers of the Group

Number of suppliers

HERHE

Geographical region

RiEm
Northeast of China
&b
Other regions of China
H &g

Intellectual Rights Protection

In order to provide consumers with genuine high
quality products and protect our product and
installation method of intellectual property rights,
in 2020, the Group obtained 26 patents for utility
model.

RiR - 4 ERERERE

C. HMiGE®(E)
C.2 {HESHEIR (&)

=1&8
FEEHAEAERIEN

2020 2019
2020 £ & 20194 E
125 101
192 264

C.3 HMERERE

RTIETRBEERHESE
ENER AREEBERM
RE MR TR B AN E
B 20204 - REEHE
ERMEERN261E -
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YUANDA CHINA HOLDINGS LIMITED

COMMUNITY

The Group as a corporation, should take up and be
accountable for social responsibility. The Group actively
cares about the society and fulfills its corporate social
responsibilities. Ever since the establishment, the
Group has been maintaining close communications and
interactions with local communities in order to contribute
to local development. As a result of which, the Group
actively participates in community and government
livelihood activities, to create a harmonious society.

Table 9
Social responsibility activities

Environmental, Social and Governance
RE HERERRE

D.

HE

R —ERR BZEEHR
£ AEERBEOHEEMETE
EHEEME - BRUIAK KB —
BERFEZHHREYEBNES
KRR - Bt - KER
B2t EMBAEFES - RE
E—EMELEERNE -

il23
i

=19
HEELTE

Organized “Clean up garbage & Protect environment” community activities

Date Main community activities
B FTEEE
2020-7-4
(Bl ZEREIHEAREE
2020-6-1 Organized Children’s day science activities

[BIAMERIR - ZHIFEEE N —F RS

In 2020, COVID-19 put negative impact on community
activities organized by Yuanda Federation of trade union
which is responsible for all the employees’ interests
in the Company and the companies controlled by the
Controlling Shareholder.

Annual Report 2020
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Environmental, Social and Governance

AWARDS AND HONOR E.

The Company have long been striving for innovation and
providing qualified products to customers. In 2020, the
Company was awarded the following awards and honors:

Date

B

2020-10-29

2020-8-20

2020-8-12

Main honors

TEREEW

Top 100 Liaoning private enterprises in 2020

2020 B ERE {10058
Top 250 international constructors

&N 250 REIE A B
My favorite curtain wall project

KEREERRELE

RiR - 4 ERERERE

EEREARKE

ARA—HEAREF - BEFRHS
RERER - R20205F - B I
BTUTHREARLE

Awards Sponsor
THEN

Liaoning Federation of Industry
and Commerce
BEEATEHAS

American Engineering News
Record

ER( Ti2FM AL ER)
Department of foreign investment
and economic cooperation,
Ministry of Commerce
THRZETBABHSRME R

AN
TTE

WA PRBRARAT | T R
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Environmental, Social and Governance
RE HERERRE

APPLICABLE LAWS AND REGULATIONS FOR ESG ESGEAZEERERES
INDEX

Corresponding

Aspect Applicable Laws and Regulations Section
[EmE BRANEERER HEZH
Emissions Law of the People’s Republic of China on the Prevention and A

BER Control of Atmospheric Pollution

(REE AR KRB ARG R AE)

Water Pollution Prevention and Control Law of the People’s
Republic of China

(RREE AR ERBIKT LR ED

Law of the People’s Republic of China on the Prevention and
Control of Environmental Pollution by Solid Wastes

(REE AR AT EBREEY S ARENIAE)

Soil Pollution Prevention and Control Law of the People’s
Republic of China

(hEE AR ARE TIBI52HEE)

Cleaner Production Promotion Law of the People’s Republic of
China

(REARKTBEERAEERMEL)

Directory of National Hazardous Wastes

(BREREY L)

Integrated Emission Standards of Air Pollutants
(RRISRMERE BEIRE)

Integrated Wastewater Discharge Standards
CaKkEEBERUIRE)

Standards on Storage and Pollution Control of Hazardous
Wastes

(BT F)5 R EHIRE)

Administrative Regulations on Environmental Protection for
Development Projects

(ERIBERBREBTEED)

Use of Resources Energy Conservation Law of the People’s Republic of China A2, A3
EREA (hEARKXMBEH LR E)

Circular Economy Promotion Law of the People’s Republic of

China

(PEARAFMBRBRLERESL)
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APPLICABLE LAWS AND REGULATIONS FOR ESG

INDEX (continued)

Environmental, Social and Governance
RE HEBERERRE

ESGEREERERRLI(A)

Corresponding

Aspect Applicable Laws and Regulations Section
=) BRAKNEERER HEEEH
Environmental and Environmental Protection Law of the People’s Republic of China A.2
natural resources  (F#EARFEFMEIRFBREE)
RIERRARER
Employment Labour Law of the People’s Republic of China B.1
&= (hEARLMBELENE)
Labour standards Provisions on the Prohibition of Using Child Labour B.1
EITERA CEIFERETRE)

Law of the People’s Republic of China on the Protection of

Minors

(R EARAFMBIRKF AREE)
Health and safety Production Safety Law of the People’s Republic of China B.4
BEHEZE (REARAMBELZHEEE)

Fire Control Law of the People’s Republic of China

(hEARLMBEYE)
Product Product Quality Law of the People’s Republic of China C.1,C.3
responsibilities (PEARANMBERLSE)
EmERE Law of the People’s Republic of China on the Protection of

Consumer Rights and Interests

(FEARANBEEEERERREL)

Intellectual Property Law of the People’s Republic of China

(REE AR AMBIAZERE)

Patent Law of the People’s Republic of China

(RE ANRAFMBEHEFRE)
Anti-corruption Criminal Law of the People’s Republic of China B.5

rREE

(R EE AR EFBETNE)
Anti-unfair Competition Law of the People’s Republic of China
(REARAMBERTEEHRTE)

HZE2020F 12 A1 HIEFE - ARF
BT LB ARNRRBERTENERE
VAR ©

During the year ended 31 December 2020, the Company has
complied with the above laws and regulations that have a
significant impact on the Company.
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Environmental, Social and Governance
RE HERERRE

ESG CONTENT INDEX ESG Z 5|
Aspect KPI Description Remarks
=] EE i B
A. Environmental
A R
A1 Emission Al General Disclosure AAA
A1 B — R
A1.1 Types of emissions and respective emissions data Table 4
R R AR R R - =14
A1.2 Greenhouse gas emissions in total and where appropriate, Table 4
intensity
BRERBEBHNER(MER)ZE 14
A1.3 Total hazardous waste produced and where appropriate, Not Applicable
intensity
ELEEEENLEER(WER)EE TEH
Al.4 Total non-hazardous waste produced and where appropriate, A.3, Table 6
intensity
FELRERRNEENTE A3, k1&6
A1.5 Measure to mitigate emissions and results achieved A.2, Table 5
WU BB E R L TERR A2, Ri&5
A1.6 Description of how hazardous and non-hazardous wastes are A.3, Table 6
handled, reduction initiatives and results achieved
HIREAERESEENNAE  REEESNEERAEKR A3 KIE6
A2 Use of A2 General Disclosure A
Resources
A2 EREER —MR R
A2.1 Direct and/or indirect energy consumption by type in total and A.1, Table 3
intensity
RERESMERR SEEEREEEREE A1, ®I&3
A2.2 Water consumption in total and intensity A.1, Table 3
BREKEREE A, &1&3
A2.3 Energy use efficiency initiatives and results achieved Al
A EE R A e et B R PTER R
A2.4 Description of whether there is any issue in sourcing water, A1, Table 3

water efficiency initiatives and results achieved
HSKEUER KR E AT B EAIRE - IREARKS ST ERAE A1, &183
KR
A2.5 Total packaging material used for finished products A.3
AR mAABEMHNEER(NER)BEEEM(LEE
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Environmental, Social and Governance
RE HEBERERRE

ESG CONTENT INDEX (continued) ESGZ5|(4#&)
Aspect KPI Description

=] B it

A3 The A3 General Disclosure

Environment and
Natural Resources
A3 RERXARER

A3.1

A4 The climate A4
change
A4 RIRZ AL

A4 .1

B. Social

B.#&

Employment and
Labour Practices
ERERS TR

B1 Employment B1

B1 EfE
B1.1

B.2

—RIE

Significant impacts of activities on the environment and natural
resources and the actions taken to manage them
HARBEDHRERRARERNEATERCRONEEEHYE
H1TE

General Disclosure

—RIKE

Description of the significant climate-related issues which have
impacted, and those which may impact the issuer, and the
actions taken to manage them

BB FERARHBETAEEYENEARKIEREE - KEY
178

General Disclosure

—R =

Total workforce by gender, employment type, age group and
geographical region

BRI EREAER  FRANRNES S NESEH

Employee turnover rate by gender, age group and geographical
region

RIER - BEEL - FRAJN RS DWERRKE

BAPBEER AR | SR R

Remarks
=

A

A.1, Table 1
A.2, Table 5
A1, RI& 1
A2, ®1% 5

A4

A4

B.6, Table 7

B.6, ®1&7
B.6




Environmental, Social and Governance
RE HERERRE

ESG CONTENT INDEX (continued)

Aspect
Em

B2 Health and
Safety
B2 REHEZ2

B3 Development
and Training

B3 &R RIEHI

B4 Labour
Standards
B4 % T %8|

KPI
B
B2

B2.1

B2.2

B2.3

B3

B3.1

B3.2

B4

B4.1

B4.2

ESG &5l (&)

Description

it
General Disclosure

— MR ER

Number and rate of work-related fatalities

R TEREMETHAB KL E

Lost days due to work injury

ATHELATIERE

Description of occupational health and safety measures adopted,
how they are implemented and monitored

RPN B ERRER 2 - UREBARTRERFE

General Disclosure

—M kR

Percentage of employees trained by gender and employee
category

RIERIREEEANZESNZIIEERDL

Average training hours completed per employee by gender and
employee category
RIERIREEERZD - BHEETHXIIN TR

General Disclosure

—fR R

Measures to review employment practices to avoid child and
forced labour

it BEEP AR AR R ET REHS T

Steps taken to eliminate such practices when discovered

MO AERRERIENEERET REBH S TERARRGO SR
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Environmental, Social and Governance
RE HEBERERRE

ESG CONTENT INDEX (continued) ESG Z5|(#&)
Aspect KPI Description Remarks
Em BE it Bx
Operating
Practices
B
B5 Supply Chain B5 General Disclosure C
Management
B5 it FE S B 18 —RRIREE
B5.1 Number of suppliers by geographical region C.2, Table 8
EihR B D E R BB C.2, &1&8
B5.2 Description of practices relating to engaging suppliers, number  C, C.2

B5.3

B5.4

of suppliers where the practices are being implemented, how

they are implemented and monitored

Wt EBERAERNED - MERITEBBOINMERSE - U
REMERONTRERAE

Description of practices used to identify environmental and social C.4
risks along the supply chain, and how they are implemented and

monitored
HREBHAMERESERGNRE R GRARNED - AREH
WITRERTE

Description of practices used to promote environmentally C.2

preferable products and services when selecting suppliers, and
how they are implemented and monitored

R ERERERERREESARREmLRRENED - U RAEEH
TREENTE

BAPBEER AR | SR R




Environmental, Social and Governance
RE HERERRE

ESG CONTENT INDEX (continued) ESG Z5|(#&)
Aspect KPI Description
B EE R
B6 Product B6 General Disclosure
Responsibility
B6EmEE —MRHEE
B6.1 Percentage of total products sold or shipped subject to
recalls for safety and health reasons
EEREEXEREBTRZMAERERMARKNE D
tt
B6.2 Number of products and services related complaints
received and how they are dealt with
BEREANERRRBRRFEE AREHET A
B6.3 Description of practices relating to observing and
protecting intellectual property rights
B R BEEE EOE D
B6.4 Description of quality assurance process and recall
procedures
HlESRTEREREREKIEF
B6.5 Description of consumer data protection and privacy

B7 Anti-corruption B7

B7 RET

B7.1

B7.2

B7.3

policies, how they are implemented and monitored

U B E ERHRE ALK - LRSI RER T

General Disclosure
— MR
Number of concluded legal cases regarding corrupt

practices during the reporting period and the outcomes of

the cases
RERANEFTASEEERHITEEENETF
BB RFALER

Description of preventive measures and whistle-blowing
procedures, how they are implemented and monitored

BT S LB WIEF - URBERTRERRE

IE

Description of anti-corruption training provided to directors

and staff
HimEEFERE TIRENRE)SHE

YUANDA CHINA HOLDINGS LIMITED Annual Report 2020
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ESG CONTENT INDEX (continued)

Aspect
Em

B8 Community
Investment
B8 &

KPI
S

B8

B8.1

B8.2

Environmental, Social and Governance

Description

i

General Disclosure

—MR#EE

Focus areas of contribution

BT RS

Resources contributed to the focus area
FEIHEMBAER

RiR - 4 ERERERE

ESG %5l (%)

Remarks

Zx

D
Table 9
F=1%9

Table 9
xH%9
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Independent Auditor’s Report
B 2B E

KPMG!

Independent auditor’s report to the shareholders of
Yuanda China Holdings Limited
(Incorporated in the Cayman Islands with limited liability)

OPINION

We have audited the consolidated financial statements of
Yuanda China Holdings Limited (the “Company”) and its
subsidiaries (the “Group”) set out on pages 127 to 267, which
comprise the consolidated statement of financial position as
at 31 December 2020, the consolidated statement of profit
or loss, the consolidated statement of profit or loss and
other comprehensive income, the consolidated statement of
changes in equity and the consolidated cash flow statement
for the year then ended and notes to the consolidated financial
statements, including a summary of significant accounting
policies.

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements give a
true and fair view of the consolidated financial position of
the Group as at 31 December 2020 and of its consolidated
financial performance and its consolidated cash flows for the
year then ended in accordance with International Financial
Reporting Standards (“IFRSs”) issued by the International
Accounting Standards Board (“IASB”) and have been properly
prepared in compliance with the disclosure requirements of
the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance.

BASIS FOR OPINION

We conducted our audit in accordance with Hong Kong
Standards on Auditing (“HKSASs”) issued by the Hong Kong
Institute of Certified Public Accountants (“HKICPA”). Our
responsibilities under those standards are further described in
the Auditor’s responsibilities for the audit of the consolidated
financial statements section of our report. We are independent
of the Group in accordance with the HKICPA’s Code of Ethics
for Professional Accountants (the “Code”) together with any
ethical requirements that are relevant to our audit of the
consolidated financial statements in the Cayman Islands, and
we have fulfilled our other ethical responsibilities in accordance
with these requirements and the Code. We believe that the
audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate
to provide a basis for our opinion.
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KEY AUDIT MATTERS

Independent Auditor’s Report (continued)

Key audit matters are those matters that, in our professional

judgement, were of most significance in our audit of the

consolidated financial statements of the current period. These

matters were addressed in the context of our audit of the

consolidated financial statements as a whole, and in forming

our opinion thereon, and we do not provide a separate opinion

on these matters.

Recognition of construction contract revenue
Refer to Note 4 to the consolidated financial statements and the accounting policies in

Note 2(t)).

The Key Audit Matter

The Group is primarily engaged in the
design, production and installation of
curtain wall systems for commercial
buildings and high-end residential
buildings. The Group normally enters
into construction contracts with main
contractors or real estate developers.

The Group recognises construction
contract revenue progressively overtime
using input method based on the
proportion of total contract costs
incurred at the end of reporting period
compared to the estimated total budgeted
contract costs to complete the contract
when control of the goods or service is
transferred to the customer.

The measurement of the revenue therefore
relies on estimations of total budgeted
contract costs. Changes to estimated
total budgeted contract costs could give
rise to material variances in the amount of
revenue recognised.

How the matter was addressed in our
audit

Our audit procedures to assess the
recognition of construction contract
revenue included the following:

. assessing the design,
implementation and operating
effectiveness of key internal
controls over the budgeting
process for construction
contracts;

. scrutinising the key clauses of
construction contracts on a
sample basis, and assessing
whether these key clauses had
been appropriately reflected in
the estimation of total budgeted
contract costs applied in revenue
recognition;

. challenging the Group’s estimates
of budgeted costs to complete
the contract on a sample basis by
considering the Group’s historical
records of gross profit margins
for similar contracts;
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Independent Auditor’s Report (continued)
B RB MR E @

KEY AUDIT MATTERS (continued)

Recognition of construction contract revenue (continued)
Refer to Note 4 to the consolidated financial statements and the accounting policies in
Note 2(t)(i). (continued)

How the matter was addressed in our
The Key Audit Matter audit
We identified the recognition of e assessing whether costs incurred
construction contract revenue as a were accounted for in the
key audit matter because there is a appropriate period and comparing
high degree of risk and associated costs incurred during the current
management judgement in estimating total period to purchase invoices
budgeted contract costs and the amount and other relevant underlying
of revenue to be recognised by the Group. documentation on a sample

basis;

. performing a re-calculation of
revenue recognised for individual
contracts based on the estimated
total budgeted contract costs, the
costs incurred to date and the
agreed contract price;

. performing site visits for the
selected major contracts in
progress, physically observing
the stage of completion of the
contract and discussing the
status of the contract with the
site supervisor; and

. assessing the related disclosures
in the consolidated financial
statements with reference to the
requirements of the prevailing
accounting standards.
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Independent Auditor’s Report (continued)
BB RE

KEY AUDIT MATTERS (continued)

Expected credit loss allowances for contract assets and trade receivables

Refer to Notes 16, 17 and 29(a) to the consolidated financial statements and the

accounting policies in Note 2(j)(i).

The Key Audit Matter

The Group’s contract assets and trade
receivables are mainly arising from the
Group’s construction contract business.
As at 31 December 2020, the aggregate
amount of contract assets and trade
receivables totalled RMB4.3 billion.

The Group measures loss allowances on
contract assets and trade receivables at
amounts equal to lifetime expected credit
losses (the “ECL”) using a provision matrix
which involved significant management
judgement, including the determination
of provision rate for each age group of
contract assets and trade receivables and
adjusting factors that are specific to the
debtors and an assessment of both the
current and forecast general economic
conditions at the reporting date.

We identified the ECL allowances for
contract assets and trade receivables as a
key audit matter because of the significant
balances at the end of the reporting
period and because the recognition of
ECL allowances is inherently subjective
and requires the exercise of significant
management judgement.

How the matter was addressed in our
audit

Our audit procedures to assess the ECL
allowances for contract assets and trade
receivables included the following:

U assessing the design and
implementation of key internal
controls over the credit control
and estimation of the ECL
allowances;

° evaluating the Group’s policy for
estimating the ECL allowances
with reference to the requirements
of the prevailing accounting
standard;

. assessing the appropriateness of
management’s loss allowances by
examining the information used
by management to derive such
provision rates, and evaluating
whether the provision rates are
appropriately applied in the ECL
model;

g assessing whether items in the
ageing report were categorised
appropriately for contract
assets and trade receivables by
comparing a sample of individual
items with the underlying
documentation; and

o assessing the related disclosures
in the consolidated financial
statements with reference to the
requirements of the prevailing
accounting standards.
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Independent Auditor’s Report (continued)

W SCTE S )

INFORMATION OTHER THAN THE CONSOLIDATED
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS AND AUDITOR’S REPORT
THEREON

The directors are responsible for the other information. The
other information comprises all the information included in the
annual report, other than the consolidated financial statements
and our auditor’s report thereon.

Our opinion on the consolidated financial statements does not
cover the other information and we do not express any form
of assurance conclusion thereon.

In connection with our audit of the consolidated financial
statements, our responsibility is to read the other information
and, in doing so, consider whether the other information
is materially inconsistent with the consolidated financial
statements or our knowledge obtained in the audit or
otherwise appears to be materially misstated.

If, based on the work we have performed, we conclude that
there is a material misstatement of this other information, we
are required to report that fact. We have nothing to report in
this regard.

RESPONSIBILITIES OF THE DIRECTORS FOR THE
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The directors are responsible for the preparation of the
consolidated financial statements that give a true and fair
view in accordance with IFRSs issued by the IASB and
the disclosure requirements of the Hong Kong Companies
Ordinance and for such internal control as the directors
determine is necessary to enable the preparation of
consolidated financial statements that are free from material
misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.
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Independent Auditor’s Report (continued)

RESPONSIBILITIES OF THE DIRECTORS FOR THE
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)

In preparing the consolidated financial statements, the
directors are responsible for assessing the Group’s ability to
continue as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters
related to going concern and using the going concern basis of
accounting unless the directors either intend to liquidate the
Group or to cease operations, or have no realistic alternative
but to do so.

The directors are assisted by the Audit Committee in
discharging their responsibilities for overseeing the Group’s
financial reporting process.

AUDITOR’S RESPONSIBILITIES FOR THE AUDIT OF
THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about
whether the consolidated financial statements as a whole are
free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error,
and to issue an auditor’s report that includes our opinion.
This report is made solely to you, as a body, and for no other
purpose. We do not assume responsibility towards or accept
liability to any other person for the contents of this report.

Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but is
not a guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance with
HKSAs will always detect a material misstatement when it
exists. Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and are
considered material if, individually or in the aggregate, they
could reasonably be expected to influence the economic
decisions of users taken on the basis of these consolidated
financial statements.
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Independent Auditor’s Report (continued)
B RB MR E @

AUDITOR’S RESPONSIBILITIES FOR THE AUDIT
OF THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
(continued)

As part of an audit in accordance with HKSAs, we exercise
professional judgement and maintain professional scepticism
throughout the audit. We also:

- Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement
of the consolidated financial statements, whether due
to fraud or error, design and perform audit procedures
responsive to those risks, and obtain audit evidence
that is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis
for our opinion. The risk of not detecting a material
misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than for
one resulting from error, as fraud may involve collusion,
forgery, intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or
the override of internal control.

— Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant
to the audit in order to design audit procedures that
are appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the
purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness
of the Group’s internal control.

— Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies
used and the reasonableness of accounting estimates
and related disclosures made by the directors.

- Conclude on the appropriateness of the directors’ use
of the going concern basis of accounting and, based
on the audit evidence obtained, whether a material
uncertainty exists related to events or conditions that
may cast significant doubt on the Group’s ability to
continue as a going concern. If we conclude that
a material uncertainty exists, we are required to
draw attention in our auditor’s report to the related
disclosures in the consolidated financial statements
or, if such disclosures are inadequate, to modify
our opinion. Our conclusions are based on the audit
evidence obtained up to the date of our auditor’s
report. However, future events or conditions may cause
the Group to cease to continue as a going concern.
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Independent Auditor’s Report (continued)

AUDITOR’S RESPONSIBILITIES FOR THE AUDIT
OF THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
(continued)

- Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content
of the consolidated financial statements, including the
disclosures, and whether the consolidated financial
statements represent the underlying transactions and
events in a manner that achieves fair presentation.

- Obtain sufficient appropriate audit evidence regarding
the financial information of the entities or business
activities within the Group to express an opinion on the
consolidated financial statements. We are responsible
for the direction, supervision and performance of the
group audit. We remain solely responsible for our audit
opinion.

We communicate with the Audit Committee regarding, among
other matters, the planned scope and timing of the audit and
significant audit findings, including any significant deficiencies
in internal control that we identify during our audit.

We also provide the Audit Committee with a statement that
we have complied with relevant ethical requirements regarding
independence and communicate with them all relationships
and other matters that may reasonably be thought to bear
on our independence and, where applicable, actions taken to
eliminate threats or safeguards applied.

From the matters communicated with the Audit Committee,
we determine those matters that were of most significance
in the audit of the consolidated financial statements of the
current period and are therefore the key audit matters. We
describe these matters in our auditor’s report unless law or
regulation precludes public disclosure about the matter or
when, in extremely rare circumstances, we determine that a
matter should not be communicated in our report because
the adverse consequences of doing so would reasonably
be expected to outweigh the public interest benefits of such
communication.
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Independent Auditor’s Report (continued)

B AR S )

AUDITOR’S RESPONSIBILITIES FOR THE AUDIT BB ERRAIENS
OF THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (&)

(continued)

The engagement partner on the audit resulting in this HEARB ZEMGRENETIBERE SR

independent auditor’s report is Yu Wai Sum. ARRED o

KPMG EEREMERAR
Certified Public Accountants HEDEED

8th Floor, Prince’s Building BB

10 Chater Road PEFT 38 155

Central, Hong Kong RKFRENE

31 March 2021 202143 H31H
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Revenue
Cost of sales

Gross profit

Other income

Selling expenses

Administrative expenses

Expected credit losses of financial
and contract assets

(Loss)/profit from operations
Finance costs

(Loss)/profit before taxation
Income tax

(Loss)/profit for the year
attributable to equity
shareholders of the Company

(Loss)/earnings per share
(RMB cents)
— Basic and diluted

Consolidated Statement of Profit or Loss
EftERE
(Expressed in Renminbi (‘RMB”)) For the year ended 31 December 2020

(AARE(TARK ) ABEMN) #HE2020F12A31HIEFE

2020 2019
Note RMB’000 RMB’000
#ret AR®BTR AR®TRT

N 4 2,735,572 4,041,253
SHEKA (2,283,778)  (3,049,917)
ER 451,794 991,336
E bz A 5 39,869 121,362
HEEH (77,233) (86,541)
THAX (454,927) (531,707)
CREERAREEZ

TERR(E FRIER (322,583) (155,909)
e (EE) AE (363,080) 338,541
B & A AR 6(a) (227,642) (142,523)
Bial(&R), @ 6 (590,722) 196,018
Frisasit 7 (99,903) (106,198)
FER(EE)/FBET2ER

FARQBRR

(690,625) 89,820

SR (&EE) B

(AR%D)

- AR NEE 10 (11.12) 1.45

The notes on pages 135 to 267 form part of these financial F1BEEF207TBEZHEABUENH
statements. Details of dividends payable to equity shareholders WMERZ—HD o BRNAQBIRERE(GF
of the Company attributable to the profit for the year are set AWFE 2 B B BE R 27 () ©

out in Note 27(b).
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Consolidated Statement of Profit or Loss and Other Comprehensive Income
eftERREME2E KGR

(Expressed in RMB) For the year ended 31 December 2020
(MARMABEMN) BE2020F12 A31 BIEFE
2020 2019
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR®BT T ARBTT

(Loss)/profit for the year FR(EE),FE (690,625) 89,820
Other comprehensive income for the FREAMEERE (BRE R

year (after tax and reclassification ENOERAER) .

adjustments):

ltem that may be reclassified subsequently H{ER&EH D EEEZH

to profit or loss: BH :
- Exchange differences on translation of - BERNRRETHE
financial statements of the Company NAI SRR AEZ
and certain subsidiaries into BEREL E5E
presentation currency 59,648 (66,252)
Other comprehensive income for the FREMEE K
year 59,648 (66,252)
Total comprehensive income for FRAZHEHKEEAET DO T
the year attributable to equity RATRRER
shareholders of the Company (630,977) 23,568

The notes on pages 135 to 267 form part of these financial FIB/BEEF 06T HZHERLFNH
statements. k2 —HD -
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Consolidated Statement of Financial Position

Non-current assets

Property, plant and equipment
Right-of-use assets
Investment properties
Deferred tax assets

Current assets

Inventories and other contract
costs

Contract assets

Trade and bills receivables

Deposits, prepayments and other
receivables

Cash on hand and in bank

Current liabilities

Trade and bills payables

Contract liabilities

Accrued expenses and other
payables

Bank loans

Income tax payable

Provision for warranties

Net current assets

Total assets less current

liabilities

FRBEE
RN E
EREEE
BREME
ERERIEE E

RBEE
FREEEMER

DN

BRAEE

EE )L C VLS
BE  BNREEMLE

LGN
FHERE MIRTTIFR
RBAE

EC ANV ANES
BRAE

FERT RIS R E A
EN

RITER

FENFTS R

RIERE

RBEEFE
REERRBAE

(Expressed in RMB)

SOt BRI E

At 31 December 2020

(AARHABEA) 2020612 8318
2020 2019
Note RMB’000 RMB’000
or=3 ARET T ARET T
11 356,711 387,236
12 237,738 249,404
13 34,954 31,135
25(c) 370,984 466,236
1,000,387 1,134,011
15 366,411 322,001
16(a) 1,840,107 2,568,142
17 2,539,171 2,918,319
18 617,786 712,604
19(a) 2,012,606 1,878,068
7,376,081 8,399,134
20 2,060,752 2,582,442
16(b) 566,515 823,187
21 2,097,872 1,265,355
22(a) 699,200 1,645,000
25(a) 212,960 226,930
26 48,773 82,023
5,686,072 6,624,937
1,690,009 1,774,197
2,690,396 2,908,208

The notes on pages 135 to 267 form part of these financial

statements.
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Consolidated Statement of Financial Position (continued)

B OB AR R &R ()

(Expressed in RMB) At 31 December 2020
(AARBREMN) R20206F12A31H

Non-current liabilities ERBEE
Bank loans RITER
Lease liabilities HEAE
Deferred tax liabilities ELEFRIEEE
Provision for warranties RIS R

NET ASSETS REE

CAPITAL AND RESERVES BEXK#E
Share capital [N
Reserves 1

TOTAL EQUITY mrER

Approved and authorised for issue by the board of directors
on 31 March 2021.

Kang Baohua
BREE
Director (Chairman)

EF(ERE)

The notes on pages 135 to 267 form part of these financial
statements.
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2020 2019
Note RMB’000 RMB’000
Hrat AR®BTRE ARBTE

22(b) 400,000 -
23 4,215 2,554
25(c) 404 173
26 185,025 173,786
589,644 176,513

2,100,752 2,731,695

27
519,723 519,723
1,581,029 2,211,972

2,100,752 2,731,695

BEEEH 2021 F3 A31 Bt & RIXE
FijgE -

Wang Hao
EE
Director

EF

FE135 B 2 FE 267 B Z M5t &L S8 75
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Balance at 1 January 2019

Changes in equity for 2019:

Profit for the year
Other comprehensive income

Total comprehensive income
Appropriation to reserves

Balance at 31 December 2019

Consolidated Statement of Changes in Equity
S ERS K

(Expressed in RMB) For the year ended 31 December 2020
(AARMAEN) #HZE2020F12831BILFE

Shares held
under share PRC
Share Share award Other statutory Exchange Retained
capial premium scheme TBSeIVe T8SeIves T6Serve profts Total
Rk
LR ik

BA RiVEE AR( Eftii G B REHE )
RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
ARETT  ARETR  ARETR AREfn  ARETR ARETR AREfT ARETR
(Note 27(c)) ~ (Note 27(d))  (Note 27(di))  (Note 27(cfii) ~ (Note 27(d)fis))  (Note 27(d)i)

(Wzang)  (Weonmgp)  hongm)  (hzongiy)  (Wdengly)  (hEongp)

H2019%1 BB 2ER 519,723 574,47 210) 55,786 420,131 (5% 1156185 2708127
e
EfilE - - - - - - 89,820 89,820
Ll - - - - - (66,252) - (66,259)
FEYEAEE - - - - - (66,252) 89,820 23,568
e I - - - e S wm .
ROOERAMNAZER 519723 57447 10) 55,786 435901 6378 123025 273169

The notes on pages 135 to 267 form part of these financial FI1BBEEF267THZNERLEZFNT

statements.
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Consolidated Statement of Changes in Equity (continued)
EHEREE R @

(Expressed in RMB) For the year ended 31 December 2020
(MARMABEMN) BE2020F12 A31 BIEFE

Shares held
under share PRC
Share Share award Other statutory Exchange Retained
capital premium scheme reserve reserves reserve profits Total
RERf
by g

& RiveR RERf EhRf HERE EiRE RENE it
RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
ARBTR  ARBTT  ARETR  ARBTR  ARBTR ARETR ARBTR ARETR
(Note 27(c)) ~ (Note 27()fi) ~ (Note 27(a)ii) (Note 27(d)fiii)) (Note 27(a)(iv)) ~(Note 27(d)))

(Wdane) (ko) (k&) (sE2)  (WEae) Bz

Balance at 1 January 2020~ 202051510 2&8 519,723 o74,047 210 55,786 435,901 (63.787) 1,230,286 2,781,6%

Changes in equity for 2020: 2020 2E#%H:

Loss for the year EfEE - - - - = - (690,625) (690,625
Other comprehensive income. A fr2ENE - - - - - 59,648 - 50,648
Total comprehensive inoome 2 ENEEE = = - - - 59,648 (690,625) (630977)
Termination of the Share Avard ~ TRAREEEIR

Scheme - - A0 - - - (176) U
Balance at 31 December 2020  W20205128 31 B2kt 519,723 574,047 - 55,786 435,901 (24,139) 530,434 2,100,752

The notes on pages 135 to 267 form part of these financial FIB/BEEF 06T HZHERLFNH
statements. k2 —HD -
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Consolidated Cash Flow Statement
EHEESRER

(Expressed in RMB) For the year ended 31 December 2020

(AAREEAEN) #HZE2020F12 A31BIEFE

2020 2019
Note RMB’000 RMB’000
#ret AR®BTR AR®TRT

Operating activities RESES
(Loss)/profit before taxation A (EE),/FE (590,722) 196,018
Adjustments for: HEIEE :
Depreciation and amortisation T MY 6(c) 71,456 49,826
Interest income B A 6(a) (31,202) (21,986)
Borrowing costs BB A 6(a) 174,193 204,626
Net gain on disposal of property, HEYE - BB MEE
plant and equipment, land use T b LA Ko 4B
rights and assets classified as REFEHEEERS
held for sale bkt ) (43) (91,957)
Changes in working capital: EIEE G )
(Increase)/decrease in inventories FEREME RKA
and other contract costs (#m) md (44,410) 85,124
Decrease in contract assets SRIEBERD 728,035 263,561
Decrease/(increase) in trade and EREF &R ITEHR
bills receivables mEm L (38hn) 379,148 (79,671)
Decrease/(increase) in deposits, e BB EEM
prepayments and other R R A (38 0)
receivables 65,534 (48,774)
Decrease in trade and bills BN R RENEE
payables N (458,253) (365,634)
Decrease in contract liabilities aRAaERD (256,672) (58,811)
Increase in accrued expenses and FEEHF X I B th FE SRR
other payables 10 5,742 66,734
Decrease in provision for RIS
warranties (16,798) (52,924)
Cash generated from operations KESEE 26,008 146,132
Income tax paid B ATISRL 25(a) (15,949) (41,413)
Income tax refunded FTS TR 25(a) 150 25,181
Net cash generated from RETHMBES
operating activities B 10,209 129,900

The notes on pages 135 to 267 form part of these financial FI1BBEEF267THZNERLEZFNT
statements. k2 —8n o

B EERARA T | S R



Consolidated Cash Flow Statement (continued)

EHEERER®

(Expressed in RMB)
(AARBRER)

Investing activities

Payments for purchase of property,
plant and equipment

Proceeds from disposal of property,
plant and equipment, land use
rights and assets classifieds as
held for sale

Net proceeds from/(payments for)
other time deposits

Interest received

Net cash generated from/(used
in) investing activities

Financing activities

Proceeds from new bank loans and
other borrowings

Proceeds from sale of shares under
share award scheme

Repayment of bank loans and other
borrowings

Net payments for time deposits
to secure bank loans and other
borrowings

Capital element of lease rentals paid

Interest element of lease rentals paid

Borrowing costs paid

Net cash used in financing
activities

Net decrease in cash and cash
equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents at
1 January

Effect of foreign exchange rate
changes

Cash and cash equivalents at
31 December

The notes on pages 135 to 267 form part of these financial

statements.

YUANDA CHINA HOLDINGS LIMITED

For the year ended 31 December 2020
HZE2020F 12 A31 HILFE

Note
Hiat

REEH

EENE  BELRREURL
{5 FR A 2R

HEWE  BERRE -

L fE AR R DK
BREELEEEY

FREE
HibFEEREHMER
(XH)

B U FI &

REFEBFHE(FTA)
RE&FHE

BMEEE

FBIRTT R E AR E R
GIESEN
RIBR D RE) T B &
B A7 P 155K
BEBITERR
HABtE K
RIRITERREM

& R 0 E
7%
ENHERS 2 EARED
ENHEERSZF S #B D
EREERA

RMEEBTARE
T

RERRESEEY
W R

R1B1EHNRER
Be%EY

IEERS D
s/

N4 —

R12A31BEHNEER
BEEEY

19(b)

19(b)

19(b)
19(b)
19(b)

19(a)

19(a)

2020 2019
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARET T ARETIT
(8,764) (12,909)
102,075 478,218
211,116 (650,000)
18,760 16,920
323,187 (167,771)
3,709,902 3,827,271
34 -
(3,426,768)  (4,131,441)
(454,550) (183,200)
(35,057) (12,816)
(1,710) (1,055)
(167,777) (206,115)
(375,926) (707,356)
(42,530) (745,227)
559,265 1,299,410
(8,170) 5,082
508,565 559,265

BEZ 5 -
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Notes to the Financial Statements

CORPORATE INFORMATION

Yuanda China Holdings Limited (the “Company”) was
incorporated in the Cayman Islands on 26 February
2010 as an exempted company with limited liability
under the Companies Law, Chapter 22 (Law 3 of
1961, as consolidated and revised) of the Cayman
Islands. The shares of the Company were listed on
The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (the “Stock
Exchange”) on 17 May 2011. The consolidated financial
statements of the Company comprise the Company and
its subsidiaries (collectively referred to as the “Group”).
The principal activities of the Group are the design,
procurement, production, sale and installation of curtain
wall systems.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(@)

Statement of compliance

The financial statements have been prepared
in accordance with all applicable International
Financial Reporting Standards (“IFRSs”), which
collective term includes all applicable individual
International Financial Reporting Standards,
International Accounting Standards (“IASs”) and
related Interpretations issued by the International
Accounting Standards Board (the “IASB”). These
financial statements also comply with the disclosure
requirements of the Hong Kong Companies
Ordinance and the applicable disclosure provisions
of the Rules Governing the Listing of Securities on
the Stock Exchange (the “Listing Rules”). Significant
accounting policies adopted by the Group are
disclosed below.

The IASB has issued certain amendments to IFRSs
that are first effective or available for early adoption
for the current accounting period of the Group.
Note 2(c) provides information on any changes in
accounting policies resulting from initial application
of these developments to the extent that they are
relevant to the Group for the current accounting
periods reflected in the financial statements.

R 75 R R Y &

(Expressed in RMB unless otherwise indicated)
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Notes to the Financial Statements (continued)
B 7% S 3% f & ()

(Expressed in RMB unless otherwise indicated)

(Bx
2

ZAEBRI

AARBEREBA)

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

(o)

Basis of preparation of the financial statements

The measurement basis used in the preparation of
the financial statements is the historical cost basis
except for derivative financial instruments which are
stated at their fair values (See Note 2(e)).

The Company has its functional currency in Hong
Kong dollar (“HK$”). As majority of the Group’s
operation are conducted by the subsidiaries of the
Group in mainland China in Renminbi (“RMB”), the
consolidated financial statements are presented in
Renminbi.

The Group had incurred a net loss of
RMB690,625,000 for the year ended 31
December 2020 (31 December 2019: net profit
of RMB89,820,000). Notwithstanding the above,
based on a cash flow forecast of the Group for the
twelve months ending 31 December 2021 prepared
by the management, which has taken into account
the unutilised bank facilities and the expected
renewal of the short-term loans upon maturity,
the directors of the Company are of the opinion
that the Group will have adequate funds to meet
its liabilities as and when they fall due for at least
twelve months from the end of the reporting period
and it is appropriate to prepare the consolidated
financial statements on a going concern basis.

YUANDA CHINA HOLDINGS LIMITED Annual Report 2020
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Notes to the Financial Statements (continued)

2  SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

(o)

Basis of preparation of the financial statements
(continued)

The preparation of financial statements in
conformity with IFRSs requires management to
make judgements, estimates and assumptions
that affect the application of policies and reported
amounts of assets, liabilities, income and expenses.
The estimates and associated assumptions are
based on historical experience and various other
factors that are believed to be reasonable under the
circumstances, the results of which form the basis
of making the judgements about carrying values of
assets and liabilities that are not readily apparent
from other sources. Actual results may differ from
these estimates.

The estimates and underlying assumptions are
reviewed on an ongoing basis. Revisions to
accounting estimates are recognised in the period
in which the estimate is revised if the revision
affects only that period, or in the period of the
revision and future periods if the revision affects
both current and future periods.

Judgements made by management in the
application of IFRSs that have significant effect
on the financial statements and major sources of
estimation uncertainty are discussed in Note 3.

Bt 75 3 3% MY & )

(Expressed in RMB unless otherwise indicated)
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Notes to the Financial Statements (continued)

Bt 75 3 3% MY & ()

(Expressed in RMB unless otherwise indicated)

(REEEBI  UARERER)
2  SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

(c) Changes in accounting policies

The IASB has issued the following amendments
to IFRSs that are first effective for the current
accounting period of the Group:

° Amendments to IFRS 3, Definition of a
Business

° Amendments to IFRS 9, IAS 39 and IFRS 7,
Interest Rate Benchmark Reform

° Amendments to IAS 1 and |IAS 8, Definition of
Material

° Amendment to IFRS 16, Covid-19-Related
Rent Concessions

None of these developments have had a material
effect on how the Group’s results and financial
position for the current period have been prepared
or presented. The Group has not applied any new
standard or interpretation that is not yet effective
for the current accounting period.
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Notes to the Financial Statements (continued)

2  SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

(d)

Subsidiaries and non-controlling interests

Subsidiaries are entities controlled by the Group.
The Group controls an entity when it is exposed, or
has rights, to variable returns from its involvement
with the entity and has the ability to affect those
returns through its power over the entity. When
assessing whether the Group has power, only
substantive rights (held by the Group and other
parties) are considered.

An investment in a subsidiary is consolidated into
the consolidated financial statements from the
date that control commences until the date that
control ceases. Intra-group balances, transactions
and cash flows and any unrealised profits arising
from intra-group transactions are eliminated in full
in preparing the consolidated financial statements.
Unrealised losses resulting from intra-group
transactions are eliminated in the same way as
unrealised gains but only to the extent that there is
no evidence of impairment.

Changes in the Group’s equity interests in a
subsidiary that do not result in a loss of control
are accounted for as equity transactions, whereby
adjustments are made to the amounts of controlling
and non-controlling interests within consolidated
equity to reflect the change in relative equity
interests, but no adjustments are made to goodwill
and no gain or loss is recognised.
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Notes to the Financial Statements (continued)
B 7% S 3% f & ()

(Expressed in RMB unless otherwise indicated)

(Bx

2

ZAEBRI

AARBEREBA)

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

(d)

Subsidiaries and non-controlling interests
(continued)

When the Group loses control of a subsidiary, it
is accounted for as a disposal of the entire equity
interests in that subsidiary, with a resulting gain or
loss being recognised in the consolidated statement
of profit or loss. Any equity interests retained in
that former subsidiary at the date when control is
lost is recognised at fair value and this amount is
regarded as the fair value on initial recognition of
a financial asset or, when appropriate, the cost on
initial recognition of an investment in an associate
or joint venture.

In the Company’s statement of financial position,
an investment in a subsidiary is stated at cost less
impairment losses (see Note 2(j)(ii)), unless the

investment is classified as held-for-sale.

Derivative financial instruments

Derivative financial instruments are recognised
at fair value. At the end of each reporting period
the fair value is remeasured. The gain or loss
on remeasurement to fair value is recognised
immediately in profit or loss.

Investment property

Investment properties are land and/or buildings
which are owned or held under a leasehold interest
(see Note 2(i)) to earn rental income and/or for
capital appreciation. These include land held for a
currently undetermined future use and property that
is being constructed or developed for future use as
investment property.
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Notes to the Financial Statements (continued)

2  SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

(f)

Investment property (continued)

Investment properties are stated at cost less
accumulated depreciation and impairment losses
(see Note 2(j)(ii)).
same as that of property, plant and equipment
(see Note 2(g))-
properties is accounted for as described in Note
2(t)(iv).

The depreciation policy is the

Rental income from investment

Property, plant and equipment

Property, plant and equipment are stated at cost
less accumulated depreciation and impairment
losses (see Note 2(j)(ii)).

The cost of self-constructed items of property,
plant and equipment includes the cost of materials,
direct labour, the initial estimate, where relevant,
of the costs of dismantling and removing the items
and restoring the site on which they are located,
and an appropriate proportion of production
overheads and borrowing costs (see Note 2(v)).

Gains or losses arising from the retirement
or disposal of an item of property, plant and
equipment are determined as the difference
between the net disposal proceeds and the carrying
amount of the item and are recognised in profit or
loss on the date of retirement or disposal.
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Notes to the Financial Statements (continued)
B 7% S 3% f & ()

(Expressed in RMB unless otherwise indicated)

(Bx
2

ZAEBRI

AARBEREBA)

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

(9

Property, plant and equipment (continued)

Depreciation is calculated to write-off the cost of
items of property, plant and equipment, less their
estimated residual values, if any, using the straight-
line method over their estimated useful lives as
follows:

Estimated useful lives

Plant and buildings 30 years
Machinery and equipment 15 years
Motor vehicles and other

equipment 5 years

Where parts of an item of property, plant and
equipment have different useful lives, the cost of
the item is allocated on a reasonable basis between
the parts and each part is depreciated separately.
Both the estimated useful life of an asset and
its residual value are reviewed annually. No
depreciation is provided in respect of construction
in progress until it is completed and ready for its
intended use.

Research and development expenditure

Expenditure on research and development activities
is recognised as an expense in the period in which
it is incurred.

Leased assets

At inception of a contract, the Group assesses
whether the contract is, or contains, a lease. A
contract is, or contains, a lease if the contract
conveys the right to control the use of an
identified asset for a period of time in exchange
for consideration. Control is conveyed where the
customer has both the right to direct the use of the
identified asset and to obtain substantially all of the
economic benefits from that use.
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Notes to the Financial Statements (continued)

2  SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

(i) Leased assets (continued)

U]

As a lessee

Where the contract contains lease
component(s) and non-lease component(s),
the Group has elected not to separate
non-lease components and accounts for
each lease component and any associated
non-lease components as a single lease
component for all leases.

At the lease commencement date, the Group
recognises a right-of-use asset and a lease
liability. When the Group enters into a lease
in respect of a low-value asset, the Group
decides whether to capitalise the lease on
a lease-by-lease basis. The lease payments
associated with those leases which are not
capitalised are recognised as an expense on
a systematic basis over the lease term.

Where the lease is capitalised, the lease
liability is initially recognised at the present
value of the lease payments payable over
the lease term, discounted using the interest
rate implicit in the lease or, if that rate cannot
be readily determined, using a relevant
incremental borrowing rate. After initial
recognition, the lease liability is measured
at amortised cost and interest expense is
calculated using the effective interest method.
Variable lease payments that do not depend
on an index or rate are not included in the
measurement of the lease liability and hence
are charged to profit or loss in the accounting
period in which they are incurred.
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Notes to the Financial Statements (continued)
B 7% S 3% f & ()

(Expressed in RMB unless otherwise indicated)

(Bx
2

YUANDA CHINA HOLDINGS LIMITED

ZAEBRI

AARBEREBA)

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

(i)

Leased assets (continued)

U]

As a lessee (continued)

The right-of-use asset recognised when a
lease is capitalised is initially measured at
cost, which comprises the initial amount of
the lease liability plus any lease payments
made at or before the commencement date,
and any initial direct costs incurred. Where
applicable, the cost of the right-of-use
assets also includes an estimate of costs to
dismantle and remove the underlying asset or
to restore the underlying asset or the site on
which it is located, discounted to their present
value, less any lease incentives received.
The right-of-use asset is subsequently stated
at cost less accumulated depreciation and
impairment losses (see Notes 2(g) and 2(j)(ii)).

The lease liability is remeasured when there
is a change in future lease payments arising
from a change in an index or rate, or there
is a change in the Group’s estimate of the
amount expected to be payable under a
residual value guarantee, or there is a change
arising from the reassessment of whether the
Group will be reasonably certain to exercise
a purchase, extension or termination option.
When the lease liability is remeasured in this
way, a corresponding adjustment is made to
the carrying amount of the right-of-use asset,
or is recorded in profit or loss if the carrying
amount of the right-of-use asset has been
reduced to zero.
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Notes to the Financial Statements (continued)

2  SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

(i) Leased assets (continued)

U]

(i)

As a lessee (continued)

The lease liability is also remeasured when
there is a change in the scope of a lease
or the consideration for a lease that is not
originally provided for in the lease contract
(“lease modification”) that is not accounted
for as a separate lease. In this case the lease
liability is remeasured based on the revised
lease payments and lease term using a
revised discount rate at the effective date of
the modification.

In the consolidated statement of financial
position, the current portion of long-term
lease liabilities is determined as the present
value of contractual payments that are due
to be settled within twelve months after the
reporting period.

As a lessor

When the Group acts as a lessor, it
determines at lease inception whether each
lease is a finance lease or an operating lease.
A lease is classified as a finance lease if it
transfers substantially all the risks and rewards
incidental to the ownership of an underlying
assets to the lessee. If this is not the case,
the lease is classified as an operating lease.
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Notes to the Financial Statements (continued)
B 7% S 3% f & ()

(Expressed in RMB unless otherwise indicated)

(Bx

2

ZAEBRI

AARBEREBA)

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

(i) Leased assets (continued)

(i)

As a lessor (continued)

When a contract contains lease and non-
lease components, the Group allocates
the consideration in the contract to each
component on a relative stand-alone selling
price basis. The rental income from operating
leases is recognised in accordance with Note

2(t)(iv).

(i) Credit losses and impairment of assets

U]

Credit losses from financial instruments
and contract assets

The Group recognises a loss allowance for
expected credit losses (ECLs) on the following
items:

- financial assets measured at amortised
cost (including cash on hand and in
bank, trade receivables and deposits
and other receivables); and

- contract assets as defined in IFRS 15
(see Note 2(l).

Derivative financial instruments measured
at fair value are not subject to the ECL
assessment.
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Notes to the Financial Statements (continued)

2  SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

(i) Credit losses and impairment of assets (continued)

U]

Credit losses from financial instruments
and contract assets (continued)

Measurement of ECLs

ECLs are a probability-weighted estimate of
credit losses. Credit losses are measured
as the present value of all expected cash
shortfalls (i.e. the difference between the
cash flows due to the Group in accordance
with the contract and the cash flows that the
Group expects to receive).

The expected cash shortfalls are discounted
using the following discount rates where the
effect of discounting is material:

- fixed-rate financial assets, trade

receivables, deposits and other
receivables and contract assets:
effective interest rate determined at initial
recognition or an approximation thereof;

and

- variable-rate financial assets: current
effective interest rate.

The maximum period considered when
estimating ECLs is the maximum contractual
period over which the Group is exposed to
credit risk.
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Notes to the Financial Statements (continued)
B 7% S 3% f & ()

(Expressed in RMB unless otherwise indicated)

(REEEBI  UARERER)
2  SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued) 2 EBEAREHEHEE)

()  Credit losses and impairment of assets (continued) () ERBEAREEREE)

(i) Credit losses from financial instruments (i) EWMIBEREREESR
and contract assets (continued) REX(E)
Measurement of ECLs (continued) FrEERE R (E)
In measuring ECLs, the Group takes into REERHEREBX
account reasonable and supportable B AEBeEEEH
information that is available without undue FAEBEZRAN NS S
cost or effort. This includes information about TR ESENEBEE
past events, current conditions and forecasts Erlo WIEBEAMA
of future economic conditions. FEH BERIRE

AR PR A B AR S TE ORI ) &
£} o

ECLs are measured on either of the following TEEAE B LB A

bases: TEREEFE :

-~ 12-month ECLs: these are losses that - 12EAEHEAR
are expected to result from possible B 1EdRE HH
default events within the 12 months after ‘1218 A A AT g
the reporting date; and BERELDSHM

BY R TEHEE
K

- lifetime ECLs: these are losses that -  EEAFEHNES
are expected to result from all possible fEREKk : 578 H
default events over the expected lives = 18 S A8 A 33
of the items to which the ECL model 15 B 2 TR Ef R {F
applies. FHIAFA A aLE

HEMHMERNTE
HAE1E -
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Notes to the Financial Statements (continued)

2  SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

(i) Credit losses and impairment of assets (continued)

U]

Credit losses from financial instruments
and contract assets (continued)

Measurement of ECLs (continued)

Loss allowances for trade receivables and
contract assets are always measured at an
amount equal to lifetime ECLs. ECLs on
these financial assets are estimated using
a provision matrix based on the Group’s
historical credit loss experience, adjusted for
factors that are specific to the debtors and an
assessment of both the current and forecast
general economic conditions at the reporting
date.

For all other financial instruments, the
Group recognises a loss allowance equal
to 12-month ECLs unless there has been
a significant increase in credit risk of the
financial instrument since initial recognition, in
which case the loss allowance is measured at
an amount equal to lifetime ECLs.
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Notes to the Financial Statements (continued)
B 7% S 3% f & ()

(Expressed in RMB unless otherwise indicated)

(B=EEHAN -
2

AARBEREBA)

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

(i) Credit losses and impairment of assets (continued)

U]

Credit losses from financial instruments
and contract assets (continued)

Significant increases in credit risk

In assessing whether the credit risk of a
financial instrument has increased significantly
since initial recognition, the Group compares
the risk of default occurring on the financial
instrument assessed at the reporting date
with that assessed at the date of initial
recognition. In making this reassessment,
the Group considers that a default event
occurs when (i) the borrower is unlikely to
pay its credit obligations to the Group in full,
without recourse by the Group to actions
such as realising security (if any is held); or
(i) the financial asset is 90 days past due.
The Group considers both quantitative and
qualitative information that is reasonable and
supportable, including historical experience
and forward-looking information that is
available without undue cost or effort.

In particular, the following information is taken
into account when assessing whether credit
risk has increased significantly since initial
recognition:

= failure to make payments of principal or
interest on their contractually due dates;

— an actual or expected significant
deterioration in a financial instrument’s
external or internal credit rating (if
available);
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Notes to the Financial Statements (continued)

2  SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

(i) Credit losses and impairment of assets (continued)

U]

Credit losses from financial instruments
and contract assets (continued)

Significant increases in credit risk (continued)

— an actual or expected significant
deterioration in the operating results of
the debtor; and

- existing or forecast changes in the

technological, market, economic or
legal environment that have a significant
adverse effect on the debtor’s ability to

meet its obligation to the Group.

Depending on the nature of the financial
instruments, the assessment of a significant
increase in credit risk is performed on either
an individual basis or a collective basis. When
the assessment is performed on a collective
basis, the financial instruments are grouped
based on shared credit risk characteristics,
such as past due status and credit risk
ratings.

ECLs are remeasured at each reporting date
to reflect changes in the financial instrument’s
credit risk since initial recognition. Any
change in the ECL amount is recognised as
an impairment gain or loss in profit or loss.
The Group recognises an impairment gain
or loss for all financial instruments with a
corresponding adjustment to their carrying
amount through a loss allowance account.
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Notes to the Financial Statements (continued)
B 7% S 3% f & ()

(Expressed in RMB unless otherwise indicated)

(Bx
2

ZAEBRI

AARBEREBA)

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

(i) Credit losses and impairment of assets (continued)

U]

Credit losses from financial instruments
and contract assets (continued)

Basis of calculation of interest income

Interest income recognised in accordance
with Note 2(t)(v) is calculated based on the
gross carrying amount of the financial asset
unless the financial asset is credit-impaired,
in which case interest income is calculated
based on the amortised cost (i.e. the gross
carrying amount less loss allowance) of the
financial asset.

At each reporting date, the Group assesses
whether a financial asset is credit-impaired. A
financial asset is credit-impaired when one or
more events that have a detrimental impact
on the estimated future cash flows of the
financial asset have occurred.

Evidence that a financial asset is credit-
impaired includes the following observable
events:

significant financial difficulties of the
debtor;

- a breach of contract, such as a default
or past due event;

- it becoming probable that the borrower
will enter into bankruptcy or other
financial reorganisation; or

= significant changes in the technological,
market, economic or legal environment
that have an adverse effect on the
debtor.
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Notes to the Financial Statements (continued)

2  SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

(i) Credit losses and impairment of assets (continued)

U]

(ii)

Credit losses from financial instruments
and contract assets (continued)

Write-off policy

The gross carrying amount of a financial asset
or contract asset is written off (either partially
or in full) to the extent that there is no realistic
prospect of recovery. This is generally the
case when the Group determines that the
debtor does not have assets or sources of
income that could generate sufficient cash
flows to repay the amounts subject to the
write-off.

Subsequent recoveries of an asset that was
previously written off are recognised as a
reversal of impairment in profit or loss in the
period in which the recovery occurs.

Impairment of other non-current assets

Internal and external sources of information
are reviewed at the end of each reporting
period to identify indications that the following
assets may be impaired or an impairment loss
previously recognised no longer exists or may
have decreased:

- property, plant and equipment;

- right-of-use assets;
— investment property; and
= investments in subsidiaries in the

Company’s statement of financial
position.
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Notes to the Financial Statements (continued)
B 7% S 3% f & ()

(Expressed in RMB unless otherwise indicated)

(Bx
2

YUANDA CHINA HOLDINGS LIMITED

ZAEBRI

AARBEREBA)

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

0)

Credit losses and impairment of assets (continued)

(i)

Impairment of other non-current assets
(continued)

If any such indication exists, the asset’s
recoverable amount is estimated.

Calculation of recoverable amount

The recoverable amount of an asset is

the greater of its fair value less costs of
disposal and value in use. In assessing
value in use, the estimated future cash
flows are discounted to their present
value using a pre-tax discount rate that
reflects current market assessments of
the time value of money and the risks
specific to the asset. Where an asset
does not generate cash inflows largely
independent of those from other assets,
the recoverable amount is determined
for the smallest group of assets that
generates cash inflows independently

(i.e. a cash-generating unit).
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Notes to the Financial Statements (continued)
B 7% S 3} MY & (@)

(Expressed in RMB unless otherwise indicated)

(BREEHEBAIN  AARERER)

2 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued) 2 BEREFEHEE)
()  Credit losses and impairment of assets (continued) () EREXKREEREE)
(i) Impairment of other non-current assets (i) EMFERBEERE
(continued) (%)
Recognition of impairment losses -  WERREEE
An impairment loss is recognised in HEENKEFTEIR
profit or loss if the carrying amount of ©EAEBEMAERE
an asset, or the cash-generating unit to BRAE A W E &

which it belongs, exceeds its recoverable
amount. Impairment losses recognised
in respect of cash-generating units are
allocated to reduce the carrying amount
of the other assets in the unit (or group
of units) on a pro rata basis, except that
the carrying value of an asset will not be
reduced below its individual fair value
less costs of disposal (if measurable) or
value in use (if determinable).

Reversals of impairment losses

An impairment loss is reversed if there
has been a favourable change in
the estimates used to determine the
recoverable amount.

A reversal of an impairment loss is
limited to the asset’s carrying amount
that would have been determined had no
impairment loss been recognised in prior
years. Reversals of impairment losses
are credited to profit or loss in the year
in which the reversals are recognised.
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Notes to the Financial Statements (continued)
B 7% S 3% f & ()

(Expressed in RMB unless otherwise indicated)

(REEEBI  UARERER)
2  SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued) 2 EBEAREHEHEE)

()  Credit losses and impairment of assets (continued) () ERBEAREEREE)

(iii) Interim financial reporting and impairment (iii) PHIMBE®RERRE
Under the Listing Rules, the Group is required B FHRE - AEFH
to prepare an interim financial report in BT et ERE
compliance with IAS 34, Interim financial MHEHR BB HRER
reporting, in respect of the first six months REBY BFEE H/NE
of the financial year. At the end of the AR BB SRR - R
interim period, the Group applies the same FERHACR - NEEEH
impairment testing, recognition, and reversal ZRFBFEERZBE
criteria as it would at the end of the financial Bt - FERR K B O] fZ 4
year (see Notes 2(j)(i) and 2(j)(ii). (RBHEE 20)0) X 2()(i)) °

(k) Inventories and other contract costs k) TFEREMARRKAN

() Inventories (i) &E
Inventories are assets which are held for sale FERIEHEXEKBRE
in the ordinary course of business, in the RERUEHEE  BE
process of production for such sale or in the RZEHENEERRE
form of materials or supplies to be consumed o sk AEAEERIE
in the production process or in the rendering T2 1t AR 765 7€ A A9 A1 R Bk
of services. MBI IFENEE
Inventories are carried at the lower of cost TFE R 7N K 7] 8438 7%
and net realisable value. ERRIEETR
Inventories include the cost of raw materials FERREFEEZEET
waiting to be assigned to specific construction EEA R AR MR B
contracts. The cost of inventories includes $ FERANBIERE
design costs, costs of purchase, direct labour, BAR S EREBAAN - B
other direct costs and production overheads. AT« HhBEERA R

EERERX -

Net realisable value is the estimated selling AR EEAER T X
price in the ordinary course of business less HiREFR G S B
the estimated cost of completion and the E TR BT A AN A K
estimated costs necessary to make the sale. SEAK HHE A ETAR AN o
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Notes to the Financial Statements (continued)

2  SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

(k) Inventories and other contract costs (continued)

U]

(i)

Inventories (continued)

When inventories are assigned to specific
construction contracts, the carrying amount of
those inventories is recognised as an expense
in the year in which the related revenue is
recognised.

The amount of any write-down of inventories
to net realisable value and all losses of
inventories are recognised as an expense in
the year the write-down or loss occurs. The
amount of any reversal of any write-down
of inventories is recognised as a reduction
in the amount of inventories recognised as
an expense in the year in which the reversal
occurs.

Other contract costs

Other contract costs are either the
incremental costs of obtaining a contract with
a customer or the costs to fulfil a contract
with a customer which are not capitalised as
inventory (see Note 2(k)(i)).

Incremental costs of obtaining a contract
are those costs that the Group incurs to
obtain a contract with a customer that it
would not have incurred if the contract had
not been obtained e.g. an incremental sales
commission. Incremental costs of obtaining
a contract are capitalised when incurred if
the costs relate to revenue which will be
recognised in a future reporting period and
the costs are expected to be recovered. Other
costs of obtaining a contract are expensed
when incurred.
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Notes to the Financial Statements (continued)
B 7% S 3% f & ()

(Expressed in RMB unless otherwise indicated)

(Bx
2

ZAEBRI

AARBEREBA)

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

(k)

Inventories and other contract costs (continued)

(i)

Other contract costs (continued)

Costs to fulfil a contract are capitalised if the
costs relate directly to an existing contract
or to a specifically identifiable anticipated
contract; generate or enhance resources that
will be used to provide goods or services in
the future; and are expected to be recovered.
Costs that relate directly to an existing
contract or to a specifically identifiable
anticipated contract may include direct labour,
direct materials, allocations of costs, costs
that are explicitly chargeable to the customer
and other costs that are incurred only
because the Group entered into the contract
(for example, payments to sub-contractors).
Other costs of fulfilling a contract, which are
not capitalised as inventory are expensed as
incurred.

Capitalised contract costs are stated at cost
less accumulated amortisation and impairment
losses. Impairment losses are recognised to
the extent that the carrying amount of the
contract cost asset exceeds the net of (i)
remaining amount of consideration that the
Group expects to receive in exchange for
the goods or services to which the asset
relates, less (ii) any costs that relate directly to
providing those goods or services that have
not yet been recognised as expenses.

Amortisation of capitalised contract costs is
charged to profit or loss when the revenue
to which the asset relates is recognised. The
accounting policy for revenue recognition is
set out in Note 2(t).
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Notes to the Financial Statements (continued)

2  SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

(1)

Contract assets and contract liabilities

A contract asset is recognised when the Group
recognises revenue (see Note 2(t)) before being
unconditionally entitled to the consideration under
the payment terms set out in the contract. Contract
assets are assessed for ECL in accordance with
the policy set out in Note 2(j)() and are reclassified
to receivables when the right to the consideration
has become unconditional (see Note 2(m)).

A contract liability is recognised when the customer
pays non-refundable consideration before the
Group recognises the related revenue (see Note
2(t)). A contract liability would also be recognised
if the Group has an unconditional right to receive
non-refundable consideration before the Group
recognises the related revenue. In such cases, a
corresponding receivable would also be recognised
(see Note 2(m)).

For a single contract with the customer, either
a net contract asset or a net contract liability is
presented. For multiple contracts, contract assets
and contract liabilities of unrelated contracts are
not presented on a net basis.

Trade and other receivables

A receivable is recognised when the Group has an
unconditional right to receive consideration. A right
to receive consideration is unconditional if only
the passage of time is required before payment
of that consideration is due. If revenue has been
recognised before the Group has an unconditional
right to receive consideration, the amount is
presented as a contract asset (see Note 2(1)).

Receivables are stated at amortised cost using the
effective interest method, less allowance for credit
losses (see Note 2())(i)).
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Notes to the Financial Statements (continued)
B 7% S 3% f & ()

(Expressed in RMB unless otherwise indicated)

(Bx
2

ZAEBRI

AARBEREBA)

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

()

Cash and cash equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents comprise cash at bank
and on hand, demand deposits with banks and
other financial institutions, and short-term, highly
liquid investments that are readily convertible into
known amounts of cash and which are subject to
an insignificant risk of changes in value, having
been within three months of maturity at acquisition.
Cash and cash equivalents are assessed for ECL in
accordance with the policy set out in Note 2(j)(i).

Trade and other payables

Trade and other payables are initially recognised at
fair value, and are subsequently stated at amortised
cost unless the effect of discounting would be
immaterial, in which case they are stated at cost.

Interest-bearing borrowings

Interest-bearing borrowings are measured initially
at fair value less transaction costs. Subsequent
to initial recognition, interest-bearing borrowings
are stated at amortised cost using the effective
interest method. Interest expense is recognised in
accordance with the Group’s accounting policy for
borrowing costs (see Note 2(v)).
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Notes to the Financial Statements (continued)

2  SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

() Employee benefits

U]

(ii)

Short-term employee benefits and
contributions to defined contribution
retirement plans

Salaries, annual bonuses, paid annual
leave, contributions to defined contribution
retirement plans and the cost of non-
monetary benefits are accrued in the year in
which the associated services are rendered
by employees of the Group. Where payment
or settlement is deferred and the effect would
be material, these amounts are stated at their
present values.

The Group’s contributions to defined
contribution retirement plans are charged to
profit or loss when incurred, except to the
extent that they are included in the cost of
inventories not yet recognised as an expense.

Share-based payments

The shares awarded under the share award
scheme are acquired from open market. The
net consideration paid, including any directly
attributable incremental costs, is presented as
“Shares held under share award scheme” and
deducted from equity.

Bt 75 3 3% MY & )

(Expressed in RMB unless otherwise indicated)

(BR=EEBI -

AARKEREN)

2 EBEXREFEEAE)

(@) EEEF

U]

(ii)

HHAEEREARERE
HFR KT EI ALK

e FEREL BF
FR - AFREHRFENK
sHEIME R MEE A
MRARTIRASERE
REMERBHFER
FEEt o fREHAT SRk A
B -MmMEEBEX - A

R EE A 5 E HFRIK
AHEIMER TR E LR
REB R AR - X
BEFFATFERAE R R
FER AR E RIR

BARAR S 3R

B fn B2 Ep At &1 1R /Y iR
BB RR™S © T
XNREFBR(BREE
o] B B FE A5 18 D AX A )
T3 25 BRI\ B A 82
By EF 8155 A W B

W s AFARR

B EERARA T | S R



Notes to the Financial Statements (continued)
B 7% S 3% f & ()

(Expressed in RMB unless otherwise indicated)

(Bx

2

ZAEBRI

AARBEREBA)

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

(@)

Employee benefits (continued)

(i)

Share-based payments (continued)

For shares granted under the share award
scheme, the fair value of shares granted to
employees is recognised as an employee
cost with a corresponding increase in capital
reserve within equity. The fair value is based
on the closing price of the Company’s shares
on grant date plus any directly attributable
incremental costs. Where the employees have
to meet vesting conditions before becoming
unconditionally entitled to the shares, the
total fair value of the shares is spread over
the vesting period, taking into account the
probability that the shares will vest.

During the vesting period, the number of
shares that is expected to vest is reviewed.
Any resulting adjustment to the cumulative fair
value recognised in prior years is charged/
credited to profit or loss for the year of
the review, unless the original employee
expenses qualify for recognition as an asset,
with a corresponding adjustment to the
capital reserve. On vesting date, the amount
recognised as an expense is adjusted to
reflect the actual number of shares that vest
with a corresponding adjustment to the capital
reserve.
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Notes to the Financial Statements (continued)

2  SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

(@)

Employee benefits (continued)

(i) Share-based payments (continued)

When the awarded shares are transferred
to the awardees upon vesting, the related
weighted average acquisition cost of the
awarded shares vested are credited to
“Shares held under share award scheme”,
and the grant date fair value of the awarded
shares vested are debited to the capital
reserve. The difference between the related
weighted average acquisition cost and the
grant date fair value of the awarded shares
vested is transferred to retained profits
directly.

(iii) Termination benefits

Termination benefits are recognised at the
earlier of when the Group can no longer
withdraw the offer of those benefits and when
it recognises restructuring costs involving the
payment of termination benefits.

Income tax

Income tax for the year comprises current tax and
movements in deferred tax assets and liabilities.
Current tax and movements in deferred tax assets
and liabilities are recognised in profit or loss except
to the extent that they relate to items recognised
in other comprehensive income or directly in
equity, in which case the relevant amounts of tax
are recognised in other comprehensive income or
directly in equity, respectively.
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Notes to the Financial Statements (continued)
B 7% S 3% f & ()

(Expressed in RMB unless otherwise indicated)

(Bx
2

YUANDA CHINA HOLDINGS LIMITED

ZAEBRI

AARBEREBA)

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

(r)

Income tax (continued)

Current tax is the expected tax payable on the
taxable income for the year, using tax rates
enacted or substantively enacted at the end of the
reporting period, and any adjustment to tax payable
in respect of previous years.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities arise from
deductible and taxable temporary differences
respectively, being the differences between the
carrying amounts of assets and liabilities for
financial reporting purposes and their tax bases.
Deferred tax assets also arise from unused tax
losses and unused tax credits.

Apart from certain limited exceptions, all deferred
tax liabilities, and all deferred tax assets to the
extent that it is probable that future taxable profits
will be available against which the asset can be
utilised, are recognised. Future taxable profits that
may support the recognition of deferred tax assets
arising from deductible temporary differences
include those that will arise from the reversal of
existing taxable temporary differences, provided
those differences relate to the same taxation
authority and the same taxable entity, and are
expected to reverse either in the same period as
the expected reversal of the deductible temporary
difference or in periods into which a tax loss arising
from the deferred tax asset can be carried back
or forward. The same criteria are adopted when
determining whether existing taxable temporary
differences support the recognition of deferred tax
assets arising from unused tax losses and credits,
that is, those differences are taken into account if
they relate to the same taxation authority and the
same taxable entity, and are expected to reverse in
a period, or periods, in which the tax loss or credit
can be utilised.
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Notes to the Financial Statements (continued)

2  SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

(r)

Income tax (continued)

The limited exceptions to recognition of deferred
tax assets and liabilities are those temporary
differences arising from the initial recognition of
assets or liabilities that affect neither accounting
nor taxable profit (provided they are not part of a
business combination), and temporary differences
relating to investments in subsidiaries to the
extent that, in the case of taxable differences, the
Group controls the timing of the reversal and it is
probable that the differences will not reverse in
the foreseeable future, or in the case of deductible
differences, unless it is probable that they will
reverse in the future.

The amount of deferred tax recognised is measured
based on the expected manner of realisation or
settlement of the carrying amount of the assets and
liabilities, using tax rates enacted or substantively
enacted at the end of the reporting period. Deferred
tax assets and liabilities are not discounted.

The carrying amount of a deferred tax asset is
reviewed at the end of each reporting period and is
reduced to the extent that it is no longer probable
that sufficient taxable profits will be available to
allow the related tax benefit to be utilised. Any
such reduction is reversed to the extent that it
becomes probable that sufficient taxable profits will
be available.

Additional income taxes that arise from the
distribution of dividends are recognised when the
liability to pay the related dividends is recognised.
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Notes to the Financial Statements (continued)

Bt 75 3 3% MY & ()

(Expressed in RMB unless otherwise indicated)

(REEEBI  UARERER)
2  SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

(n  Income tax (continued)

Current tax balances and deferred tax balances,
and movements therein, are presented separately
from each other and are not offset. Current tax
assets are offset against current tax liabilities, and
deferred tax assets against deferred tax liabilities,
if the Company or the Group has the legally
enforceable right to set off current tax assets
against current tax liabilities and the following
additional conditions are met:

- in the case of current tax assets and liabilities,
the Company or the Group intends either to
settle on a net basis, or to realise the asset
and settle the liability simultaneously; or

- in the case of deferred tax assets and
liabilities, if they relate to income taxes levied
by the same taxation authority on either:

— the same taxable entity; or

= different taxable entities, which, in
each future period in which significant
amounts of deferred tax liabilities or
assets are expected to be settled or
recovered, intend to realise the current
tax assets and settle the current tax
liabilities on a net basis or realise and
settle simultaneously.
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Notes to the Financial Statements (continued)

2  SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

(s) Provisions and contingent liabilities and onerous

contracts

U]

(ii)

Provisions and contingent liabilities

Provisions are recognised when the Group
has a legal or constructive obligation arising
it is probable
that an outflow of economic benefits will be

as a result of a past event,

required to settle the obligation and a reliable
estimate can be made. Where the time value
of money is material, provisions are stated at
the present value of the expenditure expected
to settle the obligation.

Where it is not probable that an outflow of
economic benefits will be required, or the
amount cannot be estimated reliably, the
obligation is disclosed as a contingent liability,
unless the probability of outflow of economic
benefits is remote. Possible obligations,
whose existence will only be confirmed by the
occurrence or non-occurrence of one or more
future events are also disclosed as contingent
liabilities unless the probability of outflow of
economic benefits is remote.

Onerous contracts

An onerous contract exists when the Group
has a contract under which the unavoidable
costs of meeting the obligations under the
contract exceed the economic benefits
expected to be received from the contract.
Provisions for onerous contracts are
measured at the present value of the lower of
the expected cost of terminating the contract
and the net cost of continuing with the
contract.
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Notes to the Financial Statements (continued)
B 7% S 3% f & ()

(Expressed in RMB unless otherwise indicated)

(Bx
2

ZAEBRI

AARBEREBA)

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

(t)

Revenue and other income

Income is classified by the Group as revenue when
it arises from the sale of goods, the provision of
services or the use by others of the Group’s assets
under leases in the ordinary course of the Group’s
business.

Revenue is recognised when control over a product
or service is transferred to the customer, or the
lessee has the right to use the asset, at the amount
of promised consideration to which the Group is
expected to be entitled, excluding those amounts
collected on behalf of third parties. Revenue
excludes value added tax or other sales taxes and
is after deduction of any trade discounts.

Where the contract contains a financing component
which provides a significant financing benefit to
the customer for more than 12 months, revenue
is measured at the present value of the amount
receivable, discounted using the discount rate
that would be reflected in a separate financing
transaction with the customer, and interest
income is accrued separately under the effective
interest method. Where the contract contains a
financing component which provides a significant
financing benefit to the Group, revenue recognised
under that contract includes the interest expense
accreted on the contract liability under the effective
interest method. The Group takes advantage of the
practical expedient in paragraph 63 of IFRS 15 and
does not adjust the consideration for any effects of
a significant financing component if the period of
financing is 12 months or less.
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Notes to the Financial Statements (continued)

2  SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

(t) Revenue and other income (continued)

Further details of the Group’s revenue and other

income recognition policies are as follows:

U]

Construction contracts

A contract with a customer is classified by the
Group as a construction contract when the
contract relates to work on curtain wall under
the control of the customer and therefore
the Group’s construction activities create
or enhance an asset under the customer’s
control.

When the outcome of a construction contract
can be reasonably measured, revenue from
the contract is recognised progressively over
time using the cost-to-cost method, i.e. based
on the proportion of the actual costs incurred
relative to the estimated total contract costs.

The likelihood of the Group earning
contractual bonuses for early completion
or suffering contractual penalties for late
completion are taken into account in making
these estimates, such that revenue is only
recognised to the extent that it is highly
probable that a significant reversal in the
amount of cumulative revenue recognised will
not occur.

When the outcome of the contract cannot be
reasonably measured, revenue is recognised
only to the extent of contract costs incurred
that are expected to be recovered.
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Notes to the Financial Statements (continued)
B 7% S 3% f & ()

(Expressed in RMB unless otherwise indicated)

(Bx
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ZAEBRI

AARBEREBA)

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

()

Revenue and other income (continued)

U]

(i)

(iif)

Construction contracts (continued)

If at any time the costs to complete the
contract are estimated to exceed the
remaining amount of the consideration under
the contract, then a provision is recognised
in accordance with the policy set out in Note

2(s)(ii).

Service income

Service income from the rendering of services
is recognised when the related services are
rendered.

Sale of materials

Sale of materials is recognised when the
materials are delivered to the location
designated by the customer and the control
of the materials transferred to the customer,
at the amount of promised consideration to
which the Group is expected to be entitled,
excluding those amounts collected on behalf
of third parties. Revenue from sale of materials
excludes value added tax or other sales taxes
and is after deduction of any sales discounts.
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Notes to the Financial Statements (continued)

2  SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

(t) Revenue and other income (continued)

(iv) Rental income from operating leases

(v)

Rental income receivable under operating
leases is recognised in profit or loss in equal
instalments over the periods covered by
the lease term, except where an alternative
basis is more representative of the pattern
of benefits to be derived from the use of the
leased asset. Lease incentives granted are
recognised in profit or loss as an integral
part of the aggregate net lease payments
receivable. Variable lease payments that
do not depend on an index or a rate are
recognised as income in the accounting
period in which they are earned.

Interest income

Interest income is recognised as it accrues
under the effective interest method using the
rate that exactly discounts estimated future
cash receipts through the expected life of the
financial asset to the gross carrying amount of
the financial asset.
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Notes to the Financial Statements (continued)
B 7% S 3% f & ()

(Expressed in RMB unless otherwise indicated)

(Bx
2

ZAEBRI

AARBEREBA)

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

()

Revenue and other income (continued)

(vi) Government grants

Government grants are recognised in the
statement of financial position initially when
there is reasonable assurance that they will be
received and that the Group will comply with
the conditions attaching to them. Grants that
compensate the Group for expenses incurred
are recognised as income in profit or loss
on a systematic basis in the same periods
in which the expenses are incurred. Grants
that compensate the Group for the cost of an
asset are deducted from the carrying amount
of the asset and consequently are effectively
recognised in profit or loss over the useful life
of the asset by way of reduced depreciation
expense.

Translation of foreign currencies

Foreign currency transactions are translated into
the functional currency of the entity to which they
relate at the foreign exchange rates ruling at the
transaction dates. Monetary assets and liabilities
denominated in foreign currencies are translated
into the functional currency of the entity to which
they relate at the foreign exchange rates ruling at
the end of the reporting period. Exchange gains
and losses are recognised in profit or loss.

Non-monetary assets and liabilities that are
measured in terms of historical cost in a foreign
currency are translated using the foreign exchange
rates ruling at the transaction dates. The
transaction date is the date on which the Company
initially recognises such non-monetary assets or
liabilities.
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Notes to the Financial Statements (continued)

2  SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

(u)

Translation of foreign currencies (continued)

The results of operations which have a functional
currency other than RMB, the Group’s presentation
currency, are translated into RMB at the exchange
rates approximating the foreign exchange rates
ruling at the dates of the transactions. Statement of
financial position items are translated into RMB at
the closing foreign exchange rates at the end of the
reporting period. The resulting exchange differences
are recognised in other comprehensive income and
accumulated separately in equity in the exchange
reserve.

On disposal of a foreign operation, the cumulative
amount of the exchange differences relating to
that foreign operation is reclassified from equity to
profit or loss when the profit or loss on disposal is
recognised.

Borrowing costs

Borrowing costs that are directly attributable to
the acquisition, construction or production of an
asset which necessarily takes a substantial period
of time to get ready for its intended use or sale are
capitalised as part of the cost of that asset. Other
borrowing costs are expensed in the period in
which they are incurred.

The capitalisation of borrowing costs as part of
the cost of a qualifying asset commences when
expenditure for the asset is being incurred,
borrowing costs are being incurred and activities
that are necessary to prepare the asset for its
intended use or sale are in progress. Capitalisation
of borrowing costs is suspended or ceases when
substantially all the activities necessary to prepare
the qualifying asset for its intended use or sale are
interrupted or complete.
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Notes to the Financial Statements (continued)
B 7% S 3% f & ()

(Expressed in RMB unless otherwise indicated)

(Bx
2

YUANDA CHINA HOLDINGS LIMITED

ZAEBRI

AARBEREBA)

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

(W)

Non-current assets held for sale

A non-current asset is classified as held for sale if
it is highly probable that its carrying amount will be
recovered through a sale transaction rather than
through continuing use and the asset is available
for sale in its present condition.

Immediately before classification as held for
sale, the measurement of the non-current assets
is brought up-to-date in accordance with the
accounting policies before the classification. Then,
on initial classification as held for sale and until
disposal, the non-current assets are recognised at
the lower of their carrying amount and fair value
less costs to sell.

Related parties

(@) A person, or a close member of that person’s
family, is related to the Group if that person:
(i) has control or joint control over the

Group;

(i) has significant influence over the Group;
or

(i) is a member of the key management

personnel of the Group or the Group’s
parent.
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Notes to the Financial Statements (continued)

2  SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

(X) Related parties (continued)

(b)  An entity is related to the Group if any of the

following conditions applies:

(i)

(iv)

(vi)

The entity and the Group are members
of the same group (which means that
each parent,
subsidiary is related to the others).

subsidiary and fellow

One entity is an associate or joint
venture of the other entity (or an
associate or joint venture of a member
of a group of which the other entity is a
member).

Both entities are joint ventures of the
same third party.

One entity is a joint venture of a third
entity and the other entity is an associate
of the third entity.

The entity is a post-employment benefit
plan for the benefit of employees of
either the Group or an entity related to
the Group.

The entity is controlled or jointly
controlled by a person identified in (a).
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Notes to the Financial Statements (continued)
B 7% S 3% f & ()

(Expressed in RMB unless otherwise indicated)

(Bx

2

ZAEBRI

AARBEREBA)

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

(x)

Related parties (continued)

(b)  An entity is related to the Group if any of the
following conditions applies: (continued)

(vii) A person identified in (a)(i) has significant
influence over the entity or is a member
of the key management personnel of the
entity (or of a parent of the entity).

(viii) the entity, or any member of a group
of which it is a part, provides key
management personnel services to the

Group or to the Group’s parent.

Close members of the family of a person are those
family members who may be expected to influence,
or be influenced by, that person in their dealings
with the entity.

Segment reporting

Operating segments, and the amounts of each
segment item reported in the financial statements,
are identified from the financial information provided
regularly to the Group’s most senior executive
management for the purposes of allocating
resources to, and assessing the performance
of, the Group’s various lines of business and
geographical locations.
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Notes to the Financial Statements (continued)

2  SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

(v)

Segment reporting (continued)

Individually material operating segments are not
aggregated for financial reporting purposes unless
the segments have similar economic characteristics
and are similar in respect of the nature of products
and services, the nature of production processes,
the type or class of customers, the methods used
to distribute the products or provide the services,
and the nature of the regulatory environment.
Operating segments which are not individually
material may be aggregated if they share a majority
of these criteria.

3 ACCOUNTING JUDGEMENTS AND ESTIMATES

The significant sources of estimation uncertainty are as

follows:

(a)

Revenue recognition

As explained in accounting policy Note 2(t),
revenue from construction contracts is recognised
over time. Such revenue and profit recognition on
incompleted projects is dependent on estimating
the total budgeted contract costs of the contract,
as well as the contract costs incurred to date. The
actual outcomes in the terms of total cost may be
higher or lower than estimated at the end of the
reporting period, which would affect the revenue
and profit recognised in the future years as an
adjustment to the amounts recorded to date.
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Notes to the Financial Statements (continued)
B 7% S 3% f & ()

(Expressed in RMB unless otherwise indicated)

(Bx
3

ZAEBRI

AARBEREBA)

ACCOUNTING JUDGEMENTS AND ESTIMATES
(continued)

(b)

Impairment of receivables and contract assets

Trade receivables and contract assets are reviewed
by management at the end of each reporting
period to determine the expected credit losses. The
management bases the estimates on the historical
credit loss experience, adjusted for factors that are
specific to the debtors and assessments of both
current and forecast general economic conditions.
Credit risk assessments focus on the customers’
past history of making payments when due and
current ability and willingness to pay, taking into
account the financial position of the customers
and the macroeconomic environment in which the
customers operate. The credit assessments also
consider the status of the construction project,
i.e. whether there is any delay, any unresolved
lawsuits or contentious matters with customers. If
the financial conditions of the customers and/or the
macroeconomic environment of the Group were to
deteriorate, resulting in an impairment of their ability
to repay, additional impairment provision would be
required.

Warranty provisions

The Group makes provisions under the warranties
it gives on construction of curtain wall systems
contracts, taking into account the Group’s recent
claim experience. As the curtain wall systems
required by customers become more complex,
it is probable that the recent claim experience is
not indicative of future claims that the Group will
receive in respect of past construction of curtain
wall systems. Any increase or decrease in the
provision would affect profit or loss in future years.
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Notes to the Financial Statements (continued)

3 ACCOUNTING JUDGEMENTS AND ESTIMATES
(continued)

(d)

Deferred tax

Deferred tax assets are recognised for unused tax
losses and deductible temporary differences to the
extent that it is probable that future taxable profits
will be available against which the deferred tax
assets can be utilised. In determining the amount
of deferred tax assets to be recognised, significant
judgement is required relating to the timing and
level of future taxable profits, after taking into
account future tax planning strategies. The amount
of deferred tax assets recognised at future dates
are adjusted if there are significant changes from
these estimates.

Impairment of property, plant and equipment and
right-of-use assets

In considering the impairment losses that may
be required for the Group’s property, plant and
equipment and construction in progress, the
recoverable amount of the asset needs to be
determined. The recoverable amount is the greater
of fair value less cost of disposal and the value in
use. It is difficult to precisely estimate fair value
less cost of disposal because quoted market prices
for these assets may not be readily available. In
determining the value in use, expected future
cash flows generated by the asset are discounted
to their present value, which requires significant
judgement relating to the level of revenue and
amount of operating costs. The Group uses all
readily available information in determining an
amount that is a reasonable approximation of the
recoverable amount, including estimates based
on reasonable and supportable assumptions and
projections of the level of revenue and amount of
operating costs. Changes in these estimates could
have a significant impact on the carrying value of
the assets and could result in additional impairment
charge or reversal of impairment in future periods,
where applicable.

Bt 75 3 3% MY & )

(Expressed in RMB unless otherwise indicated)

(BREEHEBAIN  AARERER)

3 ERHERMEEE)

(d)

EXER TR
ERB AR N HELTH

TR E BRI A R KRR
MENRERA - EILATA R
AP B B0 755 5 48 N R N
HERBRELERBEE -
FRERAE/HERGE
7R 2R JE &R A5 ) 78 A B A0 7K
FoREAEREARE DK
B% - A RERE ERHERRIEL
MIAEEMTRE - Wt EF R
SREBERNE - MeHER
KERNELCHREES R
fEHREE

ME - BE KK
BERE

& K fE

EEZRAEENME - BE

REMEEIRATES
THREBLRN FTEET
BEMIKROESE - JlE
CHEABAREBEREREEK
$ﬁﬁ%{@W%¢Mfk
Ho-RAEEMNMSMER
TR - B
HAAABEREEERA -
FREEERAERR  $EE
EEMBERARBSRITE
BERE  EFZHKAK
FHELEKNASBIELER
FEr - NREBEFERARK
MWis BRTEE T IRE S
AEEUE BREERGE
AN 0] 3T 89 R AR AN E A K
FAEE KA S N ®
st o B ET B LA B
%ﬁ&%%ﬁ%@%iﬁk
ME - WAL EBUEINR
E%mﬁﬁ%%%@m@
)RR EED -

B EERARA T | S R



Notes to the Financial Statements (continued)
B 7% S 3% f & ()

(Expressed in RMB unless otherwise indicated)

(BRBEIERI » UAREBE)
4

REVENUE AND SEGMENT REPORTING 4 WARDEBI®E

(@) Revenue (@)

The principal activities of the Group are the design,
procurement, production, sale and installation of
curtain wall systems. Further details regarding the
Group’s principal activities are disclosed in Note
4(b).

() Disaggregation of revenue

All of the Group’s revenue is arising from
construction contracts. The majority of the
Group’s revenue is recognised over time.
Disaggregation of revenue from contracts with
customers by timing of revenue recognition is

as follows:

Revenue from contracts BRI H R ZERIZE 15
with customers within the GHEANREEES
scope of IFRS 15 E AL PN

Over time R—ER R

Point in time 1 JR 118 5 P

Disaggregation of revenue by geographic
markets is disclosed in Note 4(b)(iii).

Revenue represents contract revenue derived
from the design, procurement, production,
sale and installation of curtain wall systems.

The Group’s customer base is diversified.
There was no customer with transactions that
exceeded 10% of the Group’s revenue for the
years ended 31 December 2020 and 2019.
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Notes to the Financial Statements (continued)

4 REVENUE AND SEGMENT REPORTING (continued)

(@) Revenue (continued)

(i

Revenue expected to be recognised in the
future arising from contracts with customers
in existence at the reporting date

As at 31 December 2020, the aggregated
amount of the transaction price allocated to
the remaining performance obligations under
the Group’s existing contracts is RMB8,039.6
million (2019: RMB8,033.1 million). This
amount represents revenue expected to be
recognised in the future from construction
contracts entered into by the customers
with the Group. The Group will recognise
the expected revenue in future when or as
the work is completed, which is expected to
occur over the next 48 months.

As at 31 December 2020, the aggregated
amount of the expected transaction price of
the potential contracts (inclusive of value-
added tax) of which the Group has won
the bidding is RMB3,949.9 million (2019:
RMB4,894.5 million).

The above amounts do not include any
amounts of completion bonuses that the
Group may earn in the future by meeting the
conditions set out in the Group’s construction
contracts with customers, unless at the
reporting date it is highly probable that the
Group will satisfy the conditions for earning
those bonuses.

Bt 75 3 3% MY & )

(Expressed in RMB unless otherwise indicated)

(BR=EEBI -

AARKEREN)

4 WBARDERE(E)

(@) WAE)

(i

BEHAREGHRN RS A
HEENT P& RER
HIHA

MR 2020%F12 A31H -
PREAEEREBA
REBETH TRANEMT
MRGEREAAR
#8,039.6 8 & Jr(2019
F: 4 AR ¥8,033.1
BEL) Z&BEE
HEEBREFPEAS
BT RREESRER
A - REEKRA
1% T 72 52 Ak B e 22 78 B
WA - TEEARA R 2K 48 R
AL -

MR2020F12 A31H -
REBFEZNEEER
MBS EBE(F1E
BEM) A/ ARK3,949.9
BB T(2019%F : #) A

e —

R 4804 5HETT) °

LB IAERARE
BRBENAAKEE
EPEEAREPAH
fige 4 1 °T BE BRE Y 52 T
RENEMEE BRI
RS HRAAREEHR
Al BE i A% & 2B
BRIE

B EERARA T | S R



Notes to the Financial Statements (continued)
B 7% S 3% f & ()

(Expressed in RMB unless otherwise indicated)

(Bx

4

SHEERAN - LARBERER)

REVENUE AND SEGMENT REPORTING (continued)

()

Segment reporting

The Group manages its businesses by geographical
locations of the construction contracts in a manner
consistent with the way in which information is
reported internally to the Group’s most senior
executive management for the purposes of
resource allocation and performance assessment.
The Group has presented the following two
reportable segments. No operating segments have
been aggregated to form the following reportable
segments.

° Domestic: comprises construction contracts
carried out in the mainland China.

° Overseas: comprises construction contracts
carried out outside of the mainland China.

() Segment results

For the purpose of assessing segment
performance and allocating resources
between segments, the Group’s most senior
executive management monitors the results
attributable to each reportable segment on
the following bases:

The measure used for reporting segment
(i.e. gross
profit after impairment losses for trade

result is “adjusted gross profit”

receivables and contract assets).
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Notes to the Financial Statements (continued)

4 REVENUE AND SEGMENT REPORTING (continued)

(b)  Segment reporting (continued)

U]

Segment results (continued)

Revenue and expenses are allocated to
the reportable segments with reference to
revenue generated by those segments and
the expenses incurred by those segments. No
significant inter-segment sales have occurred
for the years ended 31 December 2020 and
2019. The Group’s other operating expenses,
such as selling and administrative expenses,
impairment losses for other financial assets
and finance costs, are not measured under
individual segments.

During the year ended 31 December
2020, the Group’s most senior executive
management monitor the Group’s assets and
liabilities as a whole, accordingly, no segment

assets and liabilities information is presented.
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Notes to the Financial Statements (continued)

Bt 75 3 3% MY & ()

(Expressed in RMB unless otherwise indicated)

(BB BEEREIN - UARBE BEA)
4 REVENUE AND SEGMENT REPORTING (continued) 4 WARDHPEE (42
(o)  Segment reporting (continued) (b) PEBHRE(E)
() Segment results (continued) (i) 2HEEE)

Information regarding the Group’s reportable

segments as provided to the Group’s

most senior executive management for

the purposes of resource allocation and

assessment of segment performance for the
years ended 31 December 2020 and 2019 is

set out below.

Revenue from external

customers and reportable

segment revenue

Reportable segment adjusted

gross profit

Revenue from external

customers and reportable

segment revenue

Reportable segment adjusted

gross profit

YUANDA CHINA HOLDINGS LIMITED

#H £2020F K 20194F
12A31BIEFEE" &
BIRETASERST
HEEBABUDBEER
Rt o HRBHARE
& 7] BB 2 > BB KL E 5
N

2020
Domestic Overseas Total
il i) @t
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
AR®T R ARETT AR®T R
RENBEFHBARTRFS
BKA
1,236,767 1,498,805 2,735,572
THEIPEARER
116,490 41,748 158,238
2019
Domestic Overseas Total
el b a5t
RMB’000 RMB'000 RMB'000
AREFT AREFTT ARETTL
RENBEFNUARARHS
BBA
1,708,621 2,337,632 4,041,253
TREIPERRER
381,985 453,526 835,511

Annual Report 2020
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Notes to the Financial Statements (continued)

Bt 75 3 3% MY & )

(Expressed in RMB unless otherwise indicated)

REVENUE AND SEGMENT REPORTING (continued) 4

(o)

Segment reporting (continued)

(i)

(iii)

Reconciliation of reportable segment

profit or loss

Reportable segment adjusted
gross profit

Other income

Selling expenses

Administrative expenses

Expected credit losses of other
financial assets

Finance costs

(Loss)/profit before taxation

Geographic information

The following tables set out information about

the geographical location of the Group’s

revenue from external customers. The

geographical location of customers is based
on the location at which the construction

contracts are carried out.

(B BAEEHEIN - AARME AER)
WARDEHRE (&)
(o) o EzkE (&)

(i) TEFIMBEZZHER

2020 2019
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARET T ARETIT
Al 23R D I EAEEAR
158,238 835,511
E bz A 39,869 121,362
HEZE M (77,233) (86,541)
THAX (454,927) (531,707)
HEhemEENTEHRER
Bk (29,027) (84)
B AN (227,642) (142,523)
FiAT(E18),/F)E (590,722) 196,018
(i) WEER
TR B B AL E 2K
BN R AU A K o
XM IEMN B TIIRIE
HEITRES R A2
7 o
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Notes to the Financial Statements (continued)

Bt 75 3 3% MY & ()

(Expressed in RMB unless otherwise indicated)

(BRBEIERI » UAREBE)
4

REVENUE AND SEGMENT REPORTING (continued)

(b)  Segment reporting (continued)

(iii) Geographic information (continued)

Revenue from contracts with BERRBIEIREEDE 15
customers within
the scope of IFRS 15

Disaggregated by geographical

location of customers

Mainland China

United States of America

United Kingdom
Australia
Others

4

(iii) HEER(E)

2020 2019
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARET T ARETIT
REEANNRKEEES
Bz WA
BRFHENES D
R A3 1,236,767 1,703,621
EFERE R 431,733 426,254
e 407,847 540,872
SEM 159,429 439,847
Efb 499,796 930,659
1,498,805 2,337,632
2,735,572 4,041,253

Vast majority of the Group’s non-current

assets are located in mainland China. As

such, geographical analysis of the Group’s

non-current assets is not presented.

YUANDA CHINA HOLDINGS LIMITED

Annual Report 2020

AREBAEDIERBE
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Notes to the Financial Statements (continued)
B 7% S 3} MY & (@)

(Expressed in RMB unless otherwise indicated)

(BB HIERIN  UAREE BERL)
OTHER INCOME 5 HMWBA
2020 2019
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR®T T ARETTT
Government grants BT B 28,648 27,646
Rental income from investment BEMF 2B WA
property 8,463 1,972
Rental income from operating REMERINCERE 2
leases, other than those relating to WA
investment property 144 170
Net income from provision of repairs 24 E KRB RIEHFE U A
and maintenance services 2,506 4,589
Net gain/(loss) from sale of scrap HEREEMRRFKZS
materials (E18) 65 (4,972)
Net gain on disposal of property, plant HEW% - FE &KEE - T
and equipment, land use rights and FRAE RSB ERHE
assets classified as held for sale & B E R F
(Note (i)) (BtaE () 43 91,957
39,869 121,362
Note: sz -
()  The amounts for the year ended 31 December 2019 () ZEZE2019F 12831 BFEIE

included a net gain of RMB89.4 million arising from
disposal of land use rights and properties classified as
assets classified as held for sale.

REBEHESDEAFELESR
ENT i RERDEEENF
WHAREBIA4BEETT °

B EERARA T | S R



Notes to the Financial Statements (continued)
B 7% S 3% f & ()

(Expressed in RMB unless otherwise indicated)

(REEEBI  UARERER)
6

(LOSS)/PROFIT BEFORE TAXATION 6 HiAT(EE) FE
(Loss)/profit before taxation is arrived at after charging/ BEl(EE) MBI (5t
(crediting): AN TEIEEZFE
(@) Finance costs: (a) BEKAK :
2020 2019
RMB’000 RMB’000

ARBTRT ARETT

Interest on borrowings EEF S 151,397 175,055
Interest on lease liabilities MEBGERNE(HZZ 190b))

(Note 19(b)) 1,710 1,055
Bank charges and other finance RITFEBERAMpE

costs (%N 21,086 28,516
Total borrowing costs WS B RA 174,193 204,626
Interest income FEUA (31,202) (21,986)
Net foreign exchange loss/(gain) SNE BT (Ui ) FEa 144,509 (54,948)
Net (gain)/loss on forward foreign iR EASNES £y (Uezk)

exchange contracts BI85 (59,858) 14,831

227,642 142,523

No borrowing costs have been capitalised for the NE 22020F12 A31 H 1t
year ended 31 December 2020 and 2019. FEEAEE Tk AN E AN L

(20194 : AR¥EZIT) o

(b) Staff costs®: b) BIpA":
2020 2019
RMB’000 RMB’000

AR®TRT ARKETE

Salaries, wages and other benefits ~ #H& - TE& &K EMIEF] 551,599 624,060

Contributions to defined | 7 E HRGRIRET EIE X
contribution retirement plans 32,657 64,449
584,256 688,509

YUANDA CHINA HOLDINGS LIMITED Annual Report 2020



Notes to the Financial Statements (continued)

6 (LOSS)/PROFIT BEFORE TAXATION (continued)

()

Staff costs®: (continued)

The employees of the subsidiaries of the Group
established in the PRC participate in defined
contribution retirement benefit schemes managed
by the local government authorities, whereby
these subsidiaries are required to contribute to the
schemes at rates ranging from 13% to 16% (2019:
from 12% to 20%) of the employees’ basic salaries.
Employees of these subsidiaries are entitled
to retirement benefits, calculated based on a
percentage of the average salaries level in the PRC,
from the above mentioned retirement schemes at
their normal retirement age. During the year ended
31 December 2020, the subsidiaries established in
the PRC have been granted certain exemption on
the contribution to defined contribution retirement
plans by local government authority as a result
of the COVID-19 pandemic for the period from
February 2020 to December 2020.

The employees of the subsidiaries of the Group
established outside of the PRC participate in
defined contribution retirement benefit schemes
managed by the respective local government
authorities, whereby these subsidiaries are required
to contribute to the respective schemes at rates
stipulated by the relevant rules and regulations of
the respective jurisdictions.

The Group does not have any further material
obligations for payments of other retirement
benefits beyond the above annual contributions.

Bt 75 3 3% MY & )

(Expressed in RMB unless otherwise indicated)

(BREEHEBAIN  AARERER)

6 BiAT(BE) FEE)

(b)

BETRA": (&)

AEBRPEKIHNE R
T E B 2 Bty 75 IUAT 14 RE
EEHATEHRKRKBFE
2Bt PEKBARA
RZEBEAHFELS13%E16%
(20194 : 12% & 20%) M 7%
SHEIHER PRMMBAF
BEREBIE R EKRFIRE
R EEMERFEZRR
PETEHEHEEKEERDEE
HHRKEF - F£E = 2020
F12A3BLEFERN - AR
20202 A ZE2020%F 12 A
HAfS A9 COVID-19 » FEFR ERIE
WE B A R ER 7 # 5
T & B ¥ M R E #HFORRE
BT —ERL o

7R & [ 7 R B85 SR S Y i
BRARMNERZ2EAEZFIM
77 BT HE R B IR 1) R E AR
BINEAETE - B - BH
BB AR BRI & RAER
HH R AR B ROR PR R Y b
RAZFTEIFER ©

AEBBAAESMN LF
B HFRASN R E R E M E X
RKEHNEE -

B EERARA T | S R



Notes to the Financial Statements (continued)
B 7% S 3% f & ()

(Expressed in RMB unless otherwise indicated)

(REEEBI  UARERER)
6

(LOSS)/PROFIT BEFORE TAXATION (continued) 6 Al (EsE) REE)
(c) Other items: (c) HAMIEE :
2020 2019
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR¥T T ARET T
Depreciation and amortisation” e Lyt
— owned property, plant and - BBV - BE K&
equipment (Note 11) (HiaE11) 20,828 31,617
- right-of-use assets (Note 12) - FREEEMF 12) 40,498 17,720
— investment property (Note 13) - BEMENFE13) 1,130 489
Impairment losses on trade and B o REMBEKRFEERE
other receivables and EREEE
contract assets 322,583 155,909
Auditor’s remuneration % 25 B 2257 B 9,598 9,254
Research and development costs” A 2Rk 2N * 109,645 156,092
Increase in provision for warranties® {R{&EE L h* (H/ 5 26)
(Note 26) 57,246 75,416
Cost of inventories” (Note 15(a)) FERA" (H7:E 15(a) 2,283,778 3,049,917

Cost of inventories includes RMB316.8 million
for the year ended 31 December 2020 (2019:
RMB424.2 million), relating to staff costs,
depreciation and amortisation expenses, research
and development costs and provision for warranties,
which amount is also included in the respective
total amounts disclosed separately for each of these
types of expenses.

YUANDA CHINA HOLDINGS LIMITED Annual Report 2020

#H £2020F12 A31 8 1k
FEFEKRNABIEE TK
AN mERBHERY M
ERARREBEEEBAN
KA ANRE316.8H & 7T
(20194 : A R #4242
BEIT) ' Ml EInE
ABEBHEENSERY A -



Notes to the Financial Statements (continued)
B 7% S 3} MY & (@)

(Expressed in RMB unless otherwise indicated)

(BREEHEBAIN  AARERER)

INCOME TAX 7 FiER
(a) Income tax in the consolidated statement of profit (a) ABHFEBERERANBTERE
or loss represents:
2020 2019
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARMT T ARBT T
Current tax (Note 25(a)): BNERFRIE (A7 2 25(a))
— provision for corporate income - BB AVAER TR
tax in respective jurisdictions B BHE 6,827 16,349
Deferred tax (Note 25(b)): EERLIA (M 72 250))
— origination and reversal of - TR ERERNEELER
temporary differences 93,076 89,849
99,903 106,198
EAPEERARAR | F TR



Notes to the Financial Statements (continued)
B 7% S 3% f & ()

(Expressed in RMB unless otherwise indicated)

(Bx

7

ZAEBRI

AARBEREBA)

INCOME TAX (continued)

(o)

Reconciliation between tax expense and accounting (b)

profit at applicable tax rates:

7 FRBEE

BIAR X B AR R R E

Ve BB

2020 2019
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR®T AREFTT
(Loss)/profit before taxation Bipl (EE) /FiHE (590,722) 196,018
Expected tax on (loss)/profit before 1% %488 =)A= i
taxation, calculated at the rates HREAZENRAT(BE),/
applicable to profits in the A FE EA R 18
jurisdictions concerned (BT ), (i), (i) % (iv)
(Notes (i), (ii), (i) and (iv)) (144,747) 48,515
Tax effect of non-deductible AR B S R T s B
expenses 11,956 4,077
Tax effect of non-taxable income MW ARG & - (3,545)
Tax effect of utilisation of prior AL R ERATEFE
years’ unused tax losses REAFIAE BT
previously not recognised S (2,440) (8,600)
Tax effect of unused tax losses and KR AE T IEEEH
deductible temporary differences A
not recognised 37,308 54,783
Tax effect of reversal of recognised &2 BV IE 1T F+ 78 8% [0] 79 £ 7%
deferred tax A 167,683 -
Tax concessions and effect of BB e MRS E) 2 &
changes of tax rate (Note (v)) (HaE (v)) 30,143 10,968
Income tax FT{S %% 99,903 106,198
Notes: Ha -
()  The Company and the subsidiaries of the Group iy ARrAERAEEREBFE

incorporated in Hong Kong are subject to Hong
Kong Profits Tax rate of 16.5% for the year ended

31 December 2020 (2019:

16.5%).

No provision

for Hong Kong Profits Tax has been made as
the Company and the subsidiaries of the Group
incorporated in Hong Kong did not have assessable
profits subject to Hong Kong Profits Tax for the
year ended 31 December 2020 (2019: RMBNIil).

YUANDA CHINA HOLDINGS LIMITED Annual Report 2020

MRS B R AREE
202012 H31H E #F
€ 7B % 16.5% (20194 :
16.5% ) KBt KGR E 7B T
B - ARARF RAE
B R &S vk AR Sz Y BT B
N Al R E E2020F 12 A
31E|¢¢WE5E4EEI BEME
75 ) 15 B /Y FE SR L A
W EFIRDBSNEM
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Notes to the Financial Statements (continued)

7 INCOME TAX (continued)

(o)

Reconciliation between tax expense and accounting
profit at applicable tax rates: (continued)

Notes: (continued)

(i)

(ii)

(iv)

The Company and a subsidiary of the Group
incorporated in the Cayman Islands and the British
Virgin Islands, respectively, are not subject to any
income tax pursuant to the rules and regulations of
their respective countries of incorporation.

The subsidiaries of the Group established in the
PRC are subject to PRC Corporate Income Tax
rate of 25% for the year ended 31 December 2020
(2019: 25%).

The subsidiaries of the Group incorporated in
jurisdictions other than the PRC (including Hong
Kong), the Cayman Islands and the British Virgin
Islands, are subject to income tax rates ranging
from 8.5% to 30% for the year ended 31 December
2020 pursuant to the rules and regulations of their
respective countries of incorporation (2019: 8.5% to
35%).

One of the subsidiaries of the Group established
in the PRC has obtained approval from the tax
bureau to be taxed as an enterprise with advanced
and new technologies for the period from the
calendar years from 2020 to 2022 and therefore
enjoys a preferential PRC Corporate Income Tax
rate of 15% for the year ended 31 December 2020
(2019: 15%). In addition to the preferential PRC
Corporate Income Tax rate, this subsidiary entitles
an additional tax deductible allowance amounted
to 75% (2019: 75%) of the qualified research and
development costs incurred in the PRC by this
subsidiary.

Bt 75 3 3% MY & )

(Expressed in RMB unless otherwise indicated)

(BRSBHIEAIN - UARKREBN)
7 B

(b)

BIER X BIZERRRAE

&
vea

SR AER R - ()

Kzt - (&)

(i

(i)

(iv)

RIER B M AKZE RS
BAIRER D RIRFHE
HEREBRUEEEM
BILE) R R m) R AR S [ —

18 IFF E B%E25%
194F : 25%) A TR R 40
MR B EFTSH o

iR = =i 9 V] b7
EHRRAEER  AEH
REBEBEERS) H
EHRENEBERELAES N
SN SR 5 B AR S O B B A
7 B R & £2020F 12 A
B1HIEFEARNEKS8L5%E
30% T~ /) BT 15 T = B AR
Fr 1§ B (20194 : 8.5% &
35%) °

AEBHA —IRPERK
VHHBARCESHG
5 8t B8 2020 F & 2022
FFNEFRIEAESH K
MhEMWNIEIE - HEZE
202012 A31B It F E
=5 15% (20194 : 15%)
HNPECEMBSHER
MK -BREZHRBEMCER
BREZRRE 2 - %
BRRAIEEBREXRFEH
EAR A AR K AR
75% (2019 4F : 75%) A&t
MNk&7E -

B EERARA T | S R



Notes to the Financial Statements (continued)
B 7% S 3% f & ()

(Expressed in RMB unless otherwise indicated)

(BB EREAN - UAREREBEL)

8 DIRECTORS’ REMUNERATION 8 EEME
Directors’ remuneration disclosed pursuant to section BIEBE R THEHIZE 383(1) EREA
A(REESNEER)ROIE_F
DHREBENEEMEFBEOT

383(1) of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance and Part
2 of the Companies (Disclosure of Information about
Benefits of Directors) Regulation are as follows:

2020
Salaries,
allowances Retirement

and benefits scheme

Directors’ in kind contributions
fees e 28 RRGHE Total
E=He RENEHN e @t
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
ARET R AR%T R AR%T R ARETR
Executive directors HTES
Mr Kang Baohua FEELLE - - - -
Mr Li Hongren FHANEE
(resigned on 22 July 2020) (202057 A 228
) - 4,663 11 4,674
Mr Liu Futao ARBAL - 5,268 23 5,291
Mr Zhao Zhongaiu AL
(appointed on 22 July 2020) (R2020%7 A22H
1) - 3,878 13 3,891
Mr Ma Minghui SHELE - 2,356 23 2,379
Mr Wang Hao ITERE - 479 23 502
Mr Zhang Lei REFLAE = - - -
Independent non-executive BUFHTES
directors
Mr Poon Chiu Kwok ERR L L 222 - - 222
Mr Woo Kar Tung, Raymond HRELE 222 - - 222
Mr Pang Chung Fai, Benny FHEBLE 222 - - 222
666 16,644 93 17,403

YUANDA CHINA HOLDINGS LIMITED Annual Report 2020
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DIRECTORS’ REMUNERATION (continued)

Executive directors
Mr Kang Baohua

Mr Li Hongren

Mr Liu Futao

Mr Ma Minghui

Mr Wang Hao

Mr Zhang Lei

Independent non-executive
directors

Mr Poon Chiu Kwok

Mr Woo Kar Tung, Raymond

Mr Pang Chung Fai, Benny

The emoluments of Mr. Kang Baohua (the “Controlling
Shareholder”) and Mr. Zhang Lei were borne by
companies under the control of the Controlling

Notes to the Financial Statements (continued)
B 7% S 3} MY & (@)

(Expressed in RMB unless otherwise indicated)

HTES
FEERL
FHAKE
EEEL
SHERL
ISgE
RELE

BUFBTES
RREEL

HEREE
ZHEEE

(BRSBAHERI -
8 EEME#E)

AARKEREN)

2019
Salaries,

allowances Retirement

and benefits scheme

Directors’ inkind  contributions
fees  ¥& 2 RINETE Tota
EEHE RENREF {5 @t
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
ARETT ARETT  AR®TR ARETT
= 4,883 34 4,917
- 4,353 34 4,387
- 1,773 34 1,807
- 446 35 481
220 - - 220
220 - - 220
220 - - 220
660 11,455 137 12,252

Shareholder during the years ended 31 December 2020 B A Bl AE o

and 2019.

FE O o B e e A R 44 )

# £ 20204 R2019F 12 A31H
FE - REERA (TERER])
5K B8 5t 26 A i B e 22 AR A SR A



Notes to the Financial Statements (continued)
B 7% S 3% f & ()

(Expressed in RMB unless otherwise indicated)

(Bx
9

ZAEBRI
INDIVIDUALS WITH HIGHEST EMOLUMENTS 9

AARBEREBA)

Of the five individuals with the highest emoluments,
four (2019: two) of them are directors of the Company.
The aggregate of the emoluments in respect of the one
individual (2019: three) who is not a director are as
follows:

Salaries, allowances and benefits in e EBNEYER
kind
Discretionary bonuses BB IEAT

Retirement scheme contributions RRFTEI R

The emoluments of the employees who are not directors
and who are amongst the five highest paid individuals of
the Group are within the following band:

(In HKS)
2,000,001 — 2,500,000
2,500,001 — 3,000,000

(&7T)
2,000,001 % 2,500,000
2,500,001 Z 3,000,000

YUANDA CHINA HOLDINGS LIMITED Annual Report 2020

REFMAL

hEZEaHMA LTS - MH(2019
F MEB)BARRES - WIE
EMZ—AALT(2019F : =8)
MEBERENT

2020 2019
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR®TRT ARKBTE
1,729 5,343

321 4583

361 759

2,411 6,555

AEBREARSHFMELIFEEL
ATHFH M FIATEE -
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Notes to the Financial Statements (continued)

10 BASIC AND DILUTED (LOSS)/EARNINGS PER
SHARE

(a)

Basic (loss)/earnings per share

The basic loss per share for the year ended 31
December 2020 is calculated based on the loss
attributable to equity shareholders of the Company
of RMB690.6 million (2019: profit attributable to
equity shareholders of the Company of RMB89.8
million) and the weighted average of 6,208,396,000
ordinary shares (2019: 6,208,147,000 ordinary
shares) in issue during the year ended 31
December 2020, calculated as follows:

Weighted average number of ordinary shares

Issued ordinary shares at 1 January
Effect of termination of the Share

Award Scheme (Note 27(c)) (Bt 27(c)

Weighted average number of

FHH

ordinary shares at 31 December

Diluted (loss)/earnings per share

There were no dilutive potential shares outstanding
during the years ended 31 December 2020 and
2019. Hence, the diluted (loss)/earnings per share
is the same as basic (loss)/earnings per share.

Bt 75 3 3% MY & )

(Expressed in RMB unless otherwise indicated)

(BREEHEBAIN  AARERER)

10 EREARBE(ER) BF

(a)

01 A1 RETHEER
R BRI L O

R 12 A 31 B 3@z hniE

SREX(ER) 2F

#H 22020612 A31 8 Ik 4
EEREAREBEEREBEARRF
IR R FE(h BB A K% 690.6
BB t(2019%F : AR ARK
REGRMNARKSISEH
To) MR AEHE2020F 12 A
31 BIEFEDEITMEFS
#6,208,396,000 f% & B %
(20194 : 6,208,147,000 &

LB FELT -
TERMETEEE
2020 2019
No. of No. of
shares shares
’000 000
T & T A%
6,208,147 6,208,147
249 -
6,208,396 6,208,147

shiEg(BER) &7

& 2020 F K 20194 12
AB1BIEFEMERBEH
SEAER AR D BEITIESN o
bt SREE(ER) AT
HERERN(ER) BFIE
ﬁ o

B EERARA T | S R



Notes to the Financial Statements (continued)
B 7% S 3% f & ()

(Expressed in RMB unless otherwise indicated)

(B=EEHAN -

AARBEREBA)

11 PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT

Cost:

At 1 January 2019
Exchange adjustments

Additions
Disposals

Reclassified to investment property

(Note 13)

Transfer in/(out)

At 31 December 2019 and
1 January 2020
Exchange adjustments

Additions
Disposals

Reclassified to investment property

(Note 13)

At 31 December 2020

Accumulated depreciation:
At 1 January 2019
Exchange adjustments

Charge for the year
Written back on disposals
Reclassified to investment property

(Note 13)

A
R20191 81
3

EE =i
=S OfF

ENBABENEEE
(Hit13)
g) /(&)

R2019F12 4318

B

EE =N
T

>

ENBARELERE

(Hit13)

A=)

ZitHE

R2019%1 A1

8%

EpiTE

HERE

ENEARELELE
(it 13)

11 % BERRE

Motor

vehicles

Machinery and other

Plant and and equipment Construction

buildings equipment RER in progress Total
BERET G EVEY Rt fRIR @it
RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RVB'000 RMB'000
ARETT AREBTT ARETT ARBTT ARETT
427,632 385,620 176,462 585 990,299
100 303 1,039 - 1,442
5,633 636 2,361 - 8,630
(3,273) (1,877) (9,594) - (14,744)
(17,608) - - - (17,608)
585 = = (585) -
413,069 384,682 170,268 = 968,019
2 (397) (148) - (543)
5,768 587 683 - 7,038
(4,593) (2,110 (7,310) - (14,013)
(3,999) - - - (3,999)
410,247 382,762 163,493 - 956,502
(145,632) (267,787) (149,051) - (662,470)
(20) (171) (1,018) - (1,209)
(13,039 (12,687) (6,891) - (31,617)
521 1,370 8,239 - 10,130
4,383 - - - 4,383
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Notes to the Financial Statements (continued)
B 7% S 3} MY & (@)

(Expressed in RMB unless otherwise indicated)

(BREEHEBAIN  AARERER)
11 PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT (continued) 11 Y% BERREE)

Motor
vehicles
Machinery and other

Plant and and equipment Construction
buildings equipment RER in progress Total
BELRET BERRE Bt HEIR st
RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RVB'000 RMB'000

ARETR ARETR ARETR ARETR ARBTL

At 31 December 2019 and 2020512 318

1 January 2020 (158,787) (279,275) (147,721) - (580,783)
Exchange adjusiments B AR 2 297 150 - 449
Charge for the year EnfE (11,652) (12,608) (6,568) - (29,828)
Written back on disposals HERD 591 1723 6,253 = 8,567
Reclassified to investment property BB AR {EHESE

(Note 13) (it 13) 1,804 - - - 1,804
At 31 December 2020 R2020£12A31H (168,042) (289,869) (146,886) - (699,791)
Net book value: RERE
At 31 December 2020 R2020512A31H 247,205 92,899 16,607 - 356,711
At 31 December 2019 R2019%12A 318 259,282 105,407 22547 - 387,236
At 31 December 2020, property certificates of certain R2020F 12 H31H » & T A5
properties with an aggregate net book value of RMB77.4 mFEAARE77.4BE7T(2019
million (31 December 2019: RMB81.1 million) are yet to F12H31H: AR®8118 &
be obtained. TL)RMERRKINEIEES -

B EERARA T | S R



Notes to the Financial Statements (continued)
B 7% S 3% f & ()

(Expressed in RMB unless otherwise indicated)
(BB EREAN - UAREREBEL)

12 RIGHT-OF-USE ASSETS 12 FHEESE
The analysis of the net book value of the Group’s right- NEBIZENEERRIEREESE
B EREDFE (T EXAS R ) ST in

of-use assets, carried at depreciated cost, by class of

underlying asset is as follows: T :
Prepayment Motor
for land use vehicles and
right for equipment
own use Properties leased
leased  for own use
BAt# forownuse BERHEEEH Total
REEAGYR BRARENE K& @t
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
ARETT ARBTT ARBTT ARETT
Note (i) Note (i
(i) (Wit )
Cost: A
At 1 January 2019 ®2019F1 A1H 435,005 13,167 - 448,172
Exchange adjustments RS - 511 - 511
Additions NE - 18,571 624 14,195
Reclassified to assets held for sale BONERRELESE (119,684) - - (119,684)
Reclassified to investment property BPERRENE
(Note 13) (Hi#13) (22,822) - - (22,822)
At 31 December 2019 and 2019512 A31 B R
1 January 2020 202051 A 18 292,499 27,249 624 320,372
Exchange adjustments & i % - (238) - (238)
Additions E = 31,659 89 31,748
Disposals HE - (26,875) - (26,875)
Reclassified to investment property ENRERENE
(Note 13) (it 13) (3,497) - - (3,497)
At 31 December 2020 1202012 431 H 289,002 31,795 713 321,510
Accumulated amortisation: Rt H
At 1 January 2019 R2019%1A18 (66,647) - - (66,647)
Exchange adjustments RS - (197) - (197)
Charge for the year FREH (7,037) (10,449) (234) (17,720)
Reclassified to assets held for sale EREERELEEE 9,173 - - 9,173
Reclassified to investment property BPERRENE
(Note 13) (it 13) 4,423 - - 4,423
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Notes to the Financial Statements (continued)
B 7% S 3} MY & (@)

(Expressed in RMB unless otherwise indicated)

12 RIGHT-OF-USE ASSETS (continued)

At 31 December 2019 and
1 January 2020
Exchange adjustments
Charge for the year
Written back on disposals
Reclassified to investment property
(Note 13)

At 31 December 2020

Net book value:
At 31 December 2020

At 31 December 2019

Notes:

R 2019412 331 B R 2020

F1A1A
5 A
FR#H
mERE
BNRERENE

(Hi#13)

7202012 A 31 B

REFE
M2020%12 A31 B

2019412 A 31 B

(BR=EEBI -

12 FRAEEEE)

AARKEREN)

Prepayment Motor
for land use vehicles and
right for equipment
own use Properties leased
leased  for own use
BREL#t forownuse BEREEEH Total
ERERMY BREENE Rkt @t
RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB’000 RMB'000
ARBTT ARBTT ARBTT ARBTT
Note (i) Note (i
(Hiz ) (i)
(60,088) (10,646) (234) (70,968)
- 76 - 76
(5,953) (34,144) (401) (40,498)
- 26,875 - 26,875
743 - - 743
(65,298) (17,839) (635) (83,772)
228,704 13,956 78 237,738
232,411 16,603 390 249,404
Jiogz:

(i)

(ii

Prepayment for land use right for own use represented
land use right premiums paid by the Group for land
situated in the PRC. The remaining lease terms falls within
the ranges of 37 years to 46 years. At 31 December
2020, land use right certificates of certain land use rights
with an aggregate carrying value of RMB5.0 million (31
December 2019: RMB5.1 million) are yet to be obtained.
Lump sum payments were made upfront to acquire these
land use rights, and there are no ongoing payments to be
made under the terms of the land lease.

The Group has obtained the right to use the properties
as its production plant or offices or dormitory for staff
through tenancy agreements. The leases typically run for
an initial period of 1 to 5 years.

BALTERAEBNRRIEASE
B AL AR B A £ 3 S S R £ 3
FAERE - FsrTHEHRE 37
FRA6F 2 - HE2020F 12
A31H » HABEGELLLHGE
RENTHERAEEE  ARE
BEAARKS50A & T(2019
F12A31H: ARS51H 8
) e —REENRERERSE
e AR A - AR
ﬁiﬂﬂ%ﬁ%'ﬁﬁﬁﬁ¢%
$2 o

AEBCBBHEGRERSYE
LA EREEETHIMA
E-HER-R/IESF -

B EERARA T | S R



Notes to the Financial Statements (continued)
B 7% S 3% f & ()

(Expressed in RMB unless otherwise indicated)

(B=EEHAN -

12

AARBERENR)
RIGHT-OF-USE ASSETS (continued)

Some leases include an option to renew the lease for
an additional period after the end of the contract term.
Where practicable, the Group seeks to include such
extension options exercisable by the Group to provide
operational flexibility. The Group assesses at lease
commencement date whether it is reasonably certain
to exercise the extension options. If the Group is not
reasonably certain to exercise the extension options, the
future lease payments during the extension periods are
not included in the measurement of lease liabilities. For
existing leases as 31 December 2019 and 31 December
2020, the Group is not reasonably certain to exercise
any extension options therefore did not include future
lease payments during the extension periods in the
measurement of lease liabilities.

The Group do not have leases which contains variable
lease payment.

The analysis of expense items in relation to leases
recognised in profit or loss is as follows:

Depreciation charge of right-of-use FREEENE
assets

Interest on lease liabilities (Note 6(a))

Expense relating to short-term leases %2 Hi7H & &

Details of total cash outflow for leases and the maturity

analysis of lease liabilities are set out in Notes 19(c)

and 283, respectively. There is no lease that is not yet

commenced as at 31 December 2020.
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12

HERENE(HE6(a)

EREEE(E)

FEHEREESRBEREKA
HFER —ER FF IR GE IS HE o TER] 1T
MR T - NREBIKMAREE
ATEME R - URHEEE
EM o AEEREEMS A B
ERAARICIBITHEREERE -
MEREBTREAEETEDITHE
JE HRSE 1E A - RIJSE HA HA R A9 R 2R
HENRTEREEHEA BN
2 HREE2019F12 A 31
HF2020F 12 A31 H IR B M
g AEBELISERERDITE
EfEEREERE A EHERE
ATERABTEHHRENRKAEN
HEEENA °

AEEXRARSAEHENFKHE
/’%E o

Hi ABRNEERENERIRR
DT

2020 2019
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR®TRE ARBTET
40,498 17,720
1,710 1,055

- 14,815

HEReRLBERHEEEENE
B3 17 5518 99 Bl 51 H A B 5E 19(c)
N 23 & £2020412 3108 -
RABEMARBRHEE -
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Notes to the Financial Statements (continued)
B 7% S 3} MY & (@)

(Expressed in RMB unless otherwise indicated)

INVESTMENT PROPERTY

Cost:

At 1 January 2019

Reclassified from property, plant and equipment
(Note 11)

Reclassified from right-of-use assets (Note 12)

At 31 December 2019 and 1 January 2020

Reclassified from property, plant and equipment
(Note 11)
Reclassified from right-of-use assets (Note 12)

At 31 December 2020

Accumulated amortisation:

At 1 January 2019

Reclassified from property, plant and equipment
(Note 11)

Reclassified from right-of-use assets (Note 72)

Charge for the year

At 31 December 2019 and 1 January 2020

Reclassified from property, plant and equipment
(Note 11)

Reclassified from right-of-use assets (Note 12)

Charge for the year

At 31 December 2020

Net book value:
At 31 December 2020

At 31 December 2019

(B=HEHEHAIN

13 ®REYHE

B :

»201941 818

ENEEWE  WEKXE
(HeE11)
BENHBEREEE ML 12)

M 20194 12 H 31 H &% 2020 4F
1A1H

BHEEYE - BERZE
(HteE11)
BRMEERAREEWTL12)

M 2020412 A31 H

RETEe .

R20194F1 A1H
ENBEBEWE  BWEKKE
(Hiat11)

BEnBBaEREEEMZE12)
F N

R2019F 12 A31 B R
202041 A18
BHEEWE - BRERKE
(HteE11)
EnBaERAEEEHZ12)

NS

M2020%F 12 A 31 H

BREFE
R2020% 12 A 31 H

M2019412 A31 H

FE O o B e e A R 44 )

AARKEREN)

RMB’000
ARETT

17,608
22,822

40,430

3,999
3,497

(4,383)
(4,423)
(489)

(9,295)

(1,804)
(743)
(1,130)

(12,972)

34,954

31,135
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Notes to the Financial Statements (continued)

Bt 75 3 3% MY & ()

(Expressed in RMB unless otherwise indicated)

(REEEBI  UARERER)
13 INVESTMENT PROPERTY (continued)

Notes:

(i) The Group leases out investment properties under
operating leases. The leases typically run for an initial
period of 6 to 8 years, with an option to renew the lease
after that date at which time all terms are renegotiated.
Lease payments are usually increased annually to reflect
market rentals. None of the leases includes variable lease
payments.

Undiscounted lease payments under non-cancellable
operating leases in place at the reporting date will be
receivable by the Group in future periods as follows:

Within 1 year —FR
After 1 year but within 5 years —FERERFA
After 5 years hFEE

(i) The investment property owned by the Group are situated

in the PRC. According to the property valuation report
issued by an independent qualified valuer, the fair value
under income approach of the investment property at 31
December 2020 is RMB104.4 million( 31 December 2019:
RMB93.3 million).
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13 REWEE)

Bt -
0

AEBAKREEE T A HBERE
HREE  HEMBT RB6ES
F WA RERESNERM
BERREREE - HEMNE
BEHFEN—R  ARBTISHE
- TAEEATERTEEE
5K

7 £2 8] 7 R 2 HA P 5 LA BR TS R B
HEEHEENEENKERS B
HIT R ARREIRE - IATATR ¢

2020 2019
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR¥TT ARBET T
10,100 8,600
41,598 34,981
16,913 24,891
68,611 68,472

AEBTEBNEEYMEEMNRTF
o IRIBIBY AR EERHEA
A SRS %I E W EE 2020
F12 A31 HH A A BEKS A
TAAR®104.48 & £(2019
F12A31H: ARKI33HE
JT) ©
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Notes to the Financial Statements (continued)
B 7% S 3} MY & (@)

(Expressed in RMB unless otherwise indicated)

(BREEHEBAIN  AARERER)

INVESTMENTS IN SUBSIDIARIES 14 HRHEBRATZIRE

The following list contains only the particulars of TREVLEAREENES EFE
subsidiaries which principally affected the results, assets NEBEEEATE B ARE
or liabilities of the Group. o

Proportion of ownership interest

] =
Place of Particulars of The
establishment/ registered/ Group’s Held
incorporation issued and effective by the Held by
and husiness paid-up capital interest Company  subsidiaries
Name of subsidiary BL/ERRY iH/ERGR k&8 HAAT HIE  Principal activities
hEAAER REXHE BRRAHE ERRa 58 MR FEEH
Shenyang Yuanda Aluminium Industry  The PRC United States Dollar ('USD') 100% - 100% Design, procurement, production, sale and
Engineering Co,, Ltd. (‘Shenyang A& 323,298,200 installation of curtain wall systems
Yuenda') 323,208 200%70(%7t) it £R HERZERRAL
BREARETRERLA
Yuanda (UK) Co., Lid. United Kindom 500,000 shares 100% - 100% Design, procurement, assembly, sale and
FAREERDA # instalaton o curtain wal systems
it B AR HERERRRAR
Yuanda Australia Pty Ltd. Australia 14,020,000 shares 100% = 100% Design, procurement, assembly, sale and
ERRAHDARAT BRFIE installtion of curtain wal systems
it BB BE  HERZRRREAR
Yuanda USA Corporation United States of 10,000 shares 100% - 100% Design, procurement, assembly, sale and
EAEERRA America instalation of curtain wal systems
$2aRE it W BE  HERERBRAN
Yuanda Aluminium Engnggring (ndia)  Republic of India 2,868,340 shares 100% - 100% Design, procurement, assembly, sale and
Private Limited (*Yuanda India’) (‘Incl) installation of curtain wall systems
EABRIR(E)INARRARD  AEARE(HE]) wat B 4E  HERERBRAR
Yuanda Europe Ltd EAEUAERAZ  Swiss Confederation 1,000,000 shares 100% - 100% Design, procurement, assembly, sale and
th installaton of curtain wall systems
it BB AR HERERRRAR
Yuanda Kuwalt General Contracting ~~ State of Kuwalt 100 shares 100%# = 100%#  Design, procurement, assembly, sale and
for Buldings Underes (‘Kuwat') installation of curtain wall systems
YL ) BEEEERI) it R BE  HERZERRAR

BRAMAT

B EERARA T | S R



Notes to the Financial Statements (continued)

Bt 75 3 3% MY & ()

(Expressed in RMB unless otherwise indicated)

(REEEBI  UARERER)
14 INVESTMENTS IN SUBSIDIARIES (continued)

14 RAHBARZRE(Z

Proportion of ownership interest

Place of Particulars of The
establishment/ registered/ Group’s
incorporation issued and effective
and business paid-up capital interest
Name of subsidiary A/ ERAY iHh/ERGR KE@L
WRARAE REFHE BRRARE L
PT. Shenyang Yuanda Aluminium Republic of Indonesia 150,000 sheres 9%
Industry Enginegring DEERTLAE
EAEFTRIEARATA
Yuanda Queensland Pty Ltd. Australia 800,000 shares 100%
EABLIHARAT BRHE
Yuanda VIC Pty Ltd. Australia 1 share 100%
BARSHTERAT BAHE
Yuanda Qatar Aluminium Indusry Qatar 200 shares 100%#
Engineering Co., W.LL. AR

ERER(FAR)TEARDE

This company is a wholly foreign-owned enterprise
established in the mainland China.

The Group, through Shenyang Yuanda, owns 49% equity
interests in these companies, where the remaining 51%
equity interests are held on trust for Shenyang Yuanda
by an individual resided respectively. In accordance
with the entrust agreements, these individuals do not
have the right to vote or receive dividends declared
or participate in the liquidation of these companies.
Accordingly, the directors of these Companies consider
the Group effectively owns 100% equity interests in these
companies.
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FaRiith

Held

by the
Company
HARE
KR

Held by
subsidiaries
HIKE  Principal activities
ke TZEH

99% Design, procurement, assembly, sale and
installation of curtain wall systems
wh BB BE HERFEREAN

100% Design, procurement, assembly, sale and
installation of curtain wall systems
wat BB 05 HERZRREAR

100% Design, procurement, assembly, sale and
installation of curtain wall systems
it B 0% HERZEREAR

100% Design, procurement, assembly, sale and
installation of curtain wall systems

it B B BERZERRAN

ENGIVE NG o v El N
BERE -

NEBBBEGRANEFLAA
B9 49% B 4 11 H #5351 % A% #
ThrEREE B A LA
NEBBRERRFAE - RELERH
& 0 Z A E R A T R R R
NAREHWEE TR SRR
EER . Atk AR ESZR
B REBER LBEAZARN
100% %1 °
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Notes to the Financial Statements

INVENTORIES AND OTHER CONTRACT COSTS

Raw materials R
Work in progress EEm
Less: write down of inventories B 7 BRI

Contract costs are recognised in “Selling expenses” in
the statement of profit or loss in the period in which
the amounts were incurred as the incremental costs of
obtaining a contract which is not significant.

(@ The analysis of the amount of inventories
recognised as an expense and included in the
consolidated statement of profit or loss during the
year is as follows:

Carrying amount of inventories used FAREEARNES
in construction contracts
Write-down of inventories FE MR

R 75 R R Y &

(Expressed in RMB unless otherwise indicated)

(B BAEEEAIN + AR BEL)
15 FERHMEERAK

2020 2019
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR®TRT AREBTE

205,111 228,952
167,657 96,632
(6,357) (3,583)
366,411 322,001

BRRAELEE EMEREREE
R B PR AR AR
HERNA - HEBRATEE -

() RNERNBEREHRZILFASE
HEZEXRANGFEESES N
(N

2020 2019
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR®TR ARETT

SRR B
2,281,004 3,049,320
2,774 597

2,283,778 3,049,917

B EERARA T | S R



Notes to the Financial Statements (continued)
B 7% S 3% f & ()

(Expressed in RMB unless otherwise indicated)

(REEEBI  UARERER)

16 CONTRACT ASSETS AND CONTRACT 16 SREEERESREAERE
LIABILITIES
(@) Contract assets (a) AREE
2020 2019
RMB’000 RMB’000

Contract assets EREE

Arising from performance under BESRATRAEE
construction contracts

Less: loss allowance e i =E e

All of the amounts are expected to be billed within
one year from the end of the reporting period,
except for the amounts of RMB225.8 million at 31
December 2020 (31 December 2019: RMB285.7
million) related to retentions receivable (net of loss
allowance) which are expected to be recovered
over one year.

Included in the contract assets are amounts
of RMBO.7 million at 31 December 2020 (31
December 2019: RMBO0.7 million) due from the
companies under the control of the Controlling
Shareholder.
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AR®TRT ARKETE

2,306,997 2,959,015
(466,890) (390,873)

1,840,107 2,668,142

FrEFIBTE BN &5 818 —
F A RE - MER2020
F12A31HEEAARK
22568BE THREKERE ©
(FBrE BB ) (2019 12
A31H: AR¥285.78 &
TO) B — F LA U -

2020612 A31H © fE I
Z A% AR B I A B A 3R IE
AR #0778 8 (20194
12A31H: ARBO7TEE
T ABREE °



Notes to the Financial Statements (continued)

16 CONTRACT ASSETS AND CONTRACT
LIABILITIES (continued)

(@)

Contract assets (continued)

The Group’s construction contracts include
payment schedules which require stage payments
over the construction period once milestones are
reached, these payment schedules prevent the
build-up of significant contract assets. The Group
typically agrees to a one to five years retention
period after the completion of construction
contracts may be granted to customers for
retentions receivable, depending on the market
practice of construction industries in countries
where construction contracts are carried out and
credit assessment carried out by management on
an individual customer basis.

The amount of revenue recognised during the
year from performance obligations satisfied (or
partially satisfied) in previous periods is RMB170.8
million (2019: RMB328.1 million), mainly due to
the changes in estimate of the stage of completion
of certain construction contracts and approved
contract modifications.

Contract liabilities

Contract liabilities ERAE
Construction contracts EEAR
— Billings in advance - BAIRIFIE

of performance

Bt 75 3 3% MY & )

(Expressed in RMB unless otherwise indicated)

(BREEHEBAIN  AARERER)

16 EREERGRARBE)

(a)

BREEGE

AEERESRBEREED
A 2k B A SR 3R
R(-BERER) HEMN
REEGLEREREGRE
E- -fATRAREEARME
BROEEENSEMNLE
BEERERERPEEETH
EEFE AEERERE
RERFRESR TEPRT
REEERRRH—Z0F
HORE A -

FRFNBE AR ER(KF
DENK)BHREBERWA
cREAEARKEIT08EH E T
(2019%F : ARM328.188
L) FERRETEESRE
RAEHE & RHEET M 5T 5T
TREER BB EFTEL

BRAE
2020 2019
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARMFT ARKETET
566,515 823,187

B EERARA T | S R



Notes to the Financial Statements (continued)
B 7% S 3% f & ()

(Expressed in RMB unless otherwise indicated)

(B=EEHAN -

AARBEREBA)

16 CONTRACT ASSETS AND CONTRACT
LIABILITIES (continued)

(b)

Contract liabilities (continued)

Included in contract liabilities are amounts
of RMB3.2 million at 31 December 2020 (31
December 2019: RMB3.2 million) due to the
companies under the control of the Controlling
Shareholder.

All of the contract liabilities are expected to be
recognised as revenue within one year.

When the Group receives a deposit before the
production activity commences this will give rise
to contract liabilities at the start of a contract, until
the revenue recognised on the project exceeds the

16 EREERGRAR(E)

b) ERAEGE)

R2020%12 A31H ' E
PERR AR R T A AR BB
AR 328 8 L(20194F
12H31H: ARK328E8
TLIEFAGRATLE -

EARAEERMN —FR
HERBUA ©

fied 75 5% B 0 A 2 U B B 46 A
WEze  RIERE R
BRELGRAE  BEEH
HARANBABBRE S

amount of the deposit. £H o
Movements in contract liabilities SEEBNES
2020 2019
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR¥ T ARETIT
Balance at 1 January ®1 A1 BRES 823,187 881,998
Decrease in contract liabilities as FARBRBAEENEF
a result of recognising revenue BEEFEYFAEREE)
during the year that was included NERAR
in the contract liabilities at the
beginning of the year (435,011) (521,915)
Increase in contract liabilities as FEREEB)F L B M TEMGK
a result of billing and receipt in HEAERE R A EEM
advance of construction activities 178,339 463,104
Balance at 31 December w12 A 31 B4 S 566,515 823,187
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Notes to the Financial Statements (continued)
B 7% S 3} MY & (@)

(Expressed in RMB unless otherwise indicated)

(BREEHEBAIN  AARERER)

TRADE AND BILLS RECEIVABLES 17 ESERAREREVREE
2020 2019
RMB’000 RMB’000

AR®TRT AREBTE

Trade receivables for contract work ERTIRE HEKGK :
due from:
— third parties —E=7 3,802,475 3,959,752
— companies under the control of — PR AR BRI I Y A )
the Controlling Shareholder 172,252 180,270
3,974,727 4,140,022
Bills receivable for contract work SRIIIEEWERE 65,472 86,878
Trade receivables for sale of raw HEMRE S RIGK
materials due from:
— third parties -F=5 3,940 3,472
— companies under the control of - PRI S A A A
the Controlling Shareholder 1,809 1,777
5,749 5,249
4,045,948 4,232,149
Less: loss allowance B EE R (1,506,777)  (1,313,830)
Financial assets measured at REERAFTENSRIEE
amortised cost 2,539,171 2,918,319
At 31 December 2020, the amount of retentions MR2020F12 A31H FE | &
receivable from customers included in trade and bills FPREBS(HNKBEREEE) BAR
receivables (net of loss allowance) is RMB725.9 million 72598 & t(2019F 12 A 31
(31 December 2019: RMB726.8 million). H: AR¥72688E8T) °

B EERARA T | S R



Notes to the Financial Statements (continued)
B 7% S 3% f & ()

(Expressed in RMB unless otherwise indicated)

(REEEBI  UARERER)

17 TRADE AND BILLS RECEIVABLES (continued) 17 BEZEWURREWRERS(Z)

Except for retentions receivable (net of loss allowance) of
RMB204.6 million at 31 December 2020 (31 December
2019: RMB208.5 million), all of the remaining trade and
bills receivables are expected to be recovered within one
year.

Ageing analysis

As of the end of the reporting period, the ageing analysis
of trade and bills receivables, based on the invoice date
and net of loss allowance, is as follows:

Within 1 year —F R
More than 1 year HBiE—F

The Group generally requires customers to settle
progress billings and retentions receivable in accordance
with contract terms. Further details on the Group’s credit
policy and credit risk arising from trade debtors and bills
receivable are set out in Note 29(a).
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B 202012 A318H A R ¥
204.6 A& (201912 A31H :
AR#208.58 Bt ) 8 EKIRE
o (MBREEEE) I HBmBE
SRERUGR R EWZEERRN —FR

Ym o

ARl D AT

HEREHK  BEFRKFKEEW
ZE (MK EERE)IZEEZEA BN
BRERDTIOT -

2020 2019
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR®BTRE ARBTET

816,015 1,114,630
1,723,156 1,803,689

2,539,171 2,918,319

AEBBEERELPBES KN
HEEEFERERRES - A&
EEHABRUARE SRR E
WEEEEERRRNE—PF
BEHFIRHIFE29(a) °



Notes to the Financial Statements (continued)
B 7% S 3} MY & (@)

(Expressed in RMB unless otherwise indicated)

18 DEPOSITS, PREPAYMENTS AND OTHER

RECEIVABLES

Prepayments for purchase of
inventories (Note (i)

Prepayment for miscellaneous taxes

Deposits for construction contracts’
bidding and performance (Note (ii))

Deposits for purchase of forward
aluminium contracts

Other deposits

Proceeds receivable from disposal of
property, plant and equipment, land
use rights and assets classified as
held for sale

Interest receivable from time deposit

Derivative financial instruments:

— other derivatives

Amounts due from the Controlling
Shareholder and the companies
under his control (Note (iii)

Government grants receivable

Others

Less: loss allowance

(BRSBAHERI -
18 & AARRHEMERR

AARKEREN)

2020 2019
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARBTRT ARETET
BEFETENRA ()
304,660 326,169
TR R 29,140 38,057
BESRREREARS
(KT (i) 128,491 108,662
BERAREANZRS
1,123 2,513
HEize 49,701 51,742
HEWE - BB REE - i
ERERDEAFELEE
EE B FE R
- 100,000
7E BR1F 3R B A B G 17,510 5,068
TTHEERTA :
- HitnpTET A 59,288 17,781
JE W 2R R AR R e S ELAE Il A
RIFIB (M1 22 (iii))
6,708 6,630
FE BT 5 B 11,239 12,691
EAh 45,182 49,520
653,042 718,833
B BEEE (35,256) (6,229)
617,786 712,604
BRMEBERARAT | RN
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Notes to the Financial Statements (continued)

b E e ETC )

(Expressed in RMB unless otherwise indicated)

(BB EREAN - UAREREBEL)

18 DEPOSITS, PREPAYMENTS AND OTHER
RECEIVABLES (continued)

Notes:

(i) Included in the balance are prepayments of RMB3.8
million at 31 December 2020 (31 December 2019:
RMB3.9 million) made to the companies under the control

of the Controlling Shareholder.

(if) The balance represented deposits placed with customers
for contracts’ bidding and performance of contracts in
progress. The deposits will be released to the Group upon
the completion of the related bidding or contract work,

where applicable.

(i)  The amounts are unsecured, non-interest bearing and

have no fixed terms of repayment.

Except for the deposits for construction contracts’
performance and the amounts of RMB15.1 million at 31
December 2020 (831 December 2019: RMB3.6 million),
all of the remaining deposits, prepayments and other
receivables are expected to be recovered or recognised

as expenses within one year.

YUANDA CHINA HOLDINGS LIMITED
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Notes to the Financial Statements (continued)
B 7% S 3} MY & (@)

(Expressed in RMB unless otherwise indicated)

(BREEHEBAIN  AARERER)

19 CASH ON HAND AND IN BANK AND OTHER 19 FEASREBETERREMGES
CASH FLOW INFORMATION RER
() Cash on hand and in bank comprise: (a) FHEIBE NIEITEREIRE :
2020 2019
RMB’000 RMB’000

AR®TRT AREBTET

Cash on hand and in bank FERE RRITEX 508,565 559,265
Time deposits with banks #R1TE HAfF K 1,405,934 1,279,013
Frozen bank deposits REERITIF R 98,107 39,790
Cash on hand and in bank in B PSR R AR F R
the consolidated statement of Re RRITFER
financial position 2,012,606 1,878,068
Less: Ve
— restricted deposits to secure the - {EAEES RIEL NMIFE
performance and retentions SRR BT
of construction contracts (156,300) (271,813)
— restricted deposits to secure - BIRTTEFMIRITEER
the bank loans and bank bills IR IR B T K (590,750) (356,200)
- restricted time deposits to - ERIBITEHIRMEERD
secure the bank bills PR 1)1 7E BRI T 3K (409,252) (650,000)
— restricted deposits for issuance - tE R B RR Sl
of letter of credit T (220,000) -
— restricted time deposits for — VEBRNZ R BEHEREH 4
issuance of letter of credit TE HR 17 3K (10,000) -
— other time deposits with original - HE #1477 Ei#A @ 3 & A
maturity of over 3 months #YER1TE HATF 5K (19,632) (1,000)
— frozen bank deposits - RERITIER
(Note 31(b)(iii) (H15£ 31b)(iii) (98,107) (39,790)
Cash and cash equivalents in the HHREHIRERERTH
consolidated cash flow statement HERESZEEY 508,565 559,265
The Group’s business operations in mainland N £ B 5 A B A S LA A
China are conducted in RMB. RMB is not a freely REA{E AREIZRA B
convertible currency and the remittance of funds AEBHNEE . EEHRER
out of mainland China is subject to the exchange HWHEESSPREKRFEEN
restrictions imposed by the PRC government. HINE & | PR PR o

B EERARA T | S R



Notes to the Financial Statements (continued)
B 7% S 3% f & ()

(Expressed in RMB unless otherwise indicated)

(REEEBI  UARERER)

19 CASH ON HAND AND IN BANK AND OTHER 19 FHBALSRBETEIREMES
CASH FLOW INFORMATION (continued) RER (&)
(b) Reconciliation of liabilities arising from financing b) BMEBEEZHELEMNAGZHIR
activities
Amounts
due to the
Gontrolling
Shargholder
and the Amounts Discounted
companies due to bills and
Bank under his third Lease credit Interest
[oans control parties liabilities |etters payable Total
Ef2RER
REEEHN  BfE=H HRZER

RER DA £ LEL ERE Rz it
RVB'000 RMB'00 RVB000 RMB'000 RVB000 RMB'000 RVB000
MR MRETR ARBTR ARBTR ARETR ARETR ARETR
(Note 21) (Note 21) (Note 23) (Note 21) (Note 21)

/| (TH404] /400 (H401)
(W21 (kii23) (Hiz21)

)

At 1 January 2020 RNNE1R1E 1,646,000 133,540 = 13019 661,188 5015 247,822

Changes from financing cash flows: ~ BEBEHE4E:

Proceeds from new bank loans and other R RERETAETE

borowings 1,249,200 478,320 108,162 - 1,874,200 - 3,709,902
Renayment of bark loans and other EEROEREDER

borrowings (1,795,000) (474,613) - - (1,148,568) - (3418201)
Capital element of ease rentals paid Bfifighens s - g - (35,057) - - (35,07)
Interet elment ofleas rentels paid Bhfghsteds - - - (1,10) - - (1,110)
Borrowing costs paid A& - - - - - (167,171) (t67,171)

Total changes from financing cash fows

Other changes: 4 LR

(645,800} 3107 10,162 (36,767) 125,612 (167,777 AR

Increase i leass liabiltes from entering into.~ RE A& TREH

N leases durng the year HERENEN - - - 31,748 - - 31,748
Exchange adustments Epa - (8,567) - (169) - - (8,739)
Totel boowing costs EEALLE - 2540 - 1710 - 169,043 174,193
Total other changes EpigeE - (6,027) - 33,280 - 169,943 197,205
At 31 December 2020 RNNE2F3 A 1,099,200 181,220 108,162 9,541 1,406,800 124 2,762,184

YUANDA CHINA HOLDINGS LIMITED Annual Report 2020



Notes to the Financial Statements (continued)
B 7% S 3} MY & (@)

(Expressed in RMB unless otherwise indicated)

(B BEEE - AAREARER)
19 CASH ON HAND AND IN BANK AND OTHER 19 FEBESRBIGEZREMES
CASH FLOW INFORMATION (continued) TR ()

(o) Reconciliation of liabilities arising from financing b) BMETHELANBEBEZEHE
activities (continued) (4&)
Amouns
due fo the
Controling
Shareholder
and the Amounts
companies dueto
under his third Lease  Discounted Interest
Bank loans confrol narties [ibilties bils ayadle Total
RARER
RREREH  EREZH
11 VL A HERR e EfflE i
RMB000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB000 RMB'000 RMB'000
BT ARETT ARETR ARETR ARETR ARETR ARETR
(Note 22) Note 21) (Note 21) (Note 23) (Note 21) (Note 21)
(o) (mt)  (Ote) (W) (Wk2)  (Kdo)
At 1 January 2019 RO019E1A1R 2,349,646 170,326 44,703 11,348 - 7619 2,580,642
Changes from financing cash flows: ~ HEREEE4E:
Proceeds flom new bark loans and other SR REfEFEGEE
borowings 2,141,891 540,992 = 1,144,388 362121
Repayment of bank loans and other ERRAETRARER
Dorovings BUSEE  B0SY  T) (83200 (4131440
Caplta element oflease rentals peld Eiffigissds = - (12816) - (12616)
Iterest element of lease rentals peid EfffigRerada - - (1,059 - (1,055)
Borowing costs paid BAEERA - - - - - (206,115} (206,115
Totd changes fom francig cash fows. - BABSBERHEE 08T OO0 [0 (BT eI (i (%)
Other changes: 4 LR
Increass n leass libites from enterng o~ AERHETREN
ne leases during the year REAENEN - - - 14195 - 14,195
Enfrusted payments fo Supplies THAELER 199,109 - - - - 199,109
Exchange adjusiments Ef T - 314 - o - - 3,406
Total borrowing costs v - - - 1,095 - 203571 204,626
Totel oterchanges H4RoER 199,109 3114 - 16,542 - W %
At 31 December 2019 H2O19E12R31R 1,645,000 133,040 - 13,019 681,188 501 247182
ERPEERAMRAE | T AL



Notes to the Financial Statements (continued)
B 7% S 3% f & ()

(Expressed in RMB unless otherwise indicated)

(REEEBI  UARERER)
19 CASH ON HAND AND IN BANK AND OTHER
CASH FLOW INFORMATION (continued)

19 FHEASRBTERREMRSE
RER(E)

(©)

Total cash outflow for leases

5S)

HER T MAEE

¢l

(c)

Amounts included in the cash flow statement for
leases comprise the following, these amounts relate
to lease rentals paid.

ZHRERRERERTHEE
REAIMT  ZRAEEHEE
ML ZHER -

All of the trade and bills payables are expected to be
settled within one year or are repayable on demand.

YUANDA CHINA HOLDINGS LIMITED Annual Report 2020

2020 2019
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR® T AR®TTT
Within operating cash flows REEIR G IR - (14,126)
Within financing cash flows REEHE S mRT (36,767) (13,871)
(36,767) (27,997)
20 TRADE AND BILLS PAYABLES 20 EZRENRRENERE
2020 2019
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR¥ T ARETTT
Trade payables for purchase of BAATHEERF
inventories due to: BEEZEMNR
— third parties = E=% 996,351 1,074,014
— companies under the control of — RIERRRIERIN AR
the Controlling Shareholder 5,197 1,817
1,001,548 1,075,831
Trade payables due to sub-contractors FERT 5 BEEE 5 BN RK 634,863 686,194
Bills payable FERER 424,341 820,417
Financial liabilities measured at B HEKATENSREE
amortised cost 2,060,752 2,582,442

‘8
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Notes to the Financial Statements (continued)
B 7% S 3} MY & (@)

(Expressed in RMB unless otherwise indicated)

(BREEHEBAIN  AARERER)

20 TRADE AND BILLS PAYABLES (continued) 20 ESENRRESEREE)
As of the end of the reporting period, the ageing analysis NEEAR  BHEMNANREMNE
of trade and bills payables, based on the maturity date, BIREHHRRROTAT -
is as follows:
2020 2019
RMB’000 RMB’000

AR¥TRT ARKTRT

Within 1 month or on demand —fEARFTIRER 1,754,743 2,059,570
More than 1 month but less than wmE—EAELR=EAH

3 months 127,429 122,718
More than 3 months HBiE=1E A 178,580 400,154

2,060,752 2,682,442

B EERARA T | S R



Notes to the Financial Statements (continued)

Bt 75 3 3% MY & ()

(Expressed in RMB unless otherwise indicated)

(REEEBI  UARERER)

21 ACCRUED EXPENSES AND OTHER PAYABLES 21
Payables for staff related costs FEf B TRk A
Payables for transportation and e E & MR S

insurance expenses
Payables for interest expenses e A B RS
Payables for construction and EENEBEME - BE&
purchase of property, plant and RIEEAR
equipment
Deposits from sub-contractors DEEXTHES
Deposits from suppliers for contracts’ HEREIHE RRIER
bidding and performance XS
Amounts due to third parties (Note (i) FE{I 55 = 75 338 (H1 52 (iii))
Amounts due to the Controlling FEHZE R AR 3R & H R 5

Shareholder and the companies
under his control

- non-interest bearing (Note (i) - NEr B (K1)
— interest bearing (Note (i) - BT B(HEE (i)
Discounted bills and credit letters AR EE R EFE
Lease liabilities (Note 23) HEBREHZE23)
Others EAh
Financial liabilities measured at HREEN AT ENESRIBE
amortised cost
Payables for miscellaneous taxes FEAST FERR
Derivative financial instruments: TESmIEAE :
— other derivatives - HEMiTET AR

Provision for outstanding legal claims  REFMEAERERE

Notes:

(i) The amounts are unsecured, non-interest bearing and
have no fixed terms of repayment.

(if) The amounts are unsecured, with fixed interest rate of
5.89% and repayable within one year.

(i) ~ The amounts are unsecured, with fixed interest rate and
repayable within one year.

Except for amounts of RMB15.3 million at 31 December
2020 (31 December 2019: RMB6.9 million), all of the
accrued expenses and other payables are expected to
be settled or recognised in profit or loss within one year
or are repayable on demand.

YUANDA CHINA HOLDINGS LIMITED Annual Report 2020

FEET B > K EL b BB A =X

2020 2019
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR®TRT ARKETE

147,366 145,190
27,653 32,897
7,241 5,075
10,617 12,343
37,520 47,961
56,060 65,929
108,182 =
1,721 2,914
129,499 130,626
1,406,800 681,188
5,326 10,465
57,775 37,878

1,995,760 1,172,466

52,595 42,750
26,386 23,021
23,131 27,118

2,097,872 1,265,355

#izt

(i)

(ii)
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Notes to the Financial Statements (continued)
B 7% S 3} MY & (@)

(Expressed in RMB unless otherwise indicated)

(BB EEAIN - UARBREBEAL)
22 BANK LOANS 22 RITEX
(@) The Group’s short-term bank loans are analysed as @ AEBEMNEHRITERDIMN
follows: A
2020 2019
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR®TR ARETT
Bank loans: |ITERK :
— secured by property, plant - UAREER Y
and equipment and land TR 5B B a5 DA N b
use rights of the Group and 55 FAREVEH IR
pledged by bank deposits RITIF A MEHE 3
(Note 22(c)) (Kt 22(c) 200,000 270,000
— guaranteed by the Controlling — PR ER KSR E
Shareholder and/or a HIEH A BIER
company under his control 344,200 380,000
— secured by property, plant — ARG AR ERAE HI A
and equipment and land use Gll:okZ EN =N %
rights of and guaranteed by a 1 &+ AR (ER
company under the control of T Ko R AR AR RS R A
the Controlling Shareholder HIE D BIER = 340,000
- secured by property, plant - UAREERNYE -
and equipment and land B 55 Tk 5% e Ko bR
use rights of the Group, FRREEERRRBZE
secured by property, plant % A% BR 4% ) B9 2 B AY
and equipment and land use ME - BEREEK
rights of and guaranteed by o b 50 R A HE AR
companies under the control (H1at22(c))
of the Controlling Shareholder
(Note 22(c)) 55,000 322,000
- pledged by securities of a — DAER ST P A BR A2 i /Y
company under the control of RNAE R FEHER
the Controlling Shareholder 100,000 100,000
699,200 1,412,000
Add: current portion of long-term o RESRITE A BN
bank loans (Note 22(b)) =9 (H15E 22(b)) = 233,000
699,200 1,645,000
BAHEERARAE | % RN



Notes to the Financial Statements (continued)

Bt 75 3 3% MY & ()

(Expressed in RMB unless otherwise indicated)

(BB EREAN - UAREREBEL)
22 BANK LOANS (continued)

(b) The Group’s long-term bank loans are analysed as

follows:

Secured by property, plant and
equipment and land use rights of
the Group, secured by property,
plant and equipment and land
use rights of and guaranteed by
companies under the control of
the Controlling Shareholder
(Note 22(c))

Less: current portion of long-term
bank loans (Note 22(a))

22 RTERE)

NAKBRHYE  BE R
A Ko {5 A VR AR
K i AR R A
AIRYE « BB REER
=+ Hb {5 FAAEHE(R
(Ktit22(c))

B REISRITE BN
#B (it 22(a))

The Group’s long-term bank loans are repayable as

follows:

Within 1 year or on demand
After 2 years but within 3 years

—EFERTIREK
MEREB=FR

YUANDA CHINA HOLDINGS LIMITED Annual Report 2020

(o)

AEENRYRITERDN

LU
2020 2019
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR¥T ARETT
400,000 233,000
400,000 233,000
= (233,000)
400,000 -

AEBORPRITERNE

RBERAT -
2020 2019
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR®TR ARETT
- 233,000
400,000 -
400,000 233,000




Notes to the Financial Statements (continued)

22 BANK LOANS (continued)

(©

At 31 December 2020, the aggregate carrying value
of the property, plant and equipment and land
use rights pledged for the Group’s bank loans is
RMB413.2 million (31 December 2019: RMB480.8
million).

At 31 December 2020, the carrying value of the
deposits pledged for the Group’s short-term bank
loans is RMB30.0 million (31 December 2019:
RMB30.0 million).

At 31 December 2020, the Group’s banking
facilities amounted to RMB1,310.0 million (31
December 2019: RMB850.0 million) were utilised
to the extent of RMB785.0 million (31 December
2019: RMB555.0 million).

Certain of the Group’s bank loans are subject to
the fulfilment of covenants commonly found in
lending arrangements with financial institutions.
If the Group were to breach the covenants, the
loans would become payable on demand. The
Group regularly monitors its compliance with
these covenants. Further details of the Group’s
management of liquidity risk are set out in
Note 29(b). At 31 December 2020, none of the
covenants relating to the bank loans had been
breached (31 December 2019: None).

Bt 75 3 3% MY & )

(Expressed in RMB unless otherwise indicated)

(BREEHEBAIN  AARERER)

22 RITERAE)

(©)

R2020%F12 A31H ' # &
SENETEREEIFENY
¥ BEKEE - THFEAE
FARREE A AR 413.28
A & t(2019412 A31H :
AR#480.8FETT) °

R2020F12 A31H ' K&
BREHETEREERD
EHEFHNEEEEAAR

¥ 30.08 & jt(2019F 12 A
31H : ARK300EBET) °

R2020F 12 A31H + X &
EMRITHMEBEAARK
1,310.08 & 7t(20194F 12
H31H: AR¥850.08 &
L) EBRARKT85.08
(2019128318 : A

S —

RHE555.0 BETT) ©

AEEBMNETROTER K
AENKESREBII LN
ERTHPOZB R AE
B NASEERTERE A
BAREREEER - A&H
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Hm o AKEEEERBES
B\Be By — 2P RE I S I A
29(b) » 2020412 A31 H
i EERTMEEITER
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Notes to the Financial Statements (continued)
B 7% S 3% f & ()

(Expressed in RMB unless otherwise indicated)

(B=EEHAN -

23

24

YUANDA CHINA HOLDINGS LIMITED

AARBEREBA)
LEASE LIABILITIES

At 31 December 2020, the lease liabilities were repayable

as follows:

Within 1 year —FR

After 1 year but within 2 years —FRERMFENA
After 2 years but within 5 years MEZBEBERAERN

EQUITY SETTLED SHARE-BASED
TRANSACTIONS

On 10 April 2013 (the “Adoption Date”), the directors of
the Company adopted a share award scheme (the “Share
Award Scheme”) as a mean of rewarding and retaining
certain employees of the Group and to attract suitable
personnel for further development with the Group. A
trust has been set up for the purpose of administering
the Share Award Scheme.

Pursuant to the Share Award Scheme, the trust may
purchase shares in the Company from the Stock
Exchange with cash contributed by the Group, and to
hold such shares until they are vested.

The directors of the Company may, from time to time,
at its sole and absolute discretion, select any employee
of the Group (other than those classes of employees
specifically excluded as stated in the Share Award
Scheme) for participation in the Share Award Scheme
and grant such number of awarded shares to any
selected employee of the Group at nil consideration.
The directors of the Company are entitled to impose any
conditions (including a period of continued service within
the Group after the award) with respect to the vesting of
the awarded shares.

Annual Report 2020

23

24

HESE

M2020F12 A31H HMEAEE
MEZBBRAT :

2020 2019

RMB’000 RMB’000
AR®TRT ARKETE
5,326 10,465

3,100 1,826

1,115 728

4,215 2,654

9,541 13,019

URAEER S

201344 A10B([HFMBH 1)
C ADBBEBRMN— B LR
([’ BT El)) - tERER X
BEASEETEE  URALSE
BE—FERRSIGEAE - EA
EIRRXD BB EIRKILZ5T

RIEI D EERYFT B - XIS FE AT PALE
AARBERENRES  REXME
BARRFRG - NEFAZERD
HEERSBROWEESL

RRAREFA] TRORTE RBETER
£ BUE (R 8 (B ) BT 81X 83
TRENZEFRRIEERRIN 2
Befn 2ERET &) - DA N EE A AR
FEAKERER I BAABMBME
BIln - RABESHRNEEE
By B 40 1 ANAE AR R 1 (B HE X 22
BREBRBASENERE) -



Notes to the Financial Statements (continued)

24 EQUITY SETTLED SHARE-BASED

TRANSACTIONS (continued)

The Share Award Scheme came into effect on the
Adoption Date, and shall terminate on the earlier of (i) the
tenth anniversary date of the Adoption Date; and (i) such
date of early termination as determined by the directors
of the Company.

For the years ended 31 December 2020 and 2019, no
ordinary shares held under the Share Award Scheme
were awarded to or vested by any employee of the
Group.

The Share Award Scheme has been terminated on 29
July 2020.

Details of the shares held under the Share Award

Bt 75 3 3% MY & )

(Expressed in RMB unless otherwise indicated)

(BREEHEBAIN  AARERER)

24 LRAEERZ (&)

Petn SRR SR BN B BRI - BA
FRBRIATEREELIL - (VRAA
HNE+EBFER: kAR
RESRMAERTRIEHAES -

#H E 20204 &% 2019412 A31 H
IEFE - BERBRD R 25
BT R T AEBEMAEE K

BIE -

B 7 B2 Bh st &I M 20206 7 A 29
H&RLE -

B fn BBt 845 B M D & 15 40

Scheme are set out below: N
2020 2019
No. of No. of
shares Value shares Value
B8 E EE 4= BE
’000 RMB’000 ’000 RMB’000
F & AR®T T TA% AREFIT
Outstanding at the BRRIARAT
beginning of the
period 587 210 587 210
Termination of the A& {7 22 Bt I
Share Award 4R F
Scheme (587) (210) - -
Outstanding and HIR AR
exercisable at the Al {THRE
end of the period - - 587 210
BAPBEERAGMRAT | T TR 225



Notes to the Financial Statements (continued)
B 7% S 3% f & ()

(Expressed in RMB unless otherwise indicated)

(B SHIEEEIN - AA R BER)
25 [INCOME TAX IN THE CONSOLIDATED 25 ESHBERRKRANFEH
STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION

(@) Movements of current taxation in the consolidated (@ AOFFBARRLE AR BT
statement of financial position are as follows: TEEEAEANT -
2020 2019
RMB’000 RMB’000

ARBTRE ARETT

Income tax payable at 1 January »1 A1 BRERASE 226,930 224,084
Exchange adjustments b 5 AR (4,998) 2,729
Provision for income tax on the FREFHERT B AT

estimated taxable profits for the SEIEE (K 7(@)

year (Note 7(a)) 6,827 16,349
Income tax paid during the year FRNEMER (15,949) (41,413)
Income tax refunded FriSiiRiE 150 25,181
Income tax payable at 31 December R 12 A 31 BEYERFTEF 212,960 226,930

226 YUANDA CHINA HOLDINGS LIMITED | Annual Report 2020
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Notes to the Financial Statements (continued)

INCOME TAX IN THE CONSOLIDATED
STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION (continued)

(b) Deferred tax assets and liabilities recognised:

The components of deferred tax assets and
liabilities recognised in the consolidated statement

Bt 75 3 3% MY & )

(Expressed in RMB unless otherwise indicated)

(BREEHEBAIN  AARERER)

25 EHMBRRRANAEHRZ)

b) EEREEHEEERBE:

R & 5F B H5 7A O 5% B R B S
FERIRE E N BB AKED

of financial position and the movements during the S RERNSENM T -
year are as follows:
Depreciation
allowances
in excess of
the related Loss Remeasure-
depreciation allowance on ment
and trade and of the fair
government other  Provision for value of
grants and receivables warranties, derivative
Unused tax relted ~ Writedown  and contract and financial
losses ~depreciation of inventories assets  legal claims ~ instruments Total
RRRRIEN 3k
fESHENR HRRUEMR Eififk
RORRE  HERER AHEE  RERER  GAERIAN
i | EBfE FEME  DERAR 4 i MEE it
Deferred tax arising from: RUB'000 RVB000 RVB'000 RVB000 RMB000 RVB'000 RVB000
R L4 ARET ARETR ARETR ARETR ARBTR ARETR ARETR
At January 2019 AN19E1R1A 18,361 19449 74 465,328 66,675 (4799) 565,986
Exchange adjustments (%) - 2 18 (F4)
Credtedcharged| to the
consolidated statement of profit
0orloss (Nots 71a) 6,986 (£,030) 149 (B1,704) (16,829 5,579 (69,849
At 81 December 2019 and R019E12A81 AR
1 January 2020 RO2E1A1A 5,213 15,419 895 313,626 50,064 786 466,063
Exchange adjustments (1,509) - (39) (506) (2.407)
Credted!{charged] to the
consolidated statement of proft
orloss (Note 7a) 39,960 (4,660) 5 (102,397) (20307) (5,721) (93,076)
At 31 December 2020 RANE12A31A 63,718 10,759 954 210,833 2,261 (4.935) 310,580
EARPEERAMRAE | T ALY




Notes to the Financial Statements (continued)

Bt 75 3 3% MY & ()

(Expressed in RMB unless otherwise indicated)

(REEEBI  UARERER)

25 [INCOME TAX IN THE CONSOLIDATED

25 AHBBRRRANAEHRE)

STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION (continued)

(c) Reconciliation of deferred tax assets and liabilities (c)
recognised in the consolidated statement of

financial position:

Deferred tax assets recognised in
the consolidated statement of
financial position

Deferred tax liabilities recognised
in the consolidated statement of
financial position

(d) Deferred tax assets not recognised

In accordance with the accounting policy set out in
Note 2(s), the Group has not recognised deferred
tax assets in respect of unused tax losses and
deductible temporary differences arising from
certain subsidiaries of the Group of RMB1,598.7
million at 31 December 2020 (31 December 2019:
RMB1,153.8 million), as it is not probable that
future taxable profits against which the losses
can be utilised will be available in the relevant
tax jurisdiction and entity. Except for the amount
of RMB726.4 million which will not expire under
the relevant tax legislation, the remaining unused
tax losses at 31 December 2020 will expire on or

before 31 December 2028.

& BF B 5 R R AR AV AR
EFIREE KRB BN -

2020 2019
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR®BTRE ARBTE
N & GF I B R SL 2&  RE R
HEIER A A &
370,984 466,236
N B GBS ST 2k P RE R
REER AR R
(404) (173)
370,580 466,063

d) RERBLEHBEE

BB M FE2(s) Fr & M & 51 I
R ANKEE I K F2020F
12A31MBEASESE T
BAREENRE AL
BRANBRERZEARYK
1,598.78 & (2019412
A31H: AR %¥1,153.88
BL)BERECHRELE B
AREMAMBRAEAERERE
BE AR R AI B2 FE AR Bt A
BRI E TS AMNEIE -
BRARK7264E5EETTE
TEBAUMBEETER  #
T 2020512 A31 B Bk
AP BEEKR 20284 12
B 31 B AR @i o
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Notes to the Financial Statements (continued)

25 INCOME TAX IN THE CONSOLIDATED
STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION (continued)

(e) Deferred tax liabilities not recognised

At 31 December 2020, temporary differences
relating to the retained profits of the Group’s
subsidiaries established in the PRC amounted
to RMB2,070.6 million (31 December 2019:
RMB2,561.5 million), of which no deferred tax
liabilities in respect of the tax that would be payable
on the distribution of these profits was provided as
the Company controls the dividend policy of these
subsidiaries and it has been determined that it is
probable that such profits will not be distributed in
the foreseeable future.

26 PROVISION FOR WARRANTIES

Bt 75 3 3% MY & )

(Expressed in RMB unless otherwise indicated)

(BRSBHIEAIN - UARKREBN)
25 AHFMBERRRANAEHRE)

() FAERELEHEAMR

R2020% 12 A31H ' &
RNEB R EKLEK B
RAWMRBAN BN R E
EAARE207068 8T
(2019412 A31H : AR
2561588 7m) HA#H
EXEEY RZ S HER
MIB R IR IE 8 &1L B
# RERARRESILE
MEBARMKRERR M
EEEZEMETETER

A R ARKEDIR ©
26 RIEEE
2020 2019

RMB’000 RMB’000
AR®TRT AR®BTRT

At 1 January »1A18 255,809 303,738
Exchange adjustments M 5 AR (5,213) 4,995
Additional provisions made B EHRREINE A 57,246 75,416
Provisions utilised BEE AREE (74,044) (128,340)
At 31 December »w12 A31H 233,798 255,809
Less: amounts included as current B REBRBREEREAERE
liabilities at the end of the A & 88
reporting period (48,773) (82,023)
185,025 173,786
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Notes to the Financial Statements (continued)
B 7% S 3% f & ()

(Expressed in RMB unless otherwise indicated)

(REEEBI  UARERER)

26 PROVISION FOR WARRANTIES (continued) 26 RIEWEE)

Under the terms of the Group’s construction contracts
with its customers, the Group will rectify any defects
arising within one to five years from the date of
completion of the construction contracts, as required
by industry regulations in respective jurisdictions and
depending on the terms negotiated with each customer.
Provision is therefore made for the best estimate of the
expected settlement under these construction contracts
in respect of construction contracts completed within
one to five years prior to the end of the reporting period.
The amount of provision takes into account the Group’s
recent claim experience and is only made where a
warranty claim is probable.
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Notes to the Financial Statements (continued)
B 7% S 3} MY & (@)

(Expressed in RMB unless otherwise indicated)

(BREEHEBAIN  AARERER)

27 CAPITAL, RESERVES AND DIVIDENDS 27 BEX - #FERRE
(a) Movements in components of equity (a) HERABRER D M EE)

The reconciliation between the opening and closing RNEBHES FERSZHKES
balances of each component of the Group’s 5 B B 4] [z HA 4% 45 65 B BR
consolidated equity is set out in the consolidated HNAERE KRB - F
statement of changes in equity. Details of the )2 F R A A 5 & 1E Bl
changes in the Company’s individual components HEmAKE D EFFBH
of equity between the beginning and the end of the FaAR

year are set out below:

Shares held
Share Share  under share Exchange  Accumulated
capital premium  award scheme reserve loss Total
RERGZD
& RitEE  stEfRRe EiRfR ZitfE it

RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
ARETR  ARRTR ARBT R ARBT T ARBT T ARBT T
(Note 27(c) ~ (Note 27(d)i))  (Note 27a)fi)  (Note 27(a)fy))

Wiore)  (Wongn)  (hEanon)  (BEonap)

At 1 January 2019 HO19%1 518 519,728 574,047 (210) (68,596) (79,073) 945,891
Changes in equity for 2019: e
Proft for the year EmflE - - - - 1678 1678
Other comprehiensive income B2 EE - - - 17576 - 117,576
Total comprehensive income Efil (et - - - 117576 1678 119,254
At 31 December 2019 and 12019512831 AR

1 January 2020 N20%1A18 519,723 574,047 (210) 48,980 (77,395) 1,065,145
Changes in equity for 2020: g
Loss for the year FREE - = = - (3,69) (3,698)
Other comprehensive income EhEENG - - - (64,249) - (64,249)
Total comprehensive income kS - - = (64,249) (3,698) (67,947)
Tmiging e Se AvdSrene. BOSREERE - - 210 ----------- - ( 176) --------- (‘;4- -
At 31 December 2020 120205128318 519,723 574,047 - (15,269) (61,269) 997,232

B EERARA T | S R



Notes to the Financial Statements (continued)
B 7% S 3% f & ()

(Expressed in RMB unless otherwise indicated)

(B=EEHAN -

AARBEREBA)

27 CAPITAL, RESERVES AND DIVIDENDS (continued)

27 EXR - HERREE)

(b)  Dividends b) KE
() Dividends payable to equity shareholders (i) BEREFANEMAEA
of the Company attributable to the year FRERE
The directors of the Company do not AKRalEEEaNRA
recommend the payment of a dividend for # £2020F12 A31H
the year ended 31 December 2020 (2019: 1EFE B E (2019 F
HKS$Nil). c TATT) o
(ii) Dividends payable to equity shareholders (i) FERL—BHREEW
of the Company attributable to the ENAQATBRERERE -
previous financial year, approved and B R FEEH#LAERIRA
paid during the year
No final dividend in respect of the previous n A ZE2020412 A
financial year has been approved during 1B &EH &EA B L
the year ended 31 December 2020 (2019: — I REERNRERE
HKS$Ni). (20194 : BFXT) °
(¢) Share capital () MR
(i) Issued share capital: (i) BRITRA:
2020 2019
Number Number
of shares of shares
R EE &8 B
’000 RMB’000 ‘000 RMB’000
TR AR%®TR TR ARETT
Ordinary shares, TER B%8
issued and fully TRHR :
paid:
At 1 January and 31 A1 A1HK
December 12 A31H 6,208,734 519,723 6,208,734 519,723

232 YUANDA CHINA HOLDINGS LIMITED
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Notes to the Financial Statements (continued)

27 CAPITAL, RESERVES AND DIVIDENDS (continued)

(c) Share capital (continued)

(i)

At 31 December 2020, no ordinary shares
are held by the Company under the Share
Award Scheme (31 December 2019: 587,000
ordinary shares) (see Note 24).

(d)  Nature and purpose of reserves

U]

(ii)

Share premium

The application of the share premium
account is governed by Section 34 of the
Companies Law, Chapter 22 (Law 3 of 1961,
as consolidated and revised) of the Cayman
Islands.

Shares held under share award scheme
The amount represents the consideration
paid for shares held under the Share Award

Scheme.

The Share Award Scheme has been
terminated on 29 July 2020.

Bt 75 3 3% MY & )

(Expressed in RMB unless otherwise indicated)

(BR=EEBI -

AARKEREN)

27 EXR - HERRE(Z

(©)

A (48)

(ii)

MR2020F12 A31H -
A B AR IR AR 1 42 B
FEABFAERT AR
(2019512 A31 8 :
587,000 % & i@ % ) (R
izt 24) ©

fEEHMLE R E &

U]

(ii)

FHARDRERSH
EHERQREF2NE
(1961 F FE = H A B -
Bira RIER] ) B34 1%

s
BEE o

RERGRBBFSE
iy

&R BRI A D 2B
sHEIR A R AR

go

{7 22 B &t 8 10 2020
F7H29BKIE -
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Notes to the Financial Statements (continued)
B 7% S 3% f & ()

(Expressed in RMB unless otherwise indicated)

(B=EEHAN -

AARBEREBA)

27 CAPITAL, RESERVES AND DIVIDENDS (continued)

(d)

YUANDA CHINA HOLDINGS LIMITED

Nature and purpose of reserves (continued)

(iif)

(iv)

Other reserve

The other reserve represents (i) the difference
between the carrying values of the non-
controlling interests acquired by the Group
and the considerations paid; (ii) the surplus/
deficit of the carrying values of the controlling
equity interests in subsidiaries under common
control disposed of over the considerations
received; (iii) the difference between the
carrying values of the controlling equity
interests in subsidiaries acquired and the
considerations paid under the Group’s
reorganisation completed in 2010; and (iv)
the difference between the carrying value of
the net assets acquired and the consideration
paid for the acquisition of a business under
common control in 2012.

PRC statutory reserves

In accordance with the articles of association
of the subsidiaries of the Group established
in the PRC, these subsidiaries are required
to set up certain statutory reserves, which
are non-distributable. The appropriation to
these reserves is at discretion of the directors
of the respective subsidiaries. The PRC
statutory reserves can only be utilised for
predetermined means upon approval by the
relevant authority.

Annual Report 2020

27 EXR - HERREE)

(d)

RENEERBENGE)

(iii)

(iv)

Htf#

Hi#wmE () AEEMR
Wi ) FEIE IR i 2 4 58
HENAREZHENE
B (B REXLRE
51 B B ) A 428 A AR A
MEEEESRE RRERN
BB A (i) BT IR
B M B A R A IR AR 4
FEEAREAEER
2010 F = EA A
REZHEHZER  &(v)
2012 F U B & K A
TR B FEE
FEESEZNREZHE
mER -

HEEE R B

RIEASERPEKL
BB A BMAEEER
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Notes to the Financial Statements (continued)

27 CAPITAL, RESERVES AND DIVIDENDS (continued)

(d)

Nature and purpose of reserves (continued)

(iv) PRC statutory reserves (continued)

In addition, pursuant to the relevant PRC
regulations, with effect on 1 January 2012,
a reserve for production safety is required
to be set up and to be appropriated at a
fixed rate on the revenue of the subsidiaries
of the Group established in the PRC. The
reserve can be utilised for expenses or capital
expenditures incurred in connection with
production safety.

(v) Exchange reserve

The exchange reserve comprises foreign
exchange differences arising from the
translation of the financial statements of
foreign operations into the presentation
currency. The reserve is dealt with in
accordance with the accounting policy set out
in Note 2(u).

Capital management

The Group’s primary objectives when managing
capital are to safeguard the Group’s ability to
continue as a going concern, so that it can continue
to provide returns for equity shareholders and
benefits for other stakeholders, by pricing products
and services commensurately with the level of risk
and by securing access to finance at a reasonable
cost.

Bt 75 3 3% MY & )

(Expressed in RMB unless otherwise indicated)

(F RAEHEEASN + AARME AEAL)
27 EXR - HERRE(E)

(d)

BB R B & (4)

(iv) FEEEREE)

(v)

gEoh - R ¥E B 2012 F 1
A1 B A HE RS+
BIER - NEERAFE
B A B B A B B B A
R E N E T IR
MR EEERE - 2
HEUREINERL R
SEMEEHNEARE
N

BE 5

bE H FE R IR R E g
EBUMBRERBZINE
WERTELERINEZEE -
% {5k 1 T AR 15 B 5 2(u)
I8t BUREE -

BEANEHE

AEBEREANTIEZRR
RRERAEBEERBRLE
HIBES] » BUEEAE BT E
an M AR 75 1 € (B B2 R B K P
— BB BIRE ERARE
MEEB R RIEMHEHR K
REMMEEREE RN
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Notes to the Financial Statements (continued)
B 7% S 3% f & ()

(Expressed in RMB unless otherwise indicated)

(B=EEHAN -

AARBEREBA)

27 CAPITAL, RESERVES AND DIVIDENDS (continued)

(e

Capital management (continued)

The Group actively and regularly reviews and
manages its capital structure to maintain a balance
between the higher equity shareholder returns that
might be possible with higher levels of borrowings
and the advantages and security afforded by a
sound capital position, and makes adjustments to
the capital structure in light of changes in economic
conditions.

The Group monitors its capital structure on the
basis of an adjusted net debt-to-capital ratio.
For this purpose, the Group defines adjusted net
debt as total debt (which includes bank loans,
discounted bills, credit letters, amounts due to
third parties and the Controlling Shareholder and
the companies under his control(interest bearing),
trade and bills payables and lease liabilities) plus
unaccrued proposed dividends, less cash and
cash equivalents. Adjusted capital comprises all
components of equity less unaccrued proposed
dividends.

During 2020, the Group’s strategy was to maintain
the adjusted net debt-to-capital ratio at an
acceptable level. In order to maintain or adjust
the ratio, the Group may adjust the amount of
dividends paid to equity shareholders, issue new
shares, return capital to equity shareholders, raise
new debt financing or sell assets to reduce debt.

YUANDA CHINA HOLDINGS LIMITED Annual Report 2020
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Notes to the Financial Statements (continued)

Bt 75 3 3% MY & )

(Expressed in RMB unless otherwise indicated)

27 CAPITAL, RESERVES AND DIVIDENDS (continued) 27

The Group’s adjusted net debt-to-capital ratio at 31

December 2020 and 2019 was as follows:

Current liabilities:

Trade and bills payables

Amounts due to the Controlling
Shareholder and the companies
under his control
— interest bearing

Amounts due to third parties

Accrued expense and other payables-
lease liabilities

Discounted bills and credit letters

Bank loans

Non-current liabilities:
Bank loans
Lease liabilities

Total debt
Less: cash on hand and in bank

Adjusted net debt
Total equity and adjusted capital

Adjusted net debt-to-capital ratio

Neither the Company nor any of its

MENRIE :
BHRNARENREE

(BRSBHIEAIN - UARKREBN)
BE - RERRS(H)

720204 K% 2019412 A31 A &y
REEKREFEBEE R L RN
™

FEATHRAR A R e S LR I A

AR

- &R

e =77 MFKIR

AR R EMENEERE

MRRBERERE
RITER

FRBEE
RITER
HEAE

HIETS
B FHRRE RRITER

RARFER
RRARFERRESN LR

subsidiaries are

subject to externally imposed capital requirements.

31 31
December December
2020 2019

2020 & 20194

12 A31H 12 A31H
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARET T ARETIT
2,060,752 2,582,442
129,499 130,626
108,182 =
5,326 10,465
1,406,800 681,188
699,200 1,645,000
4,409,759 5,049,721
400,000 =
4,215 2,554
4,813,974 5,052,275
(2,012,606) (1,878,068)
2,801,368 3,174,207
2,100,752 2,731,695
133% 116%

AR A HEAINE R BB ESZ I
HB A I B AR TEBR I o
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Notes to the Financial Statements (continued)

Bt 75 3 3% MY & ()

(Expressed in RMB unless otherwise indicated)

(REEEBI  UARERER)
28 MATERIAL RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS

In addition to the transactions and balances disclosed
elsewhere in these financial statements, the material
related party transactions entered into by the Group
during the year are set out below.

(@) Transactions with the Controlling Shareholder and
the companies under his control

Purchase of materials and services & E Mkl & IR7%

28 EABBLIRS

BRI ESM B RR AT D BN
i%&l\\ﬂﬁ%&‘\ ! Z’S%@H/\\\ﬁmﬁ]—i
MEXBE DX SEINMT

(a)

Net increase/(decrease) in interest AR 7 WER Y 5T BB R

bearing advances received from #on, Crd)F58
related parties

Net decrease in non-interest R BEESE 75 WY T ET B
bearing advances received from BFOR A FEE
related parties

Sales of raw materials S R R

Interest expense from interest SRR E

bearing advances

Further details on guarantees provided by related
parties for the Group’s bank loans are disclosed in
Notes 22(a) and 22(b).

(b) Key management personnel remuneration
Remuneration for key management personnel of the

Group, including amounts paid to the directors of
the Company as disclosed in Note 8, is as follows:

Short-term employee benefits EHESRA
Retirement schemes contributions RREHEI R

Total remuneration is included in “staff costs” (see
Note 6(b)).
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A 70 BG A% B K &2 E A ) B9 A
ﬂﬁ'\])«

2020 2019
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR®TR ARETT

4,402 1,286
4,900 (39,900)
(1,193) -
1,960 -
9,401 11,352

B S AEBRITE R
1,\E@ﬁ§f%a’wﬁfia$|ﬁﬁé|?ﬁ
¥ 22(a) M 22(b) K E -

TEEEABSHM

AREBFTEZEEABNH
M*a%ﬁ%?sﬁwm$
NAESZMHFIBUT

2020 2019
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARBTRT ARETT

17,515 12,318
93 137
17,608 12,455

FMEEe SR8 TKA]
AR HIFE6(b)) °



Notes to the Financial Statements (continued)

29 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT AND FAIR
VALUES OF FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS

Exposure to credit, liquidity, interest rate and currency

risks arises in the normal course of the Group’s

business.

The Group’s exposure to these risks and the financial

risk management policies and practices used by the

Group to manage these risks are described below.

(a)

Credit risk

Credit risk refers to the risk that a counterparty will
default on its contractual obligations resulting in a
financial loss to the Group. The Group’s credit risk
is primarily attributable to trade receivables and
contract assets. The Group’s exposure to credit
risk arising from cash and cash equivalents, bills
receivables and derivative financial assets is limited
because the counterparties are banks and financial
institutions with high credit standing, for which the
Group considers to have low credit risk.

Except for the guarantee letters given by the Group
as set out in Note 31(a), the Group does not
provide any other guarantees which would expose
the Group to credit risk. The maximum exposure to
credit risk in respect of these financial guarantees
at the end of the reporting period is disclosed in
Note 31(a).

Trade receivables and contract assets

The Group’s exposure to credit risk is influenced
mainly by the individual characteristics of each
customer rather than the industry or country
in which the customers operate and therefore
significant concentrations of credit risk primarily
arise when the Group has significant exposure
to individual customers. At 31 December 2020
and 2019, there are no significant concentrations
of credit risk through exposure to individual
customers.

Bt 75 3 3% MY & )

(Expressed in RMB unless otherwise indicated)
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Notes to the Financial Statements (continued)

Bt 75 3 3% MY & ()

(Expressed in RMB unless otherwise indicated)

(REEEBI  UARERER)
29 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT AND FAIR
VALUES OF FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (continued)

(@)  Credit risk (continued)

Trade receivables and contract assets
(continued)

Individual credit evaluations are performed on
all customers. These evaluations focus on the
customer’s past history of making payments
when due and current ability to pay, and take into
account information specific to the customers as
well as pertaining to the economic environment in
which the customers operate. The Group generally
requires customers to settle progress billings
and retentions receivable in accordance with
contracted terms and other debts in accordance
with agreements. Except for retentions receivable,
trade receivables and contract assets for contract
work are considered past due once billings have
been made and revenue has been recognised,
respectively. Retention terms of one to five years
may be granted to customers for retentions
receivable. Normally, the Group does not obtain
collateral from customers.

The Group measures loss allowances for trade
receivables and contract assets at an amount
equal to lifetime ECLs, which is calculated using
a provision matrix. As the Group’s historical credit
loss experience does not indicate significantly
different loss patterns for different customer
segments, the loss allowance based on past due
status is not further distinguished between the
Group’s different customer bases.
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Notes to the Financial Statements (continued)
B 7% S 3} MY & (@)

(Expressed in RMB unless otherwise indicated)

29 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT AND FAIR
VALUES OF FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (continued)

(@)  Credit risk (continued)

Trade receivables and contract assets
(continued)

The following table provides information about the
Group’s exposure to credit risk and ECLs for trade
receivables and contract assets:

Current (not past due) mE)(RaH)
Within1 year past due BHR DR —F

More than 1 year past due #EERE—F

Current (not past due) mEh (R Hl)
Within 1 year past due wHER LR —F

More than 1 year past due #HA#E:E—4

(BR=EEBI -

AARKEREN)

29 FBEREERERIANDIAR

BEE)

(@ EERRE)

BESRURREREE(E)

TRIEMHSE BE AL E R 2020
F12A31 B E F MK
EREEFMERZEERR

RIEHERBERZER
2020
Gross
Expected carrying Loss
loss rate amount allowance
FEHEEE HERTEE EiERE
% RMB’000 RMB’000
AR®T T AR®T T
2.1% 519,389 10,862
9.6% 1,344,129 129,527
41.4% 4,423,955 1,833,278
6,287,473 1,973,667
2019
Gross
Expected carrying Loss
loss rate amount allowance
TEHAES e =X RAREE =t
% RMB’000 RMB’000
AREET T AREF T
1.7% 659,368 11,283
7.6% 2,068,501 158,190
35.1% 4,376,417 1,685,230
7,104,286 1,704,703
23K vp B A R A ) R ORIPEEHR 241



Notes to the Financial Statements (continued)

Bt 75 3 3% MY & ()

(Expressed in RMB unless otherwise indicated)

(REEEBI  UARERER)
29 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT AND FAIR 29
VALUES OF FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (continued)

(@)  Credit risk (continued)

Trade receivables and contract assets
(continued)

Expected loss rates are based on actual loss
experience over the past 3 years. These rates are
adjusted to reflect differences between economic
conditions during the period over which the historic
data has been collected, current conditions and
the Group’s view of economic conditions over the
expected lives of the receivables.

Movement in the loss allowance account in respect
of trade receivables and contract assets during the
year is as follows:

Balance at 1 January B A1 BRI

Exchange adjustment [ H X

Amounts written-off during the year FRMURHI S5

Impairment losses recognised FRNERERREBE
during the year

Impairment losses written-back F R EREEE

during the year

Balance at 31 December M12 A 31 HH &6k
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ZHEBMERAZEBERRZ
BRZEMER -

FRNEREZRUALAR
BEMNEBRBERESNT

2020 2019
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR®TRT ARKETE

1,704,703 2,045,072

(24,592) 16,518

= (512,712)
380,154 285,751
(86,598) (129,926)

1,973,667 1,704,703




Notes to the Financial Statements (continued)

29 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT AND FAIR
VALUES OF FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (continued)

(b)

Liquidity risk

The treasury function is centrally managed by the
Group, which includes the short-term investment
of cash surpluses and the raising of loans to cover
expected cash demands. The Group’s policy is to
regularly monitor its liquidity requirements and its
compliance with lending covenants, to ensure that it
maintains sufficient reserves of cash and adequate
committed lines of funding from major financial
institutions to meet its liquidity requirements in the
short and longer term.

The following tables detail the remaining contractual
maturities at the end of the reporting period of
the Group’s non-derivative financial liabilities and
derivative financial liabilities, which are based on
contractual undiscounted cash flows (including
interest payments computed using contractual rates
or, if floating, based on current rates at the end
of the reporting period) and the earliest dates the
Group can be required to pay:
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Notes to the Financial Statements (continued)
B 7% S 3% f & ()

(Expressed in RMB unless otherwise indicated)

(REEEBI  UARERER)

29 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT AND FAIR 29 B¥EAREERESMIANDA
VALUES OF FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (continued) BE(E)
(b)  Liquidity risk (continued) b) TBESRKE)
2020
Contractual undiscounted cash outflow
AEARRRERH

More than More than Carrying
Within 1yearbut 2 years but amount
1 year or less than less than at 31
on demand 2 years 3 years Total December
—£R BA-F BAMEF M12A31H
FEEX  EOREE  BIRZE At WIREE

RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
ARBTR  ARMTRT  ARMTR  ARMTR  AR%TR

Trade and bills payables BoRARRER
4 2,060,752 - - 2,060,752 2,060,752

Accrued expenses and 1RE R AT ER)

other payables measured ~ fEET R RE

at amortised cost - RE 2,004,178 - - 2,004,178 1,995,760
Lease liabilties HEaE - 3,326 1,242 4,568 4,215
Bank loans RITER 738,087 17,660 406,077 1,161,824 1,099,200

2020

Contractual undiscounted cash (outflow)/inflow
ARKBRRL(RL) /KA
More than More than
Within 1yearbut 2 years but

1 year or less than less than
on demand 2 years 5 years Total

—£R BB-F BBmE
FEER  EORWE  EOREF At

RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB'000 RMB'000
AR®TR  ARMTR  ARBTR  AR%TR

Derivatives settled gross: BERENETAEE:

Other forward foreign exchange EtREBoNERY -
contracts:
- outflow - i (565,911) (73,889) (1,061,529) (1,701,329)
- inflow N 565,796 13,778 1,095,012 1,734,586
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Notes to the Financial Statements (continued)
B 7% S 3} MY & (@)

(Expressed in RMB unless otherwise indicated)

(BREEHEBAIN  AARERER)

29 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT AND FAIR 29 H¥EREERESMIANDIAR
VALUES OF FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (continued) BE(ZE)
(b)  Liquidity risk (continued) (o) REBHERKR(E)
2019
Contractual undiscounted cash outflow
ARRERRE SR

More than More than Carrying
Within 1 year but 2 years but amount
1 year or less than less than at 31
on demand 2 years 3 years Total December
—&R BB—F BBME R’12A31H
AEEK  BEIRME  BIR=F @t A

RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
ARBTL  ARETT  ARBTR  ARETT  ARETR

Trade and bills payables BoRARRER
ZE 2,582,442 - - 2,582,442 2,582,442

Accrued expenses and IR HR AT ER

other payables measured ~ FEEES S R EM

at amortised cost EANER 1,178,350 = = 1,178,350 1,172,466
Lease liabilties HEgat - 1,961 828 2,789 2,554
Bank loans BITER 1,692,436 - S 1,692,436 1,645,000

2019

Contractual undiscounted cash (outflow)/inflow
ARKHRRL(FH)/RA
More than More than
Within 1 year but 2 years but

1 year or less than less than
on demand 2 years 5 years Total

—ER HiR—F M
FEER  BIRmE  BIRLE @t

RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
ARBTE  ARETT  AREBTR  ARETR

Derivatives settled gross: ERETAETARSE:

Other forward foreign exchange EfRHNES L) :
contracts:
- outflow - i (1,009,226) (4983,109) (273,329) (1,775,664)
- inflow -RA 1,007,409 491,714 271,148 1,770,271
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Notes to the Financial Statements (continued)

Bt 75 3 3% MY & ()

(Expressed in RMB unless otherwise indicated)

(REEEBI  UARERER)
29 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT AND FAIR 29
VALUES OF FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (continued)

(c) Interest rate risk

Interest rate risk is the risk that the fair value or
future cash flows of a financial instrument will
fluctuate because of changes in market interest
rates. The Group’s interest rate risk arises primarily
from interest bearing borrowings. Borrowings
issued at variable rates and at fixed rates expose
the Group to cash flow interest rate risk and fair
value interest rate risk respectively.

(i) Interest rate profile
The following table details the interest rate

profile of the Group’s borrowings at the end
of the reporting period:

BREEBREEREMIANAR
BEE)

(c)

IESE

NMERBRESHRIANDA
BENARKE R GE TS
MERBEMKEBHRER - &
SEN ERERTERE
BEE - RIPBMNXREF
ﬂrﬁﬁmﬁgﬁﬂAmﬁ
.7% RenEMNERR R
ARABEMERER -

i)y F=&E8

TRHFLAEEEER
WERRNFRERE
2020 2019
Effective Effective
interest rate interest rate
BRA= ERF=
% RMB’000 % RMB’000
ARBT ARETT
Fixed rate borrowings: EERZEE
Bank loans RN 5.05% 699,200 5.90% 1,125,000
Variable rate borrowings: BEHAREE
Bank loans RITER 4.42% 400,000 4.65% 520,000
Total bank borrowings BTEEAE 1,099,200 1,645,000
Fixed rate bank borrowings  EEFIRETEE
as a percentage of total ERTEEAE
bank borrowings B
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Notes to the Financial Statements (continued)

29 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT AND FAIR
VALUES OF FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (continued)

(c) Interest rate risk (continued)

(ii)

Sensitivity analysis

At 31 December 2020,
general increase/decrease of 100 basis points

it is estimated that a

in interest rates, with all other variables held
constant, would have increased/decreased
the Group’s loss after tax and decreased/
increased the Group’s retained profits
of approximately RMB3.4 million (2019:
decreased/increased the Group’s profit
after tax and the Group’s retained profits of

approximately RMB4.4 million).

The sensitivity analysis above indicates the
instantaneous change in the Group’s profit
after tax and retained profits assuming that
the change in interest rates had occurred at
the end of the reporting period and had been
applied to remeasure those non-derivative
financial instruments held by the Group which
expose the Group to cash flow interest rate
risk at the end of the reporting period. The
impact on the Group’s profit after tax and
retained profits is estimated as an annualised
impact on interest expenses of such a change
in interest rates. The sensitivity analysis is
performed on the same basis for 2019.
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Notes to the Financial Statements (continued)
B 7% S 3% f & ()

(Expressed in RMB unless otherwise indicated)

(B=EEHAN -

AARBEREBA)

29 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT AND FAIR
VALUES OF FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (continued)

(d)

Currency risk

The Group is exposed to currency risk primarily
through revenue from and costs incurred for
contract work, purchases of imported materials
which give rise to receivables, payables, inter-
company payables and receivables within the
Group, and cash balances that are denominated
in a currency other than the functional currency of
the operations to which the transactions relate. The
currencies giving rise to this risk are primarily USD,
Euro, SGD, AUD, GBP, CHF, CAD, RMB, HKS,
Qatar Riyal (“QAR”), Vietnamese Dong (“VND”) and
Russia Rubles (“RUB”).

A significant portion of the Group’s business
is overseas construction contracts, and these
contracts are generally settled in currencies
other than RMB. The Group uses forward foreign
exchange contracts to minimise its exposure to
currency risk arising therefrom.

() Hedges of foreign currency risk in
forecast transactions

The Group hedges portion of its estimated
foreign currency exposure in respect of highly
probable forecast revenue from overseas
construction contracts.
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Notes to the Financial Statements (continued)

29 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT AND FAIR
VALUES OF FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (continued)

(d)  Currency risk (continued)

(i)

Hedges of foreign currency risk in
forecast transactions (continued

The Group uses forward foreign exchange
contracts to manage its currency risk until
the settlement date of foreign currency
receivables or payables. The Group
designates those forward exchange contracts
as hedging instruments in cash flow
hedges and does not separate the forward
and spot element of a forward exchange
contract but instead designates the forward
exchange contract in its entirety in a hedging
relationship. Correspondingly, the hedged item
is measured based on the forward exchange
rate.

The Group determines the existence of
an economic relationship between the
forward exchange contracts and the highly
probable forecast transactions based on their
currency amounts and the timing of their
respective cash flows. The main sources of
ineffectiveness in these hedging relationships
are:

(@) the effect of the counterparty’s and the
Group’s own credit risk on the fair value
of the forward exchange contracts which
is not reflected in the change in the value
of the hedged cash flows attributable to
the forward rate; and

(b) changes in the timing of the hedged
transactions.
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(Expressed in RMB unless otherwise indicated)
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Notes to the Financial Statements (continued)
B 7% S 3% f & ()

(Expressed in RMB unless otherwise indicated)

(B=EEHAN -

AARBEREBA)

29 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT AND FAIR
VALUES OF FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (continued)

(d)  Currency risk (continued)

(ii)

(iif)

Recognised assets and liabilities

Change in the fair value of forward foreign
exchange contracts that economically hedge
monetary assets and liabilities denominated
in foreign currencies is recognised in profit
At 31 December
2020, the net fair value of forward foreign

or loss (see Note 6(a)).

exchange contracts used by the Group as
economic hedges of monetary assets and
liabilities denominated in foreign currencies
was a gain of RMB38.1 million (31 December
2019: a loss of RMB5.2 million) recognised as
derivative financial instruments.

In respect of the remaining receivables and
payables denominated in currencies other
than the functional currency of the entity to
which they relate, the Group ensures that the
net exposure is kept to an acceptable level,
by buying or selling foreign currencies at spot
rates where necessary to address short-term
imbalances.

Exposure to currency risk

The following tables detail the Group’s
exposure at the end of the reporting period to
currency risk arising from recognised assets
or liabilities denominated in a currency other
than the functional currency of the entity to
which they relate. For presentation purposes,
the amounts of the exposure are shown
in RMB, translated using the spot rates at
the end of the reporting period. Differences
resulting from the translation of the financial
statements of foreign operations into the
Group’s presentation currency are excluded.
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Notes to the Financial Statements (continued)
B 7% S 3} MY & (@)

(Expressed in RMB unless otherwise indicated)

(BREEHEBAIN  AARERER)

29 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT AND FAIR 29 HIRERABREERESBMIANAR
VALUES OF FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (continued) EEE)
(d) Currency risk (continued) (d EBEEERE)
(iii) Exposure to currency risk (continued) (i) AZTHEERR(Z)
200

O Ewo  SOD A  GBP CHF  CAD RMB  HKS QR WD B
i En Fm M B R N ARR B MMERE #BE &%
RMBODD RMBOO) RMBOO RMBO0O RMBUD) RMBON) RMBOOD RMBO0D RBON RMBON RMBOO RMBON
ARMTT ARMTR ARMTR ARMTR ARMTR ARMTZ ARMTR ARRTR ARMTR ARMTR ARMTR ARMTZ

Contract assets 8920 76% 4 - - - - - - - -
Trade and bill receivables NG 011804 23303 53972 121274 331816 120368 27,848 - 06808 G716 28075 23168
Deposts, prapayments and ofher > B

receivables 210483 45600 13,561 - 420 204436 - 1000 334458 9799 -
Cash on hand and n berk FERERERRR 16 485 - - W - - 8 - - -
Trade and bils payables BAENTRENER (14032)  (28.289) - - 2199 (15200 ) - - - -
Recrued expenses and other payebles SR RAKELRE (169,834) - - - (1440 - - (1,028,090 = = =
Gross expostre arshg from recoised~ RETAERAEREH

assets and lbities BlREE 1002170 53169 67767 121214 310,49 300617 2825 (1,027,007 431,266 66985 23,075 23,168
Notionel amounts of forward foreign ~—~~ BfEEEmRENE

exchange cortracts used as aHE5EE

economic heages (14650  (27.354) - (38501 (fro,T08)  (74,30) - - - - -

Net exposure asig fom recognised—~~ BETAERAREELH
assets and [biies B2

%7520 B85 61767 81713 190488 238300 27825 (1020007 431,266 66,085 23075 23,168
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Notes to the Financial Statements (continued)

Bt 75 3 3% MY & ()

(Expressed in RMB unless otherwise indicated)

(REEEBI  UARERER)
29

FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT AND FAIR

29 FIBEREEREBRIANDIAR

VALUES OF FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (continued) BE(E)
(d)  Currency risk (continued) d) EERERE)
(iii) Exposure to currency risk (continued) (iii) RZHNE¥RERZE)
2019
UsD Euro SGD AUD (8P CHF CAD RMB HKS AR D RUB
i & fm B BB OBtAB I ABR BEn ERAE MEE ER
RMB'0O0  RMB'0O0  RMB'000  RMBIOO0  RMBOOD RMB'OOD RMB'OOD  RMB'0O0  RMB'00  RMB'000  RMB'000  RMB000
ARETT ARBTn ARETT ARETn ARETR ARETr ARETR ARETT ARETRn ARETT ARMTR ARETR
Confract assefs AREE 87574 10 - - - - -
Trade and bils receivables SRR REYZE OII84 3B40 100813 14523 WG AMTITE 29078 - 0305 1320 A0 B
Deposts, prapayments and ofher 2 BN REER
receivables 188478 4213 5019 - 1136 202480 - 910 365,997 1,808 -
Gash on hand and in bank RS RBER S% 50 - Yl 532 - i) - -
Traoe and bils payatles SARIRENRE (10039 (22371) - S (1 1) 2 - - -
Accrued expenses and other payables B R REKENE (126203 - - (1888 - (1,0055%) - -
Gross exposure aising from recognised  EETEERBEEAH
ass6ts end liabities e 1098343 63286 106260 145255 197300 30480 29094 (1004583 469,082 14537 2494 23,365
Notional amounts of forward foreign~—~~ BEEEU RN E
euohange oontacts used as 02558
economic hedges (3488 (11,729 - [T (648 (r3n) - - - -
Net exposure arising from recognised
ass6ts and liabiities 1004855 51563 106260 103738 97786 27419 29054 (1004583 469,082 14537 24984 23,36
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i1
29 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT AND FAIR 29 HKEREEREMIANAR
VALUES OF FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (continued)

Notes to the Financial Statements (continued)

(d)  Currency risk (continued)

(iv) Sensitivity analysis

(Expressed in RMB unless otherwise indicated

Bt 75 3 3% MY & )

(BSEEBI - UARE R
BE#E)
(o EWERGE)

The following table indicates the instantaneous
change in the Group’s profit after tax and
retained profits that would arise if foreign
exchange rates to which the Group has
significant exposure at the end of the
reporting period had changed at that date,
assuming all other risk variables remained

constant.

usSDh

Euro

SGD

AUD

GBP

AN T

dl

+
HE

2020
Decrease/
(increase)/
in loss after

Increase/ tax and

(decrease) increase/

in foreign (decrease)

exchange in retained

rates profits

HEEE

WD, ()

SIEE BE = RRERE
EH(FEE) 8o, CED)

RMB’000

AR¥ET T

10% 83,977

(10%) (83,977)

10% 2,357

(10%) (2,357)

5% 2,792

(5%) (2,792)

10% 7,460

(10%) (7,460)

10% 16,726

(10%) (16,726)

(iv) SRBEDH

TR WA EBERH
HFHRRAZEKER D

oM T 5 3 % B R B
B8 RRAEEMT

SEREEEHTE
$$@mm&ﬂﬂ&ﬁ

B ) A B
2019

Increase/
Increase/ (decrease)
(decrease) in profit after
in foreign tax and in
exchange retained
rates profits
A& A
HINEE BEE NARE
EF TR 8,/ Ord)
RMB’000
ARBTT
10% 91,580
(10%) (91,580)
10% 5,317
(10%) (5,317)
5% 4,554
(5%) (4,554)
10% 8,818
(10%) (8,818)
10% 10,575
(10%) (10,575)
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Notes to the Financial Statements (continued)

Bt 75 3 3% MY & ()

(Expressed in RMB unless otherwise indicated)

(REEEBI  UARERER)

29 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT AND FAIR
VALUES OF FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (continued) BE(E)

(d)  Currency risk (continued)

(iv) Sensitivity analysis (continued)

CHF

CAD

RMB

HK$

QAR

VND

RUB

R RB

pilie

AR

BTT

KRB

BEE

Efm

29 FIBEREEREBMIENDA

d) EERRRE)

(ivy BBESW(E)

2020 2019

Increase/
(decrease)
in foreign
exchange

rates

SNEE =R
E#H(FH)

10%
(10%)
10%
(10%)
10%
(10%)
10%
(10%)
10%
(10%)
10%
(10%)
30%
(30%)

Decrease/
(increase)/

in loss after Increase/
tax and Increase/ (decrease)
increase/ (decrease) in profit after
(decrease) in foreign tax and in
in retained exchange retained
profits rates profits
HEEBE
WD, () 7RIV

RAREFE SMNEER  RAREFE
#h, (hd) EFCRBE) #Em CRd)

RMB’000 RMB’000
ARET ARBTIT
20,257 10% 23,585
(20,257) (10%) (23,585)
2,365 10% 2,470
(2,365) (10%) (2,470)
(102,717) 10% (100,458)
102,717 (10%) 100,458
38,221 10% 40,682
(38,221) (10%) (40,682)
5,841 10% 1,255
(5,841) (10%) (1,255)
1,961 10% 2,119
(1,961) (10%) 2,119)
5,908 20% 3,970
(5,908) (20%) (3,970)
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Notes to the Financial Statements (continued)
B 7% S 3} MY & (@)

(Expressed in RMB unless otherwise indicate

d)
)

(BRRAERIN  UAREAEN
29 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT AND FAIR 29 HIRERABREERESBMIANAR
VALUES OF FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (continued) BE(E)
(d) Currency risk (continued) (d EBEEERE)
(iv) Sensitivity analysis (continued) (iv) BBESH(E)
Results of the analysis as presented in the FREVNHNDITERIE
above table represent an aggregation of EHAEEZSEEUS
the instantaneous effects on each of the ERNINEEEEEs0

Group entities’ profit/loss after tax and
retained profits measured in their respective
functional currencies, translated into RMB at
the exchange rates ruling at the end of the
reporting period for presentation purposes.

The sensitivity analysis assumes that the
change in foreign exchange rates had
been applied to remeasure those financial
instruments held by the Group which expose
the Group to foreign currency risk at the
end of the reporting period, including inter-
company payables and receivables within
the Group which are denominated in a
currency other than the functional currencies
of the lender or the borrower. The analysis
excludes differences that would result from
the translation of the financial statements
of foreign operations into the Group’s
presentation currency. The sensitivity analysis
is performed on the same basis for 2019.

BB/ BERRE ﬂ
BEAIRRZE - iy

%Eﬂﬂii@ﬁﬁﬂ’]["“\?ﬁ
RARE L2553
ﬁ o

BRESMBRREEA
INEE RN E B AT
AEAEBRBEAmMSA
EBAREPHRAZIN
BEERHNERTIE 8
BUERAKERAR
e B LASNE) & B 5T
ENAEE QG HEER
KREW - DR
EEREBINEBKNY
BREBAEENZT
EEMELNZEE - &
R & 9 47 Ty 1% 82019
FRRKEEETT -
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Notes to the Financial Statements (continued)
B 7% S 3% f & ()

(Expressed in RMB unless otherwise indicated)

(REEEBI  UARERER)

29 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT AND FAIR 29 FBEREEREMIANDIA

VALUES OF FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (continued) BEE)
(e) Fair value measurement e AnEEFE
() Financial assets and liabilities measured () RAAEETENSHE
at fair value EEREE
Fair value hierarchy DA IEEER

The following table presents the fair value of
the Group’s financial instruments measured at
the end of the reporting period on a recurring
basis, categorised into the three-level fair
value hierarchy as defined in IFRS 13, Fair
value measurement. The level into which a fair
value measurement is classified is determined
with reference to the observability and
significance of the inputs used in the valuation
technique as follows:

° Level 1 valuations: Fair value measured
using only Level 1 inputs, i.e. unadjusted
quoted prices in active markets for
identical assets or liabilities at the

MR BRI B R B A
BRELRFEIRRAA(E
Bt 8 EHRHMED
REBRFEXAEESH
TEZRAARBEDER
—HrrEEER 2
EZREETEMBAR
BNRAIBRENREZ M
EA TR RIEE

H

. ZF1EfE g
RE1 B8 ALE
(B ERMEA
HREEREE

/
measurement date. BMi5 LR REH
BRE)FEN 2

nEE -

e Level 2 valuations: Fair value measured e F2EfHE: FH
using Level 2 inputs, i.e. observable F2 B ABUHR (AN
inputs which fail to meet Level 1, and TRHEF1EBEE
not using significant unobservable ) Al ER B BRI ) BT
inputs. Unobservable inputs are inputs EEI’J AnfEE B
for which market data are not available. eFEAEKRTA

%ﬁmﬁa AE& - T
BN ABIEA
KB ER1S T 4% BUR
s AU o
e  Level 3 valuations: Fair value measured e ZFEIEME: LA

using significant unobservable inputs.
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Notes to the Financial Statements (continued)

29 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT AND FAIR
VALUES OF FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (continued)

(e

Fair value measurement (continued)

() Financial assets and liabilities measured

at fair value (continued)

Fair value hierarchy (continued)

Recurring fair value
measurements:

Assets

Derivative financial instruments:

— Forward foreign exchange
contracts
Liabilities
Derivative financial instruments:

— Forward foreign exchange
contracts

i
3
o
=
|
¥
E‘I_'

&E
TTESMIA :
- EHMNER L)

&8
TEEMITA :
- EHNER K

During the year ended 31 December 2020,

there were no transfers between Level 1 and

Level 2, or transfers into or out of Level 3.

The Group’s policy is to recognise transfers

between levels of fair value hierarchy as at

the end of the reporting period in which they

occur.

Bt 75 3 3% MY & )

(Expressed in RMB unless otherwise indicated)

(K BB - AR RER)
20 HIXEREEREMIENAA
BEE)

() AREMEF=(E)

) ELAAEEFENEE
EEREREAE)

DA EBEER(E)
Fair value measurements

categorised into Level 2

DERFE2BNAAEBEE

il

2020 2019
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARBTRT ARETT
59,288 17,781
26,386 23,021

RE 22019512 A 31
BIEFEE BF1ERSE
22 M S Aok EE
HEIEMEERIAER
c AEBZBRARE
EEZREARERD
R ABME B A 2 8 Y B 1
IHE o
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Notes to the Financial Statements (continued)
B 7% S 3% f & ()

(Expressed in RMB unless otherwise indicated)

(B=EEHAN -

AARBEREBA)

29 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT AND FAIR
VALUES OF FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (continued)

(e) Fair value measurement (continued)

(i)

(i)

YUANDA CHINA HOLDINGS LIMITED

Financial assets and liabilities measured
at fair value (continued)

Fair value hierarchy (continued)

Valuation techniques and inputs used in Level
2 fair value measurements

The fair value of forward foreign exchange
contracts in Level 2 is determined by
discounting the contractual forward price
and deducting the current forward rate. The
discount rate used is derived from Shibor
Swap curve as at the end of the reporting
period.

Fair value of financial assets and
liabilities carried at other than fair value

The carrying amounts of the Group’s financial
instruments carried at cost or amortised
cost are not materially different from their fair
values at 31 December 2020 and 2019.
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Notes to the Financial Statements (continued)

Bt 75 3 3% MY & )

(Expressed in RMB unless otherwise indicated)

30 COMMITMENTS 30

(a)

Capital commitments

At 31 December 2020, the outstanding capital
commitments of the Group not provided for in the
consolidated financial statements were as follows:

Commitments in respect of EF - W REED
buildings, machinery and AHE
equipment
— Contracted for - BET4

As at 31 December 2020, the Group has not
committed to enter into any lease contract that is
not yet commenced.

31 CONTINGENT LIABILITIES 31

(a)

Guarantees issued

At 31 December 2020, the Group has issued the
following guarantees:

Guarantees for construction BEAGEEE BAK
contracts’ bidding, performance RE & HOHEIR

and retentions

(BREEHEBAIN  AARERER)
EIE

(a) BARAE
M2020F 12 A31H ' RN &
HYPERERP I ARBEE 2N
EEAREEEAAENT :
2020 2019

RMB’000 RMB’000
AR®BTRT AR®TRT

35,026 1,730

#H E2020F12 4318 K
EB M ARR YT ARG
HITHWHEAR -

HAREE

(a) BEHER

M2020F 12 A31H » &K &
BB THIER

2020 2019

RMB’000 RMB’000
AR®TR ARETT

1,930,375 1,901,761
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Notes to the Financial Statements (continued)

Bt 75 3 3% MY & ()

(Expressed in RMB unless otherwise indicated)

(REEEBI  UARERER)
31 CONTINGENT LIABILITIES (continued)

(@) Guarantees issued (continued)

As of the end of the reporting period, the directors
of the Company do not consider it probable that
a claim in excess of the provision for warranties
provided by the Group will be made against the
Group under any of the guarantees. The maximum
liability of the Group as of the end of the reporting
period under the guarantees issued is the amount
disclosed above.

(b)  Contingent liabilities in respect of legal claims

(i) In December 2009, Shenyang Yuanda
and Yuanda India both wholly-owned
subsidiaries of the Group, jointly received
a notice that they are being sued by a
former sub-contractor in India in respect
of Shenyang Yuanda’s and Yuanda India’s
non-performance of the terms as stipulated
in the sub-contract agreement entered into
between Shenyang Yuanda and this former
sub-contractor. Shenyang Yuanda has made
a counterclaim against this sub-contractor
for non-performance of the sub-contract
agreement. On 30 September 2016, a first
instance court judgement has been rendered
in favour of Shenyang Yuanda and Yuanda
India and pursuant to which the former sub-
contractor shall pay to Shenyang Yuanda
and Yuanda India damages in the amount of
INR81.8 million (equivalent to approximately
RMB7.3 million) plus accrued interest.

YUANDA CHINA HOLDINGS LIMITED Annual Report 2020

31

HREEHE)

(a)

BEELERGE)

RBMEHRR ARAAEER
A3 T B] BE 3R AR IR AT (R 42
REAKREEHEEAEHE
PRt RIEBBENERR -
AEBERHERRRIES #
HERNRSEETR XA
BRENDE -

BRZEBRRNAARAR
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Notes to the Financial Statements (continued)

31 CONTINGENT LIABILITIES (continued)

(b) Contingent liabilities in respect of legal claims

(continued)

(i)

(continued)

The former sub-contractor and Shenyang
Yuanda and Yuanda India later on filed
appeals and as at the date of this report, the
lawsuit is under reviewed before the Hon’ble
High Court of Delhi. If Shenyang Yuanda
and Yuanda India are found to be liable, the
total expected monetary compensation may
amount to approximately INR1,410.8 million
(equivalent to approximately RMB125.7
million) plus accrued interest. Shenyang
Yuanda and Yuanda India deny any liability
in respect of the appeal filed by the former
sub-contractor and, based on legal advice,
the directors of the Company do not believe
it is probable that the court will find against
Shenyang Yuanda and/or Yuanda India. No
provision has therefore been made in respect
of this claim.

Bt 75 3 3% MY & )

(Expressed in RMB unless otherwise indicated)
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AARKEREN)

31 HAREE(E)

b) BEBEZEAEFROKABE

(%)

(i)

(%)

It A 2 B R BLE 5 R K
RERNEEREEZRLY
e mRAREBL -
FFEAEREEHon ble
BEERER - WEG
BRARBRRNOEWHTE
BBLELEMR BHE
M EABEAREANE
1,4108E 8 HEE It
(HWERARM125.78
EBIT)MEETF B - )&
A REKNEESR
BERELLAT D BRERED
WER MBEEEE
B ARABEEWTHE
SAEEEHRERHBER
&,/ s8R K EE BGER
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Notes to the Financial Statements (continued)
B 7% S 3% f & ()

(Expressed in RMB unless otherwise indicated)

(BrBHEREIN - UARKE BEAL)
31 CONTINGENT LIABILITIES (continued) 31 HAREEE)
(o) Contingent liabilities in respect of legal claims b) ERALIERRMKAAE
(continued) (%)

(ii)

In January 2018, Shenyang Yuanda sued
a customer in Beijing Third Intermediate
People’s Court to demand payment of the
outstanding construction payable of RMB48.1
million, later this customer filed a counterclaim
against Shenyang Yuanda claiming for
RMB102.9 million due to additional costs
incurred for project delays and quality defects.
As at the date of this report, the lawsuit is
under review by the Beijing Third Intermediate
People’s Court. If Shenyang Yuanda is found
to be liable, the total expected monetary
compensation may amount to approximately
RMB102.9 million.
continues to deny any liability in respect of

Shenyang Yuanda

the counterclaim and, based on legal advice,
the directors of the Company do not believe
it is probable that the court will find against
Shenyang Yuanda. No provision had therefore
been made in respect of this claim.
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Notes to the Financial Statements (continued)

31 CONTINGENT LIABILITIES (continued)

()

Contingent liabilities in respect of legal claims
(continued)

(i) In addition to the lawsuits mentioned in
Notes 31(b)(i) to 31(b)(ii), certain subsidiaries
of the Group are named defendants on
other lawsuits or arbitrations in respect of
construction work carried out by them. As
at the date of this report, these lawsuits and
arbitrations are under reviewed before courts
or arbitrators. If these subsidiaries are found
to be liable, the total expected monetary
compensation may amount to approximately
RMB231.6 million, of which RMB17.3 million
has already been provided for and the
Group’s bank deposits of RMB98.1 million
at 31 December 2020 was frozen by courts
for certain of these lawsuits. Based on legal
advices, the directors of the Company do
not believe it is probable that the courts or
arbitrators will find against these subsidiaries
of the Group on these lawsuits and
arbitrations.

Contingent compensation payable

In July 2016, it was reported that certain
construction materials supplied by the Group was
found to contain asbestos in two construction
projects in Australia. The Group is cooperating
with relevant authorities on investigation into the
reason for the reported cases. As at the date of the
report, asbestos was not found in other projects
constructed by the Group and there was no related
legal action against the Group in Australia. As the
investigation is yet to be completed and claims
against the Group from contractors have not been
quantified, the directors of the Company cannot
reliably estimate the repair cost and potential
compensation for projects found with asbestos. No
provision in this regard has therefore been made.

Bt 75 3 3% MY & )

(Expressed in RMB unless otherwise indicated)
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Notes to the Financial Statements (continued)
B 7% S 3% f & ()

(Expressed in RMB unless otherwise indicated)

(BRBHEREN - AARKE BEBAL)
32 Company-level statement of financial position

32 A FFE B SRR 3Rk

2020 2019
Note RMB’000 RMB’000
HteF AR®T ARETT
Non-current assets ERBEE
Interests in subsidiaries R B R FREE 2,056,670 2,189,122
Current assets RENEE
Prepayments and other F8 {5 3k M = At fE U X
receivables 325 327
Cash on hand and in bank FEBRE RRITFHK 1,841 2,330
2,166 2,657
Current liabilities REBEE
Accrued expenses and TR S R E At FEA TR
other payables 1,061,604 1,126,634
Net current liabilities REBEEFE (1,059,438)  (1,123,977)
NET ASSETS BEE 997,232 1,065,145
CAPITAL AND RESERVES BARR#E 27
Share capital N 519,723 519,723
Reserves R 477,509 545,422
TOTAL EQUITY R 997,232 1,065,145
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Notes to the Financial Statements (continued)

IMPACTS OF COVID-19 PANDEMIC

The COVID-19 Pandemic since early 2020 has brought
about additional uncertainties in the Group’s operating
environment and has impacted the Group’s operations
and financial position.

The Group has been closely monitoring the impact
of the developments on the Group’s business and
has commenced to put in place various contingency
measures. These contingency measures included but
not limited to, assessing the readiness of the production
units and revisiting the progress of curtain wall systems
projects, reassessing the adequacy and suitability of the
Group’s existing suppliers inventory of raw materials,
the expanding of the Group’s supplier base in a view
to negotiating with customers on possible delay in
delivery timetables, increase monitoring of the business
environment of the Group’s customers, and improving
the Group’s cash management by expediting debtor
settlements and negotiating with suppliers on payment
extensions.

As far as the Group’s businesses are concerned, if the
COVID-19 pandemic situation evolves, the production
and delivery would be further delayed on curtain wall
systems construction, but the directors of the Company
consider that such impact could be reduced by the
Group’s expedition of the production/construction
process when the situation resume to normal. In
addition, the COVID-19 pandemic also significantly
impact the repayment abilities of the Group’s debtors
and the willingness of the main contractor to promote
construction, which in turn result in additional impairment
losses on trade receivables and/or contract assets
in current period and the credit risk may continue to
increase in future periods.

Bt 75 3 3% MY & )

(Expressed in RMB unless otherwise indicated)
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Notes to the Financial Statements (continued)
B 7% S 3% f & ()

(Expressed in RMB unless otherwise indicated)

(B BHEHRBI - AR ABEL)

34 POSSIBLE IMPACT OF AMENDMENTS, NEW 34 HZE2020F12A31HLEFED
STANDARDS AND INTERPRETATIONS ISSUED MEMEERERIBET ~ T E
BUT NOT YET EFFECTIVE FOR THE YEAR BlRREBARERNEE
ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2020
Up to the date of issue of these financial statements, HEHETHRRTZEHE - B

CHEARESCDEMETES

202012 A1 H I FEE M AL

the IASB has issued a number of amendments, new
standards and interpretations which are not yet effective
for the year ended 31 December 2020 and which have WMEYAERINEET ~ Fra] B R 2E
not been adopted in these financial statements. These HIW AR EMEHRRIR AL o 3%
include the following which may be relevant to the EEETER| R EREET B FELA T A]
Group. REEAEEEEMNSIE o

Effective for
accounting periods
beginning on or after
RIUAT BEAsk 2 1&
Fia R 5T B A

Amendments to IFRS 3, Reference to the Conceptual Framework

BRRBY 7% 25 2 2B R 3 FIEETA - 5 B2 AHER

Amendments to IAS 16, Property, Plant and Equipment:
Proceeds before Intended Use

B @51 ERIFE 16 FAZET K - W% - BiEREH -
ENKEFE A FTigslE

Amendments to IAS 37, Onerous Contracts — Cost of Fulfilling a Contract

B &5t ERE 37 JIEETA - EIRILE#) - BT K2

Annual Improvements to IFRSs 2018-2020 Cycle
2018 %F F 2020 FIFH] 2 BIBR A1 75 3 5 BRI 2 F 2 208

Amendments to IAS 1, Classification of Liabilities as Current or
Non-current
B 25 2ERE 1 HAEET R - BB EMETEE ESE

Amendments to IAS 1 and IFRS Practice Statement 2,
Disclosure of Accounting Policies

EIfR @it JERIE 195 R EIR AT 75 3 &5 2RI 2 3 B #RRNEFT A
BT R

Amendments to IAS 8, Definition of Accounting Estimates
BIER &1 BRI E 8 FNEFT K » BT EE
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Notes to the Financial Statements (continued)

POSSIBLE IMPACT OF AMENDMENTS, NEW
STANDARDS AND INTERPRETATIONS ISSUED
BUT NOT YET EFFECTIVE FOR THE YEAR
ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2020 (continued)

The Group is in the process of making an assessment
of what the impact of these developments is expected
to be in the period of initial application. So far it has
concluded that the adoption of them is unlikely to
have a significant impact on the consolidated financial
statements.

IMMEDIATE AND ULTIMATE HOLDING
COMPANY

The directors of the Company consider the immediate
and ultimate holding company of the Company as at 31
December 2020 to be Best Outlook Limited, which is
incorporated in the British Virgin Islands. This entity does
not produce financial statements available for public use.

Bt 75 3 3% MY & )

(Expressed in RMB unless otherwise indicated)
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Five Year Financial Summary

EFMBERE

(Expressed in RMB unless otherwise indicated)

(B=EEHAN -

Results
Revenue

(Loss)/profit from operations
Finances costs

(Loss)/profit before taxation
Income tax

(Loss)/profit for the year

Attributable to:

Equity shareholders of the
Company

Non-controlling interests

(Loss)/profit for the year

Assets and liabilities
Non-current assets

Current assets
Current liabilities

Net current assets

Total assets less current
liabilities
Non-current liabilities

NET ASSETS

Capital and reserves
Share capital
Reserves

Total equity attributable to
equity shareholders of the
Company

Non-controlling interests

TOTAL EQUITY

YUANDA CHINA HOLDINGS LIMITED

AARBEREBA)

B (BR),/FIHE
BEMA

il (B1R),/FIH
PEH

FR(ER),/FIH

AR AL :
VNN L

IR
FRER),/FIHE

BERAR
FRDEE

MEBEE
REAE

nYAEFE

BREERRBRE
FRPAE
FEE
BARER

[AEN

ffE

RARBIREN
et

IR

BER

2020 2019 2018 2017 2016
RMB’'000 RMB'000  RMB'000  RMB'000  RMB'000
ARETr ARETT ARETT ARETT ARETR
2,735,572 4041253 4,615,704 5,688,650 7,324,415
(363,080) 338,541 222,929 291,073 173,640
(227,642)  (142,523)  (68,767)  (232,801)  (86,446)
(590,722) 196,018 154,162 58,272 87,194
(99,903) (106,198  (65,991) 27,457 (10,577)
(690,625) 89,820 88,171 85,729 76,617
(690,625) 89,820 79,119 60,652 87,039
- - 9,052 25,077 (10,422)
(690,625) 89,820 88,171 85,729 76,617
1,000,387 1,134,011 1,355,031 1,672,104 1,716,027
7,395,324 8,399,134 8,706,332 9,809,008 11,463,726
5,705,315 6,624,937 7,048,236 7,300,206 9,936,815
1,690,009 1,774,197 1,658,096 2,508,802 1,526,911
2,690,396 2,908,208 3,013,127 4,180,006 3,242,938
589,644 176513 305000 982,640 235285
2,100,752 2,731,695 2,708,127 3,198,266 3,007,653
519,723 519,723 519,723 519,723 519,723
1,581,020 2,211,972 2,188,404 2,817,332 2,633,717
2,100,752 2,731,695 2,708,127 3,337,055 3,153,440
- - - (188,789)  (145,787)
2,100,752 2,731,695 2,708,127 3,198,266 3,007,653
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